
{02231428.DOC / } 

     Agenda Item No. ________  
 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
AGENDA REQUEST 

 
 

Work Session    Voting Session   February 5, 2013     Executive Session           
  Date        Date            Date 
  

I. A. Request made by:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge   
                 Elected Official 

 
Requested Text: 1.  Public Hearing concerning the issuance of multifamily housing revenue 

bonds by Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 
for the Paddock at Norwood project. 

 
2. Approve issuance of multifamily housing revenue bonds by Strategic Housing Finance 

Corporation of Travis County Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds for the Paddock at Norwood project. 
 
 
Approved by:            

    Signature of Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
II. A. Any backup material to be presented to the court must be submitted with this Agenda 
  Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup). 
 

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials' names and telephone numbers that might be 
affected by or involved with this request.  Send a copy of this Agenda Request and 
backup to them: 

  
III.   Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable. 
 
   Planning and Budget Office (473-9106) 
 ___  Additional funding for any department or for any purpose 
 ___ Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item  
 ___ Grant 
 
   Human Resources Department (473-9165) 
 ___ A change in your department's personnel (reclassifications, etc.) 
 
   Purchasing Office (473-9700) 
 ___ Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement 
 
 County Attorney's Office (473-9415) 
 ___ Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted to the County Judge's 
office in writing by 5:00 PM on Tuesdays for the next week's meeting.  Late or incomplete requests may be deferred to the 
next meeting. 

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
1



{02231443.DOC / } 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 MEMORANDUM 
 from 
 William C. Blount 
 (512) 807-2454 
 Fax (512) 474-1901 
 E-mail: blount@namanhowell.com 
 
TO:   Travis County Judge and County Commissioners 
 
DATE:  January 28, 2013 
 
RE:   Issuance of multifamily housing revenue bonds by Strategic Housing 

Finance Corporation of Travis County for The Paddock at Norwood Project 
 
Agenda Date:  February 5, 2013 
 
 
 The two items for this project are (1) to hold a public hearing for the above-referenced 
issuance of bonds by Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County and (2) for the 
County to approve the issuance of the bonds by Strategic. 
 
 Attached is the notice of hearing that was published in the Austin American-Statesman on 
January 21, 2013.  The project will be a 228-unit multifamily housing residential project to be 
located at Norwood Park Boulevard and Anderson Lane in Northeast Austin (just east of I-35).  I 
understand that Craig Alter has either met with, is scheduled to meet with or has requested to meet 
with each of you to provide information on the project and structure of the transaction.   
 
 As you know, for the bonds to be tax-exempt, the issuance must be approved by the 
“Highest Applicable Elected Representative” after a public hearing.  The Commissioner’s Court 
qualifies as the Highest Applicable Elected Representative for these purposes.  I have attached the 
published notice, proposed resolution, and the bond allocation documents from the Bond Review 
Board.  Additionally, the bond issuance must be approved by the Attorney General’s Office and 
Travis County will not have liability for the bonds. 
 
 Please give me a call if you have any questions or require any additional information 
regarding this matter before Tuesday. 
 
cc: Andrea Shields 
 Karen Thigpen 

 

 







{02231431.DOC / }  

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS APPROVING A TAX EXEMPT BOND FINANCING TO BE 
UNDERTAKEN BY STRATEGIC HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION OF 
TRAVIS COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County (the 

“Issuer”) is proposing to issue its multifamily housing revenue bonds in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $20,0000,000 to finance the acquisition, construction, 
development, financing and ownership of a 228-unit housing community known as The 
Paddock at Norwood Apartments located at Norwood Park Boulevard and Anderson 
Lane, Austin, Texas, 78752 (the “Property”) located within Travis County, Texas (the 
“County”) by LDG Norwood, LP; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986 (the “Code”), the issuance of the Bonds requires approval, following a public 
hearing, by the applicable elected representative of the governmental unit having 
jurisdiction over the area in which the Property is located; and 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2013, a notice of a public hearing with respect 
to the proposed issuance of the Bonds was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the County, in which the Property is located; and 

WHEREAS, this Commissioner’s Court conducted the public hearing, at 
which time an opportunity was provided to present arguments both for and against the 
issuance of the Bonds and the nature and location of the Property to be financed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Travis County now desires to 
approve the financing and the issuance of the Bonds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commissioners Court of 
Travis County, as follows: 

Section 1. The Commissioners Court of Travis County hereby 
approves the financing described above and the issuance of the Bonds in an amount not 
to exceed $20,000,000.  It is the purpose and intent of the Commissioners Court of Travis 
County that this resolution constitute approval of the financing and the issuance of the 
Bonds for the purposes of Section 147(f) of the Code by the applicable elected 
representative of the governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in which the 
Property is located, in accordance with said Section 147(f) of the Code. 

Section 2. The County Judge and the County Clerk and the County 
Commissioners are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to do any and 
all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they deem necessary or 
advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this 
resolution and the financing transaction approved hereby. 



{02231431.DOC / }  

Section 3. Nothing in this resolution shall be construed to create any 
obligation of the County with respect to the repayment of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall 
never constitute an indebtedness or pledge of the County within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory provision, and the owners of the Bonds shall never be paid in 
whole or in part out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or any other revenues 
of the County. 

Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on February 5, 2013. 

 
COMMISSIONERS COURT OF 
   TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 County Judge 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
 County Clerk 





salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 3

















AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:   
February 5, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   
Cathy McClaugherty, 854-4713 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Judge Nancy Hohengarten, County Court at Law #5 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety     
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   
Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
RECEIVE AN UPDATE ON TRAVIS COUNTY’S JUSTICE AND MENTAL 
HEALTH COLLABORTATION PROGRAM (JMHCP), A BUREAU OF 
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
For FY 2012, Travis County applied for and was awarded a Bureau of 
Justice Assistance (BJA) Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program 
planning grant. This presentation and the accompanying PowerPoint will 
provide the court with an overview of the grant’s progress and success, to 
date, as well as a glimpse into the project’s future in FY 2013, and beyond.      
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The purpose of JMHCP, per the Bureau of Justice Assistance, is “to 
increase public safety through innovative cross-system collaboration for 
individuals with mental illnesses or co-occurring mental health and 
substance abuse disorders who come into contact with the justice system”. 
Travis County applied for this grant in the hopes of identifying and 
developing strategies to address gaps in local mental health services, 
specific to justice-involved individuals within our community.  
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 5



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
Travis County received one-time, grant funding of approximately $50,000, 
which was used to hire a consultant and part-time support staff to 
administer this grant. Internal funding to continue the project is from Travis 
County Criminal Court Administration. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
N/A 
 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


 1 

JUSTICE  & PUBLIC  SAFETY DIVISION 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive  

P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas  78767   Phone (512) 854-4415   Fax (512) 854-4417 

 
Criminal Justice Planning 

Roger Jefferies 
(512) 854-4415 

 
Counseling & Education Services 

Caryl Colburn  
(512) 854-9540 

 
Juvenile Public Defender 

Kameron D. Johnson 
(512) 854-4128 

To:  Sam Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
  Ron Davis, Commissioner, Precinct 1 
  Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner, Precinct 2 
  Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner, Precinct 3 
  Margaret Gomez, Commissioner, Precinct 4 
 
From: Judge Nancy Hohengarten, County Court at Law#5 

Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety 
   
Date:  January 29, 2013  
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE AN UPDATE ON TRAVIS COUNTY’S JUSTICE AND 

MENTAL HEALTH COLLABORTATION PROGRAM (JMHCP), A 
BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
For FY 2012, Travis County, via Criminal Justice Planning, applied for and was awarded 
a Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) 
Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program grant (JMHCP). Travis County received 
$49,706 for this JMHCP Category 1: Planning grant; Travis County provided $19,304 in 
in-kind funding.   
 
The purpose of JMHCP, as stated by BJA, is “to increase public safety through 
innovative cross-system collaboration for individuals with mental illnesses or co-
occurring mental health and substance abuse disorders who come into contact with the 
justice system”. Travis County used grant funding to hire a professional consultant to 
lead an advisory board comprised of local elected and appointed officials, as well as 
mental health professionals, advocates, and consumers. This advisory board was tasked 
with identifying gaps in mental health services and strategies to address and potentially 
rectify these gaps, with a focus on a target population identified as individuals 
diagnosed with an Axis I disorder, as set out in the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of 

 

 
 

 

 



 2 

Mental Disorders, Fourth Edition (DSM-IV-TR), involved in the criminal justice system 
with co-occurring substance use disorders. A part-time support staff was also hired with 
grant funding, to coordinate and oversee meeting and daily tasks associated with this 
grant.   
 
The JMHCP Advisory Board met nine times from February 2012 through August 2012; 
members also participated in subcommittee meetings to work on assigned tasks. Data 
specific to the target population was collected, matched (where possible), and analyzed 
for use in the initiative. A strategic plan for the first phase, summarizing the 
accomplishments and goals set forth in this initiative, was written by the consultant and 
distributed in late 2012. 
 
Going forward, Travis County is proceeding with a contract for technical assistance for a 
second phase of the planning process. The next step in this initiative involves strategic 
program/service planning and prioritization. The advisory board has committed to 
continue meeting and a new executive board will be convened. Our goals are to identify 
funding priorities for upcoming budget cycles and prepare responses to any future grant 
opportunities.  





 In February 2011, Travis County Criminal Justice Planning 
applied for a Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program 
(JMHCP) Category 1: Planning competitive grant.  
 

 The purpose of JMHCP is “to increase public safety through 
innovative cross-system collaboration for individuals with 
mental illnesses or co-occurring mental health and substance 
abuse disorders who come into contact with the justice 
system”. JMHCP is sponsored by the U.S. Department of 
Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice 
Assistance, or BJA.  
 

 There are two further grant categories:  Planning and 
Implementation and Implementation.  Grant solicitations for 
these two have not been released.  Hopefully, BJA will have 
funding to do so in 2013. 

 



 The goals of Travis County’s application were to 
 

• Create a uniform data base for information sharing, tracking 
clients, and measuring program outcomes.  

• Maximize treatment utilization.  
• Determine unmet needs and linkages for females. 
• Develop an evidence-based wraparound service plan by 

leveraging criminal justice and mental health program resources 
and blending existing support and services for the target 
population. 

 
 The target population is individuals diagnosed with an Axis I 

disorder, as set out in the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of 
Mental Disorders, Fourth Edition (DSM-IV-TR), involved in the 
criminal justice system with co-occurring substance use 
disorders. 

 
  



 In September 2011, Travis County was notified by BJA that we were 
selected to receive grant funding for 12 months. 
 

 In November 2011, Travis County released a Request for Services to 
contract with a consultant for mental health strategic planning 
services.   
 

 In January 2012, Morningside Research and Consulting, Inc., was 
selected as the consultant for this initiative.      
 

 In February 2012, temporary, part-time staff was hired to support 
all activities for this initiative, including data gathering and entry, 
meeting coordination, and minutes and notes.    
 

 During January and February 2012, potential members of the 
JMHCP Advisory Board were identified and contacted. They 
included mental health professionals and advocates in both the 
private and public sector, as well as community leaders. 



On February 24, 2012, the kick-off meeting for the JMHCP 
Advisory Board was held. The goals and tasks for the advisory 
board were established as 
 

• Provide input, information and feedback for creation of 
mental health/criminal justice strategic plan. 

• Develop goals and objectives. 
• Provide input and feedback on survey design.  
• Create and distribute a final report (with consultant) of 

findings and recommendations.  
• Create ad hoc subcommittees (Data Collection, 

Sustainability, Communitywide Survey, and Service 
Planning). 

  
 



 From February 2012 through August 2012, the advisory board 
convened nine times. 
 

 The subcommittees meet frequently and reported back to the 
full board.  
 

 Early in the process, the advisory board decided to create a 
Sequential Intercept Model (SIM) to demonstrate how 
individuals with mental illness intersect and interact with the 
justice system in Travis County. 
 

 The SIM is a planning tool developed by Policy Research 
Associates.  It has been used in Travis County before by ATCIC 
in planning jail diversion. 



Original Sequential Intercept Model (SIM) 

Source: Psychiatric Services, April 2006, Vol. 57, No. 4, 544-549. 



SIM Model Adopted by Travis County  
JMHCP Advisory Board 

Source: Developing a Comprehensive Plan for Mental Health & Criminal Justice Collaboration: The Sequential Intercept Model. The National GAINS 
Center for Mental Health Services. 



 The resulting SIM agreed upon by the advisory board was 
divided into six intercepts: 
• Community Services (intercept 0, true diversion) 
• Law Enforcement (intercept 1) 
• Initial Detention and Court Hearings (intercept 2) 
• Jail and Courts (intercept 3) 
• Reentry (intercept 4) 
• Community Corrections (intercept 5) 

 
 Services and programs (points of intersection) were listed 

under the related intercept(s). 
 



 Per intercept, individual services and programs were detailed 
as follows: 

 

• Existing Services  
• Funding Source  
• Relevant Data  
• Gaps and Barriers  
• Solutions and Strategies 
• Relevant Law and Policy 
• Best Practices 
• Future Funding and Collaborative Opportunities 

 

 Work on the SIM was conducted during subcommittee 
meetings and independently by advisory board members. 
Results were shared and details fine tuned during advisory 
board meetings.   
 
 



Intercept 3 Jails & Courts 
Misdemeanor Mental Health Docket 
Program Description The misdemeanor MH docket is also called the Special Reduction Docket.  It takes place in one of the County Courts at 

Law (the assignment is rotated) every Tuesday/Thursday morning for any defendant incarcerated with a PSY code 
descriptor assigned by Travis County Jail Staff after assessment.  Cases are staffed for disposition with the Mental Health 
Prosecutor, Mental Health Defense Attorney, Travis County Sheriff’s Department  Social Worker, Austin/Travis County 
Integral Care and Pre Trial Services. 

Existing Services No direct services are provided.  Cases are staffed to determine appropriate case disposition and relevant community 
social services by staffing participants. 

Funding Source Office of Criminal Court Administration funds one staff person to monitor not only the MH dockets but also other 
programs/issues involving the criminal courts.  All other entities have their own funding.  No other additional funding 
has been requested for this docket (currently utilizing existing resources). 

Relevant Data The Travis County  Attorney’s Office collects data by fiscal year regarding total number of cases staffed, cases resolved at 
first setting, average number of days from first setting to final disposition, number of inmates diverted on MH docket, 
and % of inmates diverted or placed on MH caseload.  For CY10, 2,488 cases were staffed by the MH Prosecutor and 
1,421 cases were resolved at the first setting.  Additionally, 561 defendants were diverted from jails (i.e. released on 
bond, case dismissed, deferred prosecution, or sentenced to Road to Recovery. 

Relevant Law & 
Policy 

HIPAA, Texas Penal Code, Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Texas Mental Health Code. 

Gaps and Barriers 1) Lack of Permanent and Transitional Supportive Housing, as well as lack of residential and out-patient treatment 
options for defendants with co-occurring disorders. 

2) Lack of case managers and attorneys at Mental Health Public Defender Office to handle the volume of misdemeanor 
mental health cases. 

3) Lack of adequate resources for pretrial  release. 

Solutions and 
Strategies 

1) Funding for transitional and Permanent Supportive Housing, as well as residential and out-patient treatment for co-
occurring disorders. 

2) Enhancements to Mental Health Public Defender Office for additional attorneys and case managers. 
3) Additional case supervisors at Pretrial Services and/or in the Courts 

Responsible Entities County Attorney’s Office, Criminal Courts 

11 



12 

Best Practices MH Court with risk/needs assessment that informs team of individual need for treatment, treatment readiness, 
cognitive behavioral counseling, etc. 

Future Funding & 
Collaborative 
Opportunities 

Current initiatives on Permanent Supportive Housing include City of Austin, Travis County, and Justice and Public Safety, 
Travis County Adult Probation has applied for a grant for robust wrap around services for this population.   

Intercept 3 Jails & Courts 
Misdemeanor Mental Health Docket (Continued) 



 Equally important to JMHCP was target population data 
analysis and data matching. The work was conducted outside 
of the advisory board meetings and fine tuned during 
subcommittee meetings.      
 

 The criteria for target population, as analyzed, was  
• Booked in the Travis County Jail during calendar year 2011. 
• Had a state-defined priority population mental health disorder. 
• Had a co-occurring substance use disorder. 

 
 A total of 652 individuals met this criteria in 2011, according 

to the Travis County Sheriff’s Office. 
 

 The target population in 2011 was 24% female and 76% 
percent male. 



 Target population data was culled, matched (where possible), 
and analyzed. It included, but was not limited to  
• Demographics  
• Arrest and booking  
• Jail bed days consumed  
• Self-reported treatment  
• Housing status  
• Health issues/types of healthcare visits  
• Cost analyses 
• TRAG Scores 

 
 Contributing data and data matching was Travis County 

Justice and Public Safety; Travis County Sheriff’s Office; 
Integrated Care Collaboration; Seton Healthcare Family; 
Downtown Austin Community Court; Ending Community 
Homeless Coalition (ECHO); and Austin Travis County Integral 
Care.  
 



 Morningside Research and Consulting, Inc., wrote a Phase I 
Strategic Plan, which was widely distributed via email in late 
2012. It was also published on Criminal Justice Planning’s 
website:  
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/criminal_justice/default.asp 
 

 The strategic plan provides a summary of the work and 
findings of Travis County’s JMHCP grant. It is divided into five 
sections: 
 

• Guiding Principles 
• Solutions Needed by Intercept 
• Implementation Plan 
• Sustainability Plan 
• Collaboration Plan  

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/criminal_justice/default.asp


 Travis County is contracting with Policy Research Associates, 
Inc. (PRA) for technical assistance for Phase II of the planning 
process.  PRA operates SAMHSA’s GAINS Center, which is THE 
leader in mental health criminal justice jail diversion efforts 
nationally. 
 

 Dr. Susan Stone, JD, MD, will lead the facilitation as an 
employee of PRA, beginning January 28, 2013. 
 

 Phase II planning will involve strategic program/service 
planning and prioritization. The advisory board will meet 
eight times and a new executive board will meet three times. 
 

 If another grant solicitation is released, Travis County will 
apply, with approval from the advisory board and executive 
board. 



 
ID# 7462 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant CTPM / 854-1181; 
Marvin Brice CPPB / 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes C.P.M. CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 7 to Renew FY2013 
Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000379 (HTE Contract No. IL080042RE) for 
the Provision of Public Health Services and Approve new Interlocal 
Agreement No. 4400001169 for the Provision of Animal Control Services 
with the City of Austin. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments 

 Travis County HHS & VS is requesting the FY2013 Renewal of the 
Public Health Interlocal Agreement with the City of Austin. This Interlocal 
Agreement is designed to provide more efficient administration of public 
health services for county residents. The agreement covers a variety of 
services including HIV Outreach and Prevention, Immunization, Chronic 
Disease Prevention. The not to exceed amount for this agreement is 
$2,884,213.00 for the period October 1, 2012 through September 30, 
2013. 

The Animal Control Services Interlocal Agreement between Travis 
County and the City of Austin is designed to provide more efficient 
administration of animal services for county residents and to allow the 
City and the County to combine resources and capabilities in providing a 
collaborative animal control enforcement and shelter services program 
that serves a regional populace in the identification and vaccination of 
domestic pets, the maintenance of shelter facilities, and the control of 
animals at large (both domestic and wild). The FY13 amount for this 
agreement totals $ 967,275.00 for the period October 1, 2012 to 
September 30, 2013. This amount is offset by a $78,392.00 personnel 
credit received by the County under the agreement paid by the County. 
This credit results in $888,883.00 net amount paid by Travis County. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 6



 
ID# 7462 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting 
 

Both Interlocals were previously approved on the September 25, 2012 
Court Agenda, Item No. 35 to prevent contract expiration, as they were 
not ready for presentation due to HHS & VS working with the County 
Attorney's office on finalizing the Statement of Work and funding. The 
agreements are now finalized and are being presented to the Court for 
signature. 

 

 Contract Expenditures:  

Contract 4400000379 (HTE Contract No. IL080042RE) Within the last 
12 months $2,199,363.00 has been spent against this 
contract/requirement. 

Contract 4400001169 Within the last 12 months $0 has been spent 
against this contract/requirement 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Contract 4400000379 (HTE Contract No. IL080042RE)  
Award Amount: $2,932,484   
Contract Type: Interlocal Agreement  
Contract Period: October 1, 2007 – September 30, 2008  
 
Contract 4400001169  
Award Amount: $888,883.00   
Contract Type: Interlocal Agreement  
Contract Period: October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 

 Contract Modification Information: 
Contract 4400000379 (HTE Contract No. IL080042RE) Mod No. 7 
Modification Amount: $2,884,213.00   
Modification Type:   Bilateral  
Modification Period: October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 
Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  



 
ID# 7462 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting 
 

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

Contract 4400000379 (HTE Contract No. IL080042RE) 
  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000421 and 

300000427 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments:  

 
Contract 4400001169 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000421 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments:  

 
 

 
 
 



RENEWAL TO AND AMENDMENT OF 
THE INTERLOCALCOOPERA TION AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF AUSTIN AND TRAVIS COUNTY 
FOR PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013 

(2013 Renewal) 

This Renewal to and Amendment of the "Interlocal Cooperation Agreement Between the City of Austin 
and Travis County for Public Health Services For Fiscal Year 2013 " (2013 Renewal) is entered into by 
and between the City of Austin, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (City) and Travis County, a 
political subdivision of the State of Texas (County) pursuant to Chapter 791 of the Texas Government 
Code, the Interlocal Cooperation Act. 

RECITALS 

City and County, referred to below as the Parties, entered into the Agreement for an initial term that 
began October 1,2007, and terminated on Sept~ber 30,2008. 

The Agreement allows the Parties to amend the Agreement in writing and to renew the agreement for up 
to five additional terms, subject to written approval of the Parties prior to each renewal. 

The Parties entered into a renewal of the Agreement for a three-month term, which was effective 
October 1, 2008, and expired on December 31, 2008. 

The Parties entered into a subsequent renewal of the Agreement for a nine-month term, which was 
effective on January 1,2009, and expired on September 30,2009. 

The Parties have entered into additional renewals of the Agreement for one-year terms, with the most 
recent renewal being effective on October 1, 2011, and expiring on September 30,2012. 

The Parties wish to renew the Agreement for an additional one-year term, and to make certain 
amendments to the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be received, the Parties agree as 
follows: 

1.0 RENEWAL TERM. 

Pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Agreement, the Parties agree to renew the Agreement for an additional 
one-year term beginning on October 1, 2012 , and continuing through September 30,2013 (2013 
Renewal Term). 

2.0 AGREEMENT FUNDS 

2.1 2013 Renewal Term Funds. The Parties agree that Section 13.1.1 for the 2013 
Renewal Term shall read as follows: 



13.1.1 Fixed Price- 2013 Renewal Term Funds. 

(a) Agreement Funds. In consideration of full and satisfactory performance 
of the services and activities provided under the terms of this Agreement, as amended in 
this document, and subject to other applicable provisions of the Agreement, County shall 
pay City as follows for the 2013 Renewal Term (October 1, 2012 - September 30,2013): 

Total Amount: 

Less Personnel! Administrative Credit: 

Net Amount for 2012 Renewal term: 

$ 2,884,213.00 

$ 58,216.00 

$ 2,825,997.00 

City expressly acknowledges and agrees that the sum stated in this Section 13.1.2 is the 
amount to be paid by County to City for services provided during the 2013 Renewal 
Term unless an increase in the County budget for the 2013 Renewal Term is approved by 
Commissioners Court and this Agreement is appropriately amended. 

(b) Administrative Costs. City and County mutually agree to an administrative 
cost charge/credit under the Agreement as follows: 

(i) City Administrative Costs. County expressly acknowledges and 
agrees that the amount to be paid by County, as stated in this Section 13.1.2, 
includes 6.5 percent for City administrative costs and agrees to pay these 
administrative costs. 

(ii) County Administrative Costs. City expressly acknowledges and 
agrees that the amount to be credited to County under "Personnel Credit," as 
stated in this Section 13.1.2, includes 6.5 percent for County administrative costs 
and agrees to credit these administrative costs to County on top of projected 
personnel costs. 

2.2 Section 13.2. Payments to City. The Parties agree to delete Section 13.2, "Payments to 
City," and substitute the following: 

13.2.1 Quarterly Payments. County shall pay City quarterly based upon actual 
expenditures incurred by City during each calendar quarter, which shall be calculated as 
described in Section 13.3 (as amended in this Amendmentl2013 Renewal). County shall submit 
payment to City within thirty (30) calendar days following receipt of an invoice. 

13.2.2 Quarterly Invoice Dates. City shall provide a written invoice to County by the 
following dates: 

(a) January 31 (for the period October 1,20012 through December 31,2012) 
(b) April 30 (for period January 1, 2013, through March 31, 2013) 
(c) July 31 (for period April 1, 2013, through June 30, 2013) 
(d) November 30 (for period July 1, 2013, through September 30, 2013) 



13.2.3 Quarterly Invoice. On or before the first day of the months set forth in Section 
13.2.2, City shall provide County with quarterly invoices utilizing the form attached to this 
Amendmentl2013 Renewal as Attachment E. 

4.0 ATTACHMENTS 

4.1 Attachment B, Animal Services. The Parties agree that Attachment B, "Animal 
Services," and all references to provision of services related to that attachment are deleted from this 
Agreement, with the understanding that those services will be covered by a separate agreement to be 
entered into between the Parties. 

4.2 Attachment C, Financial and Performance Reports/Form. City and County agree 
that Attachment C shall be replaced for the 2013 Renewal Term with Attachment C 2013 Renewal 
Term Financial and Performance Reports/Form, which is attached to and made a part of this 2013 
Renewal for all purposes as Exhibit 1. 

4.3 Attachment E - Invoice Form. City and County agree that Attachment E shall be 
replaced for the 2012 Renewal Term with Attachment E 2013 Renewal Term Invoice Form, which is 
attached to and made a part of this 2013 Renewal for all purposes as Exhibit 2. 

s.o INCORPORATION 

City and County hereby incorporate this 2013 Renewal into the Agreement, as previously amended, and 
ratify all terms and conditions of the Agreement that are not amended above. City and County agree 
that the Agreement, as previously amended and as amended above, constitutes the entire agreement 
between the Parties with regard to public health services and supersedes any prior understanding or 
written or oral agreements or representations between the Parties. 

6.0 EFFECTIVE DATE 

The Parties agree that this 2013 Renewal shall be effective on October 1,2012, following signature by 
an authorized representative of each Party. 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

By: ----------------
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
Title: ---------
Date: ------------

Date: 
---~r'-~+-'-"'---



ATTACHMENT A 

WORK STATEMENT 

PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 

I. PROGRAM SERVICES DESCRIPTION 

A. General Description. The City of Austin and Travis County operate programs designed to promote 
and protect the public health. The protection of the public health is best served by a collaborative approach in 
monitoring and combating community health problems and hazards that occur without regard to jurisdictional 
boundaries. The provision of essential public health services by the City and the provision of the same or 
similar services under agreement with the County for the provision of County services, in combination with 
County resources made available is intended to result in a service delivery that is effective, efficient and 
accessible. 

B. General Reporting Requirements. City and County agree to work together to develop improved 
reporting requirements as may be mutually agreed to by the Parties throughout the term(s) of this Agreement in 
order to better evaluate and develop the most efficient and effective provision of services to the community as a 
whole. 

C. Outreach. County agrees to be a distribution source for all materials, communications, etc., related to 
outreach and publicity for those programs provided by City under this Agreement and described in this 
Attachment A and Attachment B, as applicable. City agrees to provide County with copies of all materials to be 
utilized, and with relevant schedules, locations, plans and other information that will allow County to participate 
in educating County clients as to the availability of services provided under this Agreement. 

ll. PURPOSE 

The purpose of the Agreement is to allow the City and the County to combine resources to provide services to 
protect the entire population of the City of Austin and Travis County from disease by, among other things, 

• promoting community-wide wellness 
• preventing disease; and 
• protecting the Community from infectious diseases, environmental hazards, and epidemics 

through one public health system of service delivery for the City and County. 

ill. STATEMENT OF RESPONSmILITY - CITY 

Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the City shall perform the following services: 

A. HEALTH AUTHORITY. 

1. City shall provide the services of the Health Authority as described in Section 121.024 of the 
Texas Health & Safety Code, as such law may be amended from time to time. 

2. The Health Authority, or his designee, if a designee is permitted by law, will serve as hearing officer 
for environmental health laws and ordinances and other ordinances and rules as applicable. 

3. Alternate Health Authority(ies) may be designated as necessary to act while the Health Authority is 
absent or incapacitated according to applicable law. 



4. Commissioners Court shall approve the appointment of the Health Authority and the designation of 
any alternate Health Authority(ies). City will provide County with notice of the proposed appointment or re
appointment of the Health Authority and the designation of any altemate(s). Such notice shall include the 
documentation of the individual's qualifications, necessary Oath of Office and other relevant information. The 
City shall ensure that procedures are in place to prevent duplication of authority .and, make information available 
to TClllISVS upon request as to any transfer of authority between authorized individuals. 

IV. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. Services to be provided under this Agreement are limited to activities occurring in those areas 
within the jurisdiction of Travis County, or as specifically described herein. 

V. COST METHODOLOGY 

By April 1 of each term year the Agreement is in force, City will provide to County the information necessary to 
prepare and compile the ensuing fiscal year's budget so that annual costs and expenses associated with the 
perfonnance of the Agreement may be appropriately considered and budgeted. Information will be provided 
pursuant to all applicable terms of this Agreement. 

Public Health Services are not always individual-client focused. A population-based delivery model is used to 
provide services related to the prevention of disease transmission and spread. The focus of public health is to 
protect the entire population from disease, including but not limited to 

• Promoting community-wide wellness 
• Preventing disease; and 
• Protecting the Community from infectious diseases, environmental hazards, and epidemics. 

The annual fixed price for public health services, will be allocated based on the Travis County population 
percentage, except for the following areas of Environmental and Consumer Health Unit (ECHU): 1) 
Information, Referral & Pennitting and 2) Health & Safety Code Compliance; for these areas the fixed price 
will be calculated using a combination of the Travis County population percentage and a cost allocation method 
based on the number of County food establishments in the unincorporated areas of Travis County. The Parties 
agree that the population based percentages will be updated annually based on current figures. The Parties agree 
that the Travis County population percentage calculation and the cost allocation methodology set forth in this 
Section V. applies to the Initial Term and the first Renewal Term of this Agreement, but is subject to re
negotiation as to any later Renewal Terms(s) based, in part, upon performance data received related to each 
Term. 

For the categories of 1) Health and Safety Code Compliance and 2) Information Referral & Pennitting, County's 
portion of the fixed cost will be allocated as follows: 

a. Eighty Percent (80%) of County's portion will be based on cost and the % of fixed 
food establishments in the unincorporated areas of the County: 

.80 X Cost X 

# of pennitted food establishments 
located in unincoll'orated Travis County 
total # of permitted food establishments 
in Austinffravis County 



.-

Form #3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
2013 City of Austin/Travis County Public Health Interlocal 

Date prepared: 8/31/2012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: Austinlfravis County lllISD Program: Communicable Disease 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 

Primary goal and objective of providing Sexually Transmitted Disease (STD), Tuberculosis (TB), and HIV 
Prevention and Outreach Education is to prevent disease morbidity and to protect the community from the 
spread of these communicable diseases. 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 

The SID clinic and HIV Outreach Prevention serves all clients 13 years of age and older. The TB clinic 
serves all clients requiring evaluation for TB infection and active disease. Individuals are not required to 
provide proof of residency or income, and no one is refused services due to their inability to pay for the 
services. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County fUnded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your services and how they are 
delivered to clients. 

SID comprehensive clinical services are provided at the RBJ Health Center, by three full-time Nurse 
Practitioners and two on-call staff. Our business hours are Monday-Friday 8am-Spm. This includes testing 
for HIV (rapid testing), syphilis, gonorrhea and chlamydia. In addition, if a client presents with symptoms of 
herpes, we can test for herpes at no additional cost. Treatment is also provided at no additional cost for 
syphilis, gonorrhea, chlamydia and genital warts (HPV). In addition, services are also provided at the Del 
Valle Correctional Facility two half days a week (Mon. and Wed. afternoons) and Gardner Betts Juvenile 
Detention Center one half day a week (Tuesday morning). 

In addition our HIV OutreachlPrevention staff provides HIV and STD testing in satellite locations 
throughout the city and county to make testing accessible to all residents; and they are able to take their 
mobile outreach van to target areas with high risk populations. 

Comprehensive TB clinical services are provided at the RBJ Health Center Monday-Friday 8 a.m,
Sp.rn, by one Physician, one LVN, three Registered Nurses (RNs) and one radiology technologist, . This 
includes medical evaluation, on-site x-ray and treatment for latent TB infection and active TB disease at no 
charge. It is the standard of care to provide directly-observed therapy (whereby all on treatment for active TB 
are observed taking their medications by a public health staff person) in the field for all active/infectious TB 
cases and for those who are suspected of having active TB (are pending lab confirmation) by field staff at 
hours and locations agreed upon by the client and 4 outreach staff, which is most often done outside of 
normal business hours. A weekly TB screening clinic is conducted for the general public one afternoon a 
week, in which TB screening tests are provided to individuals needing TB screening for school, employment 
or other reasons. In addition, if a clearance chest x-ray is needed for entry into a rehab facility or for 
immigration applications, due to history of a positive TB screening test and/or previous treatment, a 
clearance x-ray can also be provided. 

Public health follow-up for newly-identified HIV, Syphilis and TB cases/suspects is conducted by 
five Disease Intervention Specialists and two TB Contact Investigators. Follow-up activities include 
interviewing clients to obtain necessary information on potentially-exposed individuals in order to conduct 
proper contact investigations and reduce the spread of disease. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg. 1 of4 



Social Work intervention is provided as needed on a case-by-case basis for SID and TB clinic 
clients by one social worker. In addition, through state grant funds, we are able to provide HIV Prevention 
Case Management for individuals identified as HIV positive who continue to engage in high-risk behavior, 
as well as HIV Medical Case management for individuals who are identified as being HIV positive who may 
be homeless, pediatric cases and pregnant women. 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. lfyou are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan for increasing collaboration? 

We work in collaboration with ATCIC-CARE Program to provide HIV and Syphilis testing at the 
Del Valle Correctional facility and actively participate in the HIV Prevention Community Task Force to 
maximize resources and avoid duplication of services in the community. 

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by funding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Sources (Travis younty 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of unduplicated clients served by the 2,906 7,738 10,644 
STD clinic 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 2 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of unduplicated clients served by the 1,055 2,813 3,868 
TBclinic 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT#3 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of STD patient visits seen in clinic. 3,549 9,451 13,000 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 4 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of STD tests provided in outreach 1,092 2,908 4,000 
settings 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 5 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

N umber of TB clinic patient visits 3,003 7,997 11,000 

Travis County Form #3 Updated April 20 II pg.20f4 



-. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 6 ~ Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of units of social work service 7,371 19,629 27,000 
provided to BIV clients (units are measured 
in 15 minute increments) 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 7 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number ofHIV prevention counseling 355 945 1,300 
sessions provided 

(If approvedfor additional Output measures. copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome peiformance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding 12-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. Iran 
Out£'ome will NOT be reported every quarter, in the right column indicate for which quarterly report(s) you 
WILL be reporting that mea/,ure (for example, you mig/.t report for Q2 and Q4 OI.ly). 

Total Prol!f8lIl If not reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 1 Annual Goal every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of clients seen in STD clinic 13.000 
Total number of clients requesting SID services (# seen + # turned away) 14,444 
Percent of clients who come into the SID clinic who are examined, tested 90% 
and/or treated the same day 

Total Program If not reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 2 Annual Goal every Quarter, in 
which _Quarter(s)? 

Number of TB cases completing therapy 70 
Number ofTB cases closed (# completed therapy + # lost before completing 70 
treatment} 
Percent of m cases completing therapy in 12 months 100% 

Total Program Ifnot reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 3 Annual Goal ~ Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of m contacts fully evaluated (numerator) 
Total number ofTB contacts identified (denominator) 
Percentage ofm contacts evaluated (outcome rate) 90% 

Total Program If!1Q1 reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 4 Annual Go~l ~ Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of clients in HN program who return for post-test counseling 1820 
(numerator) 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 201 1 pg. 3 of4 



Total number of clients in liN program who received prevention counseling) 2000 
(denominator) 
Percentage of clients in liN program who received prevention counseling and 91% 
returned forp_ost-test counseling (outcome rate) 

(If approved for additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

7. Community planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 

Staff participates in the following: liN Return to Care Collaboration, HIV Prevention Community 
Task Force, and liN Provider Network Group 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

Monthly reports are submitted to Unit Manager and lllISD Budget, and semiannual reports are also 
completed to look at program performance and submitted to grantors. 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 

Chart reviews are conducted semiannually, incidents are investigated and systems/processes are 
evaluated to determine if changes need to be made (all submitted to Division QI Coordinator). Clients and 
staff are able to voice concerns/complaints and they are investigated to determine if system/process changes 
are necessary, and annual customer satisfaction surveys are conducted and the feedback is used to improve 
services. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 201 I pg. 4 of4 



.... 

FOlm#3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
2013 City of Austinffravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/31/2012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: A~stin!fravis County HHSD Program: Injury Prevention 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 

The AusdnITravis County Health & Human Services Department's Injury Prevention (lP) Program is dedicated 
to improving community health and well-being by building momentum for effective injury prevention. Injury 
prevention means taking action to prevent injuries before they occur. The Program's work is characterized by a strong 
commitment to community participation and promotion of equitable health outcomes among all social and economic 
groups. Our mission is to reduce the frequency and severity of injuries by adopting evidence-based programs and by 
assisting community partners with incorporating injury prevention strategies into their regular on-going efforts. 

The first step toward building a stronger injury prevention program in Travis County is to assess the injury problem 
locally. Ethnicity, age, and sex are important variables which are necessary to better understand who, how, and why 
people are injured. For every fatality due to an injury, there are many more whose injuries have a wide range of 
severity. Additionally, injuries that result in morbidity have a wide range of impacts on the individual, families, the 
health care system, etc. 

Injuries have a substantial impact on the lives of individuals, their families and communities, and society. During 2005, 
in the U.S., a total of 173,753 injury-related deaths occurred, and during 2006, an estimated 29,821,159 persons with 
nonfatal injuries were treated in U S hospital emergency departments. Injuries, including unintentional injuries, 
homicide, and suicide, are the leading cause of death for persons aged 1-44 years in Travis Co. and nationwide. 

One of the most relevant means of assessing injury data is through Years of Potential Life Lost (YPPL), which takes 
into account the age of victims as well as the cause of death. YPPL is an estimate of the average years a person would 
have lived if he or she had not died prematurely. In YPLL in Texas, injuries account for 30.7% or 288,112 YPLL 
among Texans who die as a result of injuries. Injuries are the leading category in YPLL. 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 

All Travis County residents are eligible. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County funded services and how they are prOVided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your services and how they are 
delivered to clients. 

Car Seats: 
The Child Passenger Safety Fitting Stations provides monthly servicing totaling about 600 seats collectively per year. 
Seats are provided for free to clients who need them and the stations are held in conjunction with the AlTC HHSD 
Neighborhood Centers which provides the site and staff for the monthly event. The IP program also conducts classroom 
presentations on car seat safety and a 32 hour Child Passenger Safety Certification training to local partners to certify 
them as Child Passenger Safety Technicians. The program is an active member of Safe Kids Austin Child Passenger 
Safety Subcommittee. 

Bike Safety: 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20J I pg. 10f3 



The IP staff is certified by the League of American Bicyclists as a League Cycling Instructor and conducts Youth 
Instructor Training quarterly to school staff, nonprofits, agencies, and individuals to provide them with knowledge, 
skills and abilities to conduct a community bicycle rodeo in their community. The program also conducts bike safety 
classes and bike skills rodeos for elementary schools 

Infant Suffocation: 
IP staff are active participants in Safe Kids Austin Safe Sleep Task Force where they analyze infant suffocation deaths 
to determine exact causes and identify prevention activities. 

Drowning Prevention: 
The IP program also has active members of the Central Texas Water Safety Coalition where they complete analysis of 
drowning deaths to determine exact causes and identify prevention activities. 

Child Fatalities: 
The program works with the Travis County Child Fatality Review Team that reviews all child deaths in Travis County. 

Childhood Injury 

' J 

This program focuses on bringing together stakeholders for Travis and surrounding Counties to identify specific causes 
of unintentional injuries and provides networking opportunities with partner agencies to strategize and implement injury 
prevention activities for children. 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. If you are not currently col/aborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan for increasing collaboration? 

The IP Program shares information and partners to provide services with the following groups/agencies: 
Travis County Underage Drinking Prevention Program; Safe Kids Austin; Travis County Child Fatality Review Team; 
Travis County Medical Examiners Office; Bike Texas; Austin Cycling Association; Austin EMS; LCRA; American 
Red Cross; Tx DSHS Safe Riders Program; Safe Kids Austin; and Dell Children's Medical Center 

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by funding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Sources (Travis COWIty 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of health promotion and education 250 2250 2500 
encounters in the area of injury prevention 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 2 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of health promotionlbealth education 5 45 50 
activities or programs conducted and/or facilitated in 
the area of injury prevention 

(If approved for additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Perfonnance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20 II pg.20f3 



Please enter the outcome peiformance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding i2-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. Iran 
Outcome will NOT he reported every quarter. in tl.e right column indicate for which quarterly report(.~) you 
WILL he reporting that measure (for example, you might report for Q2 and Q4 only). 

Total Program If not reported 

Total Program Perfonnance - OUTCOME # 1 Annual Goal ~ Quarter, in 
which Qualter(s)? 

Number of community changes in the area of injury prevention 10 

(If approved for additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

7. Conununity planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 

The Injury Prevention Program collaborates on a regular basis with a number of key groups and agencies in Travis 
County to share infonnation related to important iIijury prevention information as well as planning and coordinating 
injury prevention activities and events. 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 

• Performance evaluation: 
Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

The program provides surveys to clients after services are delivered. 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 
The Injury Prevention Program reports as part of the department's Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) 
program. The program meets regularly on CQI and reports outcomes as required by the departmental plan. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg.30f3 



... 

Form #3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
2013 City of Austinlfravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/31/2012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: Austinlfravis County IllISD Program: Immunizations 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 

To improve inununization coverage levels and to prevent diseases which are vaccine-preventable. 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 

All clients in Travis County are potentially served through the Shots-for-Tots and Big Shots clinics and 
Vaccines for Children (VFC) community providers. Eligibility guidelines follow the Texas Department of 
State Health Services (DSHS) VFC) eligibility requirements. All other program outcomes are primarily 
DSHS grant driven, these include: public health education and outreach events, technical and administrative 
support to VFC providers, mass flu clinic events, and collaborative efforts with the Independent School 
Districts during the back to school period. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County fonded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your services and how they are 
delivered to clients. 

Shots for TotslBig Shots: There are two immunization clinics located within (and in close proximity to) high 
needllow income zip codes. There are a total of two nurses at each facility and the program has the capacity 
to serve approximately 18,000 clients annually (children and adults). Children on average receive 2.9 doses 
per visit; adults 2.4. 

Public Education and Awareness: The program supports over 15 community public health fairs and 
significant functions annually and collaborates with partners to raise awareness about the importance of 
immunizations and vaccine preventable diseases. 

High Risk Populations: The program provides on-site direct service to very high risk and high need clients 
seeking care, in collaboration with the HHSD SID clinics. 

Perinatal Hepatitis B Prevention: The program provides specific harm reduction outreach to pregnant 
mothers at risk for transmitting Hepatitis B to their children. A Nurse (RN) Senior provides case 
management to clients in addition to providing technical assistance and educational sessions to local 
hospitals. 

Vaccines for Children: Vaccines for Children is a federal program that guarantees vaccine availability for 
uninsured and low-income children. Vaccine is distributed to enrolled providers free of charge. HHSD 
provides technical assistance and support to 100 Travis County Vaccines for Children providers. Over 1000 
doses of vaccine are transferred between providers by HHSD staff each month. The program provides 
special training and assistance to ensure proper storage and handling techniques to providers. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20 II pg. 10f4 



Mass Flu Clinics: The program plans and implements on average five mass flu clinics throughout Travis 
County. Two of these clinics are targeted toward county-centric population centers (Le. Del Valle, and 
Pflugerville Fire Hall). 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. lfyou are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan/or increasing collaboration? 

Over the years the program has established a series of collaborative relationships. The program takes the 
lead in disseminating current information and news related to immunizations to the community through our 
partners. This is done primarily electronically via email; however the program meets at least annually and 
usually biannually with partners in preparation for back-to-school and flu clinic efforts. The program relies 
on collaborations with these partners to carry out the joint mission to diminish the number of vaccine 
preventable diseases in the City and County. The current list of collaborative partners includes: Blue Cross 
Blueshield/Da//as; Peoples Community Clinic; HHSD internal partners (public health nurses; STD clinic); 
Texas DSHS; Sanofi Pasteur; Eanes lSD; G/oxo; MedImmune; Sldppy Van/Mamie Paul Specialty Care 
Center/Dell Children's Medical Center; Lago Vista ISD; lSD/Manor; Gloxo Smithkline; Seton PR; lSD/Dei 
Valle/ Health Services; lSD/Austin; Austin Care Van; St. David; Community Health Foundation (SDCHF); 
Austin Community College; lSD/Pflugerville; Seton clinics; lSD/Del Valle/Health Services; Austin Regional 
Clinic; 211-United Way Capital Area; Austin Diagnostic Clinics; Serene Hills Elementary; Seton PR; lSD 
Austin; Merck; Texas Medical Association; UT School o/Public Health (Micro-biology). 

UT Public Health Partnership: The immunization program has strong ties to the UT School of Micro
biology; as our program has been working in partnership with the School of Public Health in accepting 
students as part of an internship program. Each year students compete from this honors program at UT and 
are selected to work on unique and challenging immunization related issues. Past research has provided a 
series of "best practice" findings for the program from around Texas and the U.S. 

SID Unit Partnership: Also noted above, the program has a very successful partnership with the SID unit in 
which together we serve minimally I 000 clients in need of vaccination services. These clients present to the 
clinicians in the SID unit and provide the best opportunity for our public health resources to prevent 
morbidity and mortality; however, at this time, due to space and nurse resource limitations, we estimate we 
are only able to meet 15% - 20% of this need. 

Homeless Health Fair: For the first time in 2011 the program provided free immuriization services at the 
homeless health fair. The program was able to provide nearly 100 free flu shots and other necessary 
preventative information to this hard to reach and high need population. 

Mass Flu Clinics: In preparation for annual flu clinics the immunization program has been successful in 
collaborating with Travis County Expo Center as a venue for administration of free flu vaccine to the 
community. This site is ideal because of its geographical location and within the County as well, it's familiar 
to the public, and provides one of the best environments for the efficient drive-thru clinics, which is ideal for 
practicing emergency preparedness in the event of needing to dispense mass prophylaxis to the public. The 
program also collaborates with numerous other facilities to provide mass clinic vaccinations, including the 
Virginia Brown Recreation Center, Pflugerville Hall, Rosewood-Zaragosa Center and other Parks and 
Recreation facilities. 

Back-to-School: Prior to the back-to-school rush the immunization program hosts a collaborative meeting 
with the local independent schools in Travis County. The purpose of this meeting is to communicate 
resources and expectations; the meeting also helps the community to coordinate resources more effectively. 

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 

Travis County Fonn #13 updated April 2011 pg.2of4 



Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by fUnding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Soyrces (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of client visits (children) at Shots for 12,000 
Tots and Big Shots clinics 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 2 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of client visits (adults) at Big Shots 3,000 
clinics 

(If approved/or additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the co"esponding i2-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. Iran 
Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter, in the right coillmn indicate for which quarterly report(s) you 
WILL be reporting that measure (for example,you might reportfor Q2 and Q4 only). 

Total Program If not reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 1 Annual Goal every Quarter, in 
which Quartens)? 

Annually 

% of referred Perinatal H~ B clients who receive follow-uQ education within 100 
60 dayS of referral 

(If approved/or additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

7. Community planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 

The Immunization Program collaborates on a regular basis with a nwnber of key non-governmental 
organizations and community-based organizations in Travis County to provide information related to 
important immunization information as well as planning and coordinating flu and back-to-school events. 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated Apri12011 pg. 3 of4 



Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s} or questionnaire(s} are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

The program provides surveys to all clients at the immunization clinics; in addition the program actively 
solicits input via surveys from the immunization collaborative group; school/day care audit clients; VFC 
providers and at various public health events (i.e. flu clinics). The program summarizes this information in 
an annual report as part of its CQI reporting requirements. Surveys evaluate a wide array of services (to 
internal and external customers); but in general we evaluate if clients report they were treated with respect 
(yes/no); and each bas at least one question regarding how satisfied they were with the services (utilizing a 
Likert scale). 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 

As noted above, the immunization program actively reports as part ofthe department's CQI (Continuous 
Quality Improvement) program. The conceptual framework of the Continuous Quality Improvement 
Program centers on broad vantage points from which total delivery of services can be viewed. Each 
parameter views service from a different vantage point. Each of these separate perspectives plays an 
important role in the total delivery of services within the Immunization Program. Parameters of Service to 
be monitored and evaluated are: 

1. Client Record System 
2. Fiscal 
3. Customer Service 
4. Social and Clinical Services 
5. Client/Staff Interactions 

The program meets regularly on CQI and reports outcomes as required by the departmental plan. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20 II pg. 4of4 



Fonn#3: PROGRAMWORKSTATEMENT 
2013 City of AustirvTravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/3112012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: AustinfTravis County IDISD Program: Office of Vital Records 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 

The Local Registrar ensures proper registration of every birth, death, and fetal death within Austinffravis 
County to record occurrence of event and to capture demographic and medical data used in public health 
planning. [HSC§191.026] 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 

The OVR office serves the general public without consideration of residency, income level, or age; the 
medical community; funeral home/mortuary representatives; city, county, state, and federal agencies and 
organizations. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County funded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your services and how they are 
delivered to clients. 

The AustinfTravis County Office of Vital Records (OVR) is the Local Registrar for the City of Austin. The 
jurisdiction follows the full purpose city limits. Currently, the City of Austin boundaries extend from Travis 
County into Bastrop, Hays and Williamson Counties. Consequently, OVR registers, archives, and issues 
certified copies of birth, death, and fetal death records; and reports demographic and medical data for the 
City of Austin area that falls in Travis, Hays and Williamson Counties. Supplemental to these duties, OVR 
offers multi-level technical assistance to the general public as well as social workers in order to facilitate 
navigating the legal systems associated with the modification and/or proper use of these documents. These 
systems include issues on paternity, dual citizenship, apostilles, adoptions, amendments, name changes, 
jurisdictional boundaries, and more. 

Technical assistance expands to multi-jurisdictional agencies and organizations. One of the most prevalent 
customers is law enforcement representatives who call for verifications on fraud related issues. 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. If you are not cu"entiy collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan for increasing collaboration? 

One primary user of OVR data is the Center's for Disease Control (CDC) that coordinates the 122 Cities 
Wee1dy Mortality Report providing data of deaths, deaths by pneumonia and deaths by influenza. These 
statistics are used to assess the general health of Texas citizens. 

The AffC Local Registrar, the AffC Medical Director, and the Travis County Medical Examiners Office are 
working in tandem to improve demographic and health data reporting in our area through direct contact with 
physicians. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg. 10f3 



." 

OVR further works with federal agencies in their fraud investigations in building cases through associating 
individuals into family groups, providing dates of document purchases, and verifying types of identification 
used to purchase documents. To facilitate immediate contact by law enforcement officials the OVR 
Registrar's direct number is listed on each record issued from this office ensuring that we are informed of 
potential misuses of our documents allowing blocks on future issuance. 

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding ll-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reportedfor your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by jimding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data/or these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of units of service (record processing, 49,370 
reporting, customer transactions and technical 
assistance) delivered by the Vital Records Unit 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 2 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of customer contacts via informational 10,000 
calls and/or referrals processed 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 3 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of records audited, registered and 25,619 
archived I 

(If approved for additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding i2-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. I(an 
Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter, ill the right column indicate for wlaich quarterly report(s) you 
WILL be reporting that measure (for example, you might report for Q2 and Q4 on(v). 

(If approved for additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

7. Community planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 

The office is participates in various committees providing insight and data. One example is the Travis 
County Child Fatality Review Team who uses the data to review all deaths of minors and prepare their 
annual report. The office provides reporting to internal and external customers independently and through 
various means including in partnership with the HHSD epidemiology and public information offices. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20 11 pg. 2 of 3 



8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s} are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

Legal standards are monitored through the DSHS - Vital Statistics Unit through an online survey at 
http://www.dshs.state.tx.us/vs/fieldlhomeILocal-Registrars.doc and onsite visits. Perfonnance measures are 
monitored monthly by the HHSD budget and monitoring units through reporting and on-site audits as well as 
direct supervisory oversight. 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure co"ective actions have been effective. 

OVR uses direct monitoring as well as technical systems to evaluate workflow process. Customers are 
encouraged to complete satisfaction surveys and can always speak to a lead or the supervisor. Feedback is 
used as a training tool. Staff meetings are held quarterly to discuss trends and potential process changes. 

Trnvis County Fonn #3 updated April 201 I pg.30f3 



Form #3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
2013 City of AustinlTravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/31/2012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: Austinffravis County HHSD Program: Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 

The goal of the Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program is to improve adolescent sexual health outcomes within 
Travis County through best practice, direct sexuality education and skill development encounters with youth 
at Travis County Juvenile Detention Facility and throughout Travis County. 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 

Youth and parents served will reside in Travis County. Service providers will serve youth in Travis County. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County fUnded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your sen'ices and how they are 
delivered to clients. 

Our program will provide direct sexuality education and skill development using promising practice curricula 
for youth at Travis County Juvenile Detention Facility and at least one other organization located in Travis 
County (outside of the City of Austin). Contacts with the organization will be sought from Travis County 
staff. 
We will also work to provide ongoing professional development and competency trainings for youth-serving 
service providers, primarily through monthly meetings and the annual Provider Conference of the Healthy 
Youth Partnership, as well as through the Austin Healthy Adolescent Initiative's Learning Community. 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. If you are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan for increasing collaboration? 

Two members of the Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program serve on the steering committee for the Healthy 
Youth Partnership, a community coalition working to improve sexual health outcomes for the Greater Austin 
Area. Through this coalition, we offer monthly trainings for service providers, plan an annual Provider 
Conference, and are in the process of conducting a community-wide needs assessment around teen 
pregnancy prevention. In addition, the Austin Healthy Adolescent Initiative within the Teen Pregnancy 
Prevention Program focuses on collaboration surrounding youth engagement in the community and has it's 
own Leadership Group, comprised of key stakeholders in the community who support the Initiative as well 
as it's projects to increase youth engagement in our community. 

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by fUnding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April2011 pg. lof2 



Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of unduplicated youth clients 100 N/A 100 
served* 

*Currently, we are counting duplicated clients (1000). 
Effective October 1, 2012 we wUl begin counting 
unduplicated clients, as best practice sexual health 
interventions encourage multiple sessions with the same 
troup of students to maximize the effectiveness. 

(If approved for additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Perfonnance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding J 2-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. Iran 
Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter, in the right column indicate for which quarter{v report(s) you 
WILL be reporting that measure (for example, you might report for Q2 and Q4 only). 

Total Program Ifnot reported 

Total Program Perfonnance - OUTCOME # 1 Annual Goal every QUllrter, in 
which_Quarter(s)? 

Number of youth reporting increase in knowledge or change in attitude on at 38 
least two questions on the_post-evaluation survey (numerator) 
Total number of youth evaluated (denominator) 50 
Percentage of youth reporting increase in knowledge or change in attitude on at 76% 
least two evaluation questions (outcome rate) 

(If approved for additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

7. Community planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 

The Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program is actively involved in the Steering Committee for the Healthy 
Youth Partnership; whose activities include an annual Provider Conference and a community-wide teen 
pregnancy prevention needs assessment to be completed in January 2013. 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
sun'ey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

Post-Test and satisfaction surveys are administered by the health educator to the youth groups at the end of 
each presentation series. Parents and service providers receive satisfaction surveys administered by the 
meeting facilitator at the end of each meeting. 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 

The Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program conducts quarterly continuous quality improvement meetings to 
review evaluation results and assess the effectiveness of programming. In addition, the BrdsNBz Text 
Messaging Lines Advisory Team meets monthly to perform quality assurance checks on the text lines. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg. 2of2 



Form#3: PROGRAMWORKSTATEMENT 
for 2013 City of AustinlTravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/31/2012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: Austinffravis County HHSD Program: Chronic Disease Prevention and Control 

1. Program goals and objectives: 

. The Chronic Disease Prevention and Control Program (CDPC Program) activities align with the 
HHSD Business Plan Goal for Health Services: Promote a healthy community by preventing 
chronic and communicable diseases and promoting improvements in 
sociaVeconomiclenvironmental factors that will result in an improved overall health status and a 
reduction of health disparities. The CDPC Program exists to inspire people to take steps to adopt 
healthy lifestyles through promoting and modeling healthy behaviors, preventing and managing 
chronic disease, and promoting policy, systems and environmental change 

2. Program clients served: 
Since strategies are policy, systems and environmental changes, the target population is jurisdiction
wide. However, all service-based strategies are targeted to those individuals, primarily adults and 
youth age 5-17 years old, who suffer disproportionately from chronic disease or risk factors for 
chronic disease. Strategies are targeted in areas of Travis County with high rates of health 
disparities, and include more low socioeconomic health status individuals. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County funded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide 
enough detail so that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of 
your services and how they are delivered to clients. 

Healthy Places, Healthy People-Community Transformation 

Healthy Places, Healthy People addresses the needs of Austinffravis County with special focus on 
the populations that experience health disparities. Programs are implemented across multiple sectors 
addressing where people work, play, learn and live. These categories are Community, School, 
Worksite, Healthcare, Media and Disparities. 

Tobacco Prevention and Control 

The tobacco prevention and control efforts subscribe to the Centers for Disease Control model for 
comprehensive tobacco control programs with an emphasis on policy, systems and environmental 
changes. Program goals are: prevent youth initiation of tobacco, increase cessation among youth 
and adults, ensure compliance with all tobacco laws, eliminate secondhand smoke, reduce health 
disparities and ensure sustainability of the community coalition. 

Community Diabetes Program 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg. lofS 



The Chronic Disease Prevention and Control Program implements eight community 
walking/exercise groups through Walk Texas, provides 24 Diabetes Empowerment Education 
Program classes and 12 Road to Health diabetes prevention classes, and provides continuing 
education for 130 health care providers in the Travis County community. 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. lfyou are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan for increasing collaboration? 

'" 

AJTCHHSD relies on its network of Coalition and non-Coalition partner agencies in order to 
integrate our services into the existing network of public health and social services in Travis 
County. This allows us to be most effective and avoid duplication of services. Collaborative efforts 
include the Leadership Team which provides guidance on key initiatives; the Chronic Disease 
Coalition, the Central Texas Diabetes Coalition; the AustinlTravis County Tobacco Control 
Coaltion; and the Integrated Care Collaborative which ATCHHSD is a member. These groups have 
diverse, multi sector representation of community leaders representing all of Travis County 

5. OUTPUT Perfonnance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by funding source and alleast one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of Public Health Activities 90 30 120 

Definition: A one-time, planned learning 
experience based on sound theories that 
provide individuals, groups, and 
communities the opportunity to acquire 
information and the skills needed to make 
quality health decisions. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 2 County Funding (Travis 

Annual Sources County + All 
Goal Annual Goal Other) Annual 

Goal 

Number of Public Health 4200 15800 20,000 

Encounters 
Definition: A one-time, planned 
learning experience based on sound 
theories that provide individuals, 
groups, and communities the 
opportunity to acquire information and • 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg. 2 of5 



the skills needed to make quality 
health decisions. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
County Funding (Travis 
Annual Sources County + All 

OUTPUT #3 Goal Annual Goal Other) Annual 
Goal 

Number of Community Changes 20 10 30 
Definition: New or modified program, 
practice, environmental, systems or policy in 
the community created through working with 
community partners, agencies/organizations, 
or other HHSD programs which may last six 
months or longer. 

(If approvedJor additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reported Jor your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding 12-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. Ifan 
Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter, in the right "olumn indicate for w/.ich quarterly report(!o) you 
WILL be reporting tllat measure (for example, you mig/.t ,.eport for Q2 and Q4 only). 

7. Community planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 

The Chronic Disease Prevention and Control Program has implemented several planning activities to develop 
grant applications, plan program strategies and interventions, media messages, to identify collaboration 
opportunities. These activities have included partner surveys, key informant surveys, focus groups and 
telephone surveys, and employee surveys. These efforts have informed the Obesity Strategic Plan, grant 
applications for the Community Transformation Grant and the Communities Putting Prevention to Work, the 
Live Tobacco Free Austin campaign, and multiple tobacco-free community changes. 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program 's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

The Chronic Disease Prevention and Control Program evaluation plan assesses the immediate, 
short-term, and long-term impact of mUltiple, broad-reaching strategies on mortality and morbidity due 
to chronic disease and chronic disease risk factors in Austin and Travis County. The goals of the 
evaluation are to use data to demonstrate progress toward program goals during their implementation, as 
well as evidence of program performance and public health effectiveness. The core evaluation plan 
includes both process and outcome evaluation. The process evaluation plan will regularly monitor for 
sufficient forward progress and ongoing program improvement. By monitoring ongoing and future 
activities and interaction of these activities among program objectives, ATCHHSD periodically assesses 
that interventions are timely, sufficiently staffed, and appropriate to the target population. ATCHHSD 
relates the information gleaned from this process evaluation back to programmatic staff, stakeholders, 
and community partners in order to optimize potential midcourse corrections when necessary. The 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April2011 pg. 3 of 5 



outcome-based evaluation entails analysis of data from multiple sources to assess changes in the 
prevalence of risk behaviors and attitudes, trends in mortality and morbidity of chronic disease, and 
implementation of policies to combat the burden of chronic disease. 

A TCHHSD uses a combination of ongoing data resources including vital statistics data, hospital 
discharge data, and adult and youth behavior surveys, to track trends in chronic disease mortality and 
morbidity, as well as activity-specific surveys to gauge behaviors and attitudes toward program policies 
in the community. ATCHHSD works with community partners to report on ongoing program 
implementation, including development of policies, execution of strategies, and progress of activities. 
A TCHHSD utilizes media marketing reports to evaluate the impact of counter-advertising in the 
community. 

For the long-term analysis of overall impact of strategies, ATCHHSD analyzes overall trends in 
data on mortality, hospitalizations, and cancer. The Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) 
maintains vital statistics data, including mortality data, hospital discharge data, and the cancer registry, 
all of which are available at the local level. These data tend to not be timely - with a lag of between 3 
years (mortality data) to one year (hospital discharge data) - but have the advantage of standardization 
in data collection and analytic methods, which make them attractive choices for comparisons across and 
within communities and over time. 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April2011 pg. 4of5 



·' 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 

The Chronic Disease Prevention and Control program actively reports as part of the department's 
CQI (Continuous Quality Improvement) program. The conceptual framework of the Continuous 
Quality Improvement Program centers on broad vantage points from which total delivery of 
services can be viewed. Each parameter views service from a different vantage point. Each of 
these separate perspectives plays an important role in the total delivery of services within the 
Chronic Disease Prevention and Control Program. Parameters of Service to be monitored and 
evaluated are: 

1. Financial Accounting 
2. Customer Service 
3. Incident Reporting 
4. Safety Training 
5. Health EducationlProgram Coordination 
6. Supervision 
7. Cultural Competency 
8. Ethics 
9. Records Management 
10. Communication 

The program meets regularly on CQI and reports outcomes as required by the departmental plan. 

Travis County Form #3 updated April 20 II pg. 50f5 



Form#3: PROGRAMWORKSTATEMENT 
2013 City of Austinffravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/3112012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: Austinffravis County lllISD Program: Environmental Health Services 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 
AustinlTravis County HHSD operates programs designed to promote and protect the public health. The 
protection of the public health is best served by a coliaborative approach in monitoring and combating 
community health problems and hazards that occur without regard to jurisdictional boundaries. The 
provision of essential public health services by the City and the provision of the same or similar services 
under agreement with the County for the provision of County services, in combination with-County 
resources made available is intended to result in a service delivery that is effective, efficient and accessible. 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 
- Travis County Residences wanting to adopt or foster a child, day cares and elderly care 
-Any establishment located in Travis County, not under a local municipality rule, in operation that stores, 
prepares, packages, sen-es, vends or other wise provides food for human consumption and any element of 
the operation whether it is conducted in a mobile, stationary, temporary or permanent facility or location; 
where consumption is on or off the premises; and regardless if there is a charge for the food 

-Any pool used for public use located in Travis Co. 
-Travis County resident complaints concerning any general environmental or public nuisance occurring 
within Travis County 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County funded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your services and how they are 
delivered to clients. 
The Consumer and Community Protection program administratively performs inspections and investigates 
complaints relating to various state laws and local codes in the unincorporated areas of Travis County and 
within some less-populated Municipalities within Travis County. Staff Sanitarians inspect restaurants, 
grocery stores, food manufacturers, mobile food vendors, temporary event food vendors and custodial care 
foodservices. Request annual environmental health and safety inspections of custodial care facilities and 
public schools are also conducted. 

In addition, general environmental complaints involving improper disposal of solid waste, high grass and 
weeds, animal pens, junk and abandoned vehicles, substandard buildings, and other public health/public 
nuisance issues are invested. . 

Routine and requested inspections, and complaints investigated by the program include: 
• Retail Food Establishment Permitting, Inspection, and Investigations 
• Food Products Permitting, Inspection, and Investigations 
• Food-borne Dlness Investigations, food sanitation investigations 
• General Environmental Related 

o Public and Semi-Public Swimming Pools and Spas Permitting, Inspection and 
Investigation 

o Custodial Care Environmental Health ~nd Safety Inspections 
o Junkyard and Automotive Wrecking and Salvage-yard Permitting. Inspection and 

Investigations 
o School Physical Plant Inspection - Public and Private Schools 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April2011 pg. 1 on 



". ~ 
• Public Nuisance Complaint Investigations - high grass and weeds, improper disposal of solid waste, 

junk and abandoned vehicles on private property, dangerous buDdings, odors, fUes, stagnant water, 
exposed wastewater/sewage related to foodservice or package treatment plants 

• Public Nuisance Abatement - Abatement of nuisances on private property when property owners are 
either unwilling or unable 

• Miscellaneous Health Related Inspections - Funeral homes, cemeteries, crematoriums, mass 
gatherings, flea markets, farmers markets, and others. 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. lfyou are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your planfor increasing collaboration? 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality - Water Quality, Environmental Nuisances 
Texas Department of Family and Protective Services - Daycares, Schools, Adoptions, Foster Cares 
Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services - Group Homes, Nursing Homes, Senior Centers 
Texas Department of State Health Services - Food Services and related elements 
Travis County Commissioners Court - Public & Environmental Nuisances 
Travis County Transportation & Natural Resources - Sewage, Junkyards, Auto salvage operations 
Travis County Sheriff's Department - Public and Environmental Nuisances 

5. OUTPUT Perfonnance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reportedfor your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by funding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Fixed food establishment permits issued 407 4,493 4,900 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
. OUTPUT # 2 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Mobile Vending Permits Issued 290 1,200 1,490 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 3 ~ Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Rodent & Vector Field Services Performed 3,800 4,200 8,000 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 4 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Non-Routine Inspections Performed 2,300 
(NOTE: Output #4 has combined totals because the current reporting structure does not separate the two. 
The City will begin separating the information in FY13 and will report based on actual occurrences.) 

6. OUTCOME Perfonnance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome performance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding I2-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. I(an 
Outcome will NOT be reported even' quarter, in the right column indicate for wlaich quarterly report(s) you 
WILL be reporting that measure (for example, you might reportfor Q2 and Q4 ollly). 

Travis County Form #3 updated April 20 II pg. 2 of3 



: <I 

Total Program T f not reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 1 Annual Goal ~ Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of pools/spas in the City and County not closed in a time period 1,870 (numerator) 
Total number of pools/spas inspected in the same time period 1,928 (denominator) 
Percent of public pools and spas in compliance (outcome rate) 97%, 

Total Promm lfnot reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 2 Annual Goal ~ Quarter, in 
which_Quarter{s)? 

Number of food establishment inspections with a passing grade (numerator) 9,871 
Total number of food establishments inspections (denominator) 10,072 
Percentage of food establishments with passing grades (outcome rate) 98% 

Total Program If not reported 

Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 3 Annual Goal every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)? 

Number of Rodent Vector field services in which control measures are applied 4,000 
(numerator) 
Total number of field services completed (denominator) 8,000 
Percent of field services conducted that result in control measures being 50% 
applied in the Rodent & Vector p rogram (outcome rate) 

7. Community planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 
Community Health Assessment/Community Health Improvement Plan 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 
• Use of database management system (AMANDA) to track all inspections, permitting fees, and follow-up 

inspections for all components of the contract 
• Use of Excel and Access to ensure that goals are met through tracking databases looking at quarterly 

numbers compared to contractual agreed upon numbers 
• Mid-year and Year-end performance evaluations of sanitarians responsible for these areas to ensure 

that inspections are completed and done according to standard operating procedures 
• Dedicated consumer hotline for taking complaint caUs and follow-ups done by inspectors. 

9. Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 
• Investigation of consumer complaints 
• Quarterly reviews to ensure Contractual numbers are met without any shortcomings 
• Additional inspectors assigned as needed and follow-up next quarter to gauge effectiveness 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated Apri12011 pg. 30f3 



Sickle Cell Association of Austin- Sickle Cell Services for Travis County 

Form #3: PROGRAMWORKSTATEMENT 
2013 City of Austinffravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date Prepared 08/3112012 

Agency Name: Sickle Cell Anemia Austin Association Marc Thomas Chapter 

1. Program goals and objectives: 

To enhance and improve the quality of life for families devastated by Sickle Cell Disease. 

2. Program clients served: 

Contractor shall use funds provided under this Agreement to provide services to clients with sickle cell 
disease and their families, and will also target at risk populations with outreach programs and 
educational sessions, as described further below. 

3. Program services and delivery: 

Contractor shall deliver services in three major areas: education, client services and outreach. 
Contractor shall conduct home visits, hospital visits, coordinate and conduct educational sessions, 
health fairs, coordinate with schools, churches, community agencies and groups to raise awareness 
about sickle cell disease. 

Contractor shall provide support, outreach, education and assistance to persons with sickle cell disease 
and their families. Target at risk populations to increase knowledge and raise awareness about sickle 
cell disease. 

4. System for collecting and reporting program data: 

Contractor will establish and maintain efficient systems for collecting, maintaining and reporting 
program data, including data of all services provided with City funds, and ensure system for collecting 
and reporting program data are administered before educational sessions and are evaluated at time of 
educational sessions. Sign-in sheets and counter are also used for reporting of data. The data collected 
must measure the understanding and depth of knowledge concerning sickle cell disease. Contractor will 
count the number of participants in attendance and/or from the sign-in sheets and maintain records of all 
classes, workshops and sessions held, as well as of the number of attendees. 

S. OUTPUT MEASURES Performance Measures 

City of All Other TOTAL (City. + 
OUTPUT # 1 Austin Funding Sources All Other) 

Annual Annual Perfonnance 
Perfonnance Performance Measures 
Measures Measures 
(Travis Co. lLA) 

Number of county clients provided with the 250 250 
health screening services. 

City of Austin All Other TOTAL (City + 
OUTPUT # 2 Annual Funding Sources All Other) 

Perfonnance Annual Performance 
Page 1 of3 



Sickle Cell Association of Austin- Sickle Cell Services for Travis County 

Measures Performance Measures 
(Travis Co. lLA) Measures 

Number of county clients provided with the 250 250 
health education. 

6. OUTCOME (RESULTS) Performance Measures 

Total Program 
Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 1 Annual Performance 

Measures 
Total number of county clients provided with the health screening services 250 

resulting in increased knowledge of sickle cell disease and/or better-managed 
care. (numerator) 
Total number of county clients provided with the health screening services 250 
(denominator) 
Percent of clients with sickle cell disease who were provided with the health 100% 
screening services resulting in increased knowledge of sickle cell disease and/or 
better-managed care. (outcome catel 

Total Program 
Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 2 Annual 

Performance 
Measures 

Total number of county clients provided with the health education resulting in 250 
increased knowledge of sickle cell disease and/or better-managed care. (numerator) 
Total number of clients affected by sickle cell disease (significant others, families, 250 
etc.) who were provided with educational sessions. (denominator) 
Percent of clients affected by sickle cell disease (significant others, families, etc.) 100% 
who were provided with educational sessions resulting in increased knowledge of 
sickle cell disease and/or better-managed care 

7. Community planning activities: 
Contractor's community Planning Activities Community Activities held by our agency includes health 
fairs, presentations, educational session and distribution of literature. 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Contractor's staff, when appropriate, will verbally ask the audience questions about sickle cell 
disease prior to the educational sessions, and/or distribute a pre-test prior to the educational 
sessions. A comparative analysis will be conducted to determine whether an increased level of 
understanding and knowledge was obtained. Upon completion of the workshop, Contractor will 
count the number of participants from the sign-in sheets. 

• Ouality improvement: 

Contractor shall ensure that clients and other participants will increase their knowledge of sickle 
cell disease, resulting in better-managed care. Contractor shall sponsor and offer sickle cell 

Page 2 of3 



Sickle Cell Association of Austin- Sickle Cell Services for Travis County 

summer camp to help children with sickle cell improve their socialization skills, while learning 
and sharing knowledge with other children affected with sickle cell disease. 

9. Coordination and collaboration of services with other organizations, including strategies and 
methods: 

Contractor shall coordinate with organizations such as Seton Family of Hospitals, clinics, Dell 
Children's Hospital, The Children's Haven of Austin, The Blood and Tissue Center, Huston-Tillotson 
University, Austin Community College, The Linus Project, churches, schools, neighborhood centers, 
Texas Education Agency, Department of State Health Services, and other agencies and community 
groups 

Page 3 of3 



Form #3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
2013 City of AustinfI'ravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/31/2012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: Austinlfravis County IlliSD Program: Epidemiology and Health Statistics Unit 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 

Epidemiology and Health Statistics Unit (EHSU) protects the public health of citizens and visitors of Travis 
County through a number of activities including epidemiologic surveillance and investigation, data collection 
and analysis, toxicological evaluation and risk assessment, and emergency preparedness and response 
planning. EHSU supports Travis County by: 

• Analyzing health data to examine the burden of disease within the county for a variety of diseases, 
conditions and risk factors. . 

• Providing epidemiologic support for disease and outbreak investigations, which includes study 
design, survey design, data collection, analyses and interpretation, and report dissemination. 

• Identifying, monitoring, and preventing the spread of disease in our community through the 
implementation of preventative measures and interventions. 

• Conducting epidemiologic response and preparedness planning activities related to diseases and 
conditions, and public health disasters (both natural and man-made) such as hurricane response, 
response to weapons of mass destruction, extreme weather events, and disease pandemics. 

• Developing, revising, maintaining, exercising public health emergency response plans. 
• Conducting and providing toxicological evaluations, consultations, and recommendations for 

environmental permitting, monitoring and enforcement activities to ensure the protection of human 
health. 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County residency, income level, age). 

Persons served by EHSU are all residents or visitors of Travis County. For some emergency response plans, 
pre-established agreements exist for response activities (mass sheltering for citizens of Galveston County, 
TX). All employed and volunteer fIrst responders are eligible for transport exposure services. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County funded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your seryices and how they are 
delivered to clients. 

The Epidemiology and Health Statistics Unit supports three 3 program areas -Disease Surveillance, 
Epidemiology, and Public Health Emergency Preparedness. 

The Disease Surveillance Program, which provides 2417 nurse on call after business hours, weekends and 
holidays, is responsible for receiving, reviewing, monitoring, investigating (as determined) and implementing 
control measures on 72 of the 77 conditions listed on the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) 
Reportable Conditions list. 
The Epidemiology Program conducts comprehensive epidemiologic surveillance and investigates clusters of 
acute and chronic illness within Travis County. Currently, the Epidemiology Program participates in 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg. 10f5 



analyses, collection, and management of data related to infectious diseases and conditions, related health risk 
behaviors, syndromic surveillance, as well as clusters andlor outbreaks of gastrointestinal illness, foodbome 
illness, respiratory illness, and influenza, and responses to bioterrorism. 

EHSU epidemiologists collect, analyze, and manage health data to identify burden of acute and chronic 
diseases within the community and risk factors for developing disease. Analyses are used in program 
evaluation to determine gaps in service delivery, community health needs, and the effectiveness of 
intervention and prevention strategies, and these analyses are reported to EHSU's partners. EHSU serves as 
the lead within HHSD for data analyses, management, and evaluation. 

EHSU conducts toxicological reviews/evaluations of air quality, hazardous waste, and water quality permits 
for Travis County to determine whether releases or emissions will result in any adverse human health 
impacts. Review and evaluations are also conducted for monitoring data collected to determine the potential 
for adverse human effects from releases to air, water, and soil. 

EHSU conducts public health emergency response planning and assesses hazards and vulnerabilities for all 
citizens, residents and visitors of Travis County with numerous external and internal partners. Plans are 
revised annually, tested through exercises or real events, and lessons learned are incorporated during plan 
revisions. 
4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 

Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. If you are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan/or increasing collaboration? 

For epidemiologic surveillance and response, all activities are coordinated through a variety of organizations 
including the health care system, school districts, responding agencies, and neighboring or affected counties. 
This is necessary to limit the spread of disease. 

For emergency response planning, response plans and activities must be coordinated with a variety of local, 
regional, state and federal response agencies. All response activities rely on strong collaborations, mutual 
aid, and common operating picture. EHSU staff also works collaboratively with local, regional, state and 
federal partners, first responders and emergency management on biosurveillance planning and response 
initiatives. 

The Unit has established a series of collaborative relationships for emergency response planning as well as 
epidemiologic surveillance and response, with the following organizations: 

• Capital Area Public Health and Medical Coalition; 
• Austin Independent School District; 
• Capital Area Council of Governments Homeland Security Taskforce and Public Health and Medical 

Subcommittees; 
• Central Texas School Safety Consortiwn; 
• University of Texas at Austin Institutional Biosafety Committee; 
• Capital Area Shelter HUB Core Team 
• Health Advisory Board for Child, Inc. 
• Safe Sleep Workgroup 
• Central Texas Association of Professionals in Infection Control and Epidemiology (APIC) Chapter 

116 (infection preventionists from area hospitals, health departments, clinics, and nursing homes) 
• All independent school districts' health services 
• University of Texas at Austin Schools of Nursing, Pharmacy and Social Work 
• Community Hepatitis support groups 

DSHS Central Office and Health Services Region 
Collaborative partners include but is not limited to: Texas DSHS: Central Office and Health Services Region 
7; ISD- Health Services: Austin, Pj1ugerville,·Manor, Del Valle, Lake Travis, Lago Vista, Eanes; IPs 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20 11 pg. 2of5 

" 0 " 



,_ J ~. 

(Infection Preventionists) & Emergency Rooms: Dell Children's Medical Center, Seton Healthcare Family, 
St. David's Healthcare; St. David's Foundation, Community Action Network, Integrated Care Collaboration, 
Austin Travis County Integral Care, Medical Clinic IPs: Austin Regional Clinic, Austin Diagnostic Clinic, 
Central Health, CommUnity Care, Seton, Seton Specialty Carefor Children, Seton Clinics; University and 
Colleges (health services and individual academic departments): University of Texas at Austin, Austin 
Community College, St. Edwards University, Concordia University, Huston-Tillotson University; Travis 
County Medical Society; Child Inc; Safe Kids; Travis County Medical Examiner's Office; Travis County 
Office of Emergency Management, Travis County Sheriffs Office, City of Austin departments: Animal 
Services, Law Department, Homeland Security Emergency Management, Parks and Recreation Department, 
Austin Police Department, Austin Travis County Emergency Medical Services and Austin Fire Department; 
all programs, units, and divisions within HHSD. 

5. OUTPUT Perfonnance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 
Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by jimding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal AnnualOoal 

Number of potential human rabies exposure 1,300 
consultation 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 2 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of cases investigated by 1900 
Epidemiolo!}, and Health Statistics. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 3 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of emergency bioterrorism drills 8 
conducted 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT#4 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of Air, Hazardous Waste and Water 30 
QualLty Pennits reviewed 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 2011 pg.30f5 



(If approved for additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Perfonnance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome peiformance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding 12-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. Iran 
Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter. in the right column indicate for which quarterly report(s) you 
WIll be reporting that measure (for example, you might report for Q2 and Q4 only). 

Total Program If not reported 
Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 1 Annual Goal ~ Quarter, in 

which 
Quarter(s)? 

Number of emergency plans reviewed and updated (numerator) 11 
Number of emergency pJans.(denominator) 12 Annual 

Percent of emergency plans reviewed and updated (outcome rate) 90% 

Total Program If not reported 
Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 2 Annual Goal ~ Quarter, in 

which 
Quarter(s)? 

Number of all foodbome illness investigations initiated within 3 hours TBD 
of notification. Annual 

Number of all foodborne illness investigations TBD 
Percent of all foodbome illnesses investigations initiated within 3 hours of 95% 
notification. 

Total Pro2J'81ll Ifnot reported 
Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 3 Annual Goal every Quarter, in 

which 
Quarter(s)? 

Number of all infectious diseases reported that resulted in intervention TBD 
strategies implemented. Quarterly 

Number of all infectious disease reported TBD 
Percent of all infectious diseases reported that result in intervention strategies 75% 
implemented 

Total Program If not reported 
Total Program Performance - OUTCOME # 4 Annual Goal ~ Quarter, in 

which 
Quarter(s)? 

Number of cases in Measles, Pertussis, Mumps and Rubella TBD 
Current County Population x 100,000 TBD Annual 

Incidence rate per 100,000 population of reported cases of Measles, Pertussis, 25 
Mumps and Rubella in community served. 

(If approved for additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

7. Conununity planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services prOVided 
under this contract. 

EHSU is currently involved in the Community Health Assessment! Community Health Improvement 
Planning for Travis County. Staff are currently collaborating a variety of planning partners and engaging the 
community to determine the health needs of the community. EHSU collaborates on a regular basis with area 
hospitals, schools, daycares and other agencies to continue optimum reporting and monitoring of diseases 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20 II pg.4ofS 



~ .,' " ... 

and implementing strategies in prevention of disease spread. EHSU conducts program evaluation and data 
analyses to support grant-funded applications and activities (Ryan White, CPPW, CTG). 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

EHSU conducts a variety of activities to evaluate performance. All epidemiology, disease surveillance and 
emergency response activities fall under the All-Hazards Response Plan, which requires annual review and 
revision. Many revisions are in response to actual incidents or exercises and are the result of after action 
reviews and corrective action plans that are prescribed by National Incident Management System. 

EHSU staff participates in a yearly Hazard and Vulnerability Assessment and Capabilities Assessment along 
with City of Austin Homeland Security and Emergency Management and Travis County Office of 
Emergency Management, public safety agencies, and agencies representing critical infrastructure to prioritize 
emergency response planning activities. DSHS also requires a specific public health capabilities assessment 
and hazard and vulnerabilities assessment for Travis County, and yearly Technical Assessment Review of 
Strategic National Stockpile (SNS) activities/deliverables. 

EHSU participates in monthly internal Continuous Quality Improvement meetings to ensure evaluation of 
program performance, policies and procedures and the need for training and professional development. 

Clients who have recently communicated with EHSU via telephone are provided a survey to assess customer 
service. The program also annually surveys external reporting clients. Reports are reviewed at the Disease 
Surveillance Program quality assurance meeting. 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 

Regular QA is conducted on the following procedures: 
• Training, Exercises, After Action Reports, Corrective Action Plans 
• SNS Technical Assessment Review 
• Capabilities Assessment 
• Hazard and Vulnerabilities Assessment 
• Customer Service Survey 
• Case Investigation Audit 

• NEDSS Data Audit Tool 

Travis County Fonn #3 updated April 20 II pg. 50f5 



Fonn #3: PROGRAM WORK STATEMENT 
2013 City of Austinffravis County Public Health Interlocal Agreement 

Date prepared: 08/3112012 

Agency: Please answer the following questions as they pertain to only those programs and 
services in which Travis County invests. Note: the information contained in this document 
will be used in reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court and the community. 

Agency: AustinlTravis County llliSD Program: African American Quality of Life Unit 

1. Program goals and objectives: 
Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the services purchased by Travis County in this contract. 
a. Reduce health disparities through community outreach and partnerships 

(1) Provide community based health screenings 
(2) Provide information and referrals related to issues presented or detected by screenings 

2. Program clients served: 
Describe the eligibility requirements to participate in the program or in each component of the program (for 
example: Travis County reSidency, income level, age). 

Program services are free to all residents of Travis County. Youth (under 18 years) need parental consent for 
screenings. 

3. Program services and delivery: 
Describe the Travis County funded services and how they are provided by the agency. Provide enough detail so 
that the contract reviewer is able to have a comprehensive understanding of your services and how they are 
delivered to clients. 

The services provided by HHSD include: Blood pressure exams, Blood sugar exams, pregnancy exams 
and referrals to support services. 

The mobile van services are provided from a metro-sized mobile van fitted with exam rooms. Locations are 
selected by a zip code analysis of areas with high morbidity and mortality rates. The van develops a regular 
schedule based on those sites. On many occasions, the van staff is joined by other service providers from 
IllISD as well as representatives from the private sector, These representatives, such as Seton Family of 
Hospitals, Doctors on Wheels, Amerigroup Corporation and The Smile Dental Center, set up tents around the 
mobile van to provide information and education to participants on a range of health issues and services. 
Information is also distributed and promoted via use of fliers as well as announcements over HHSD radio 
talk show, Health Talk, on KAZI every Tuesday morning. 

4. Service coordination and collaboration strategies: 
Describe how the agency coordinates its services with services being provided by other agencies and describe how 
the agency collaborates with other agencies. If you are not currently collaborating with other agencies, what is 
your plan for increasing collaboration? 

Since its start in 2005, the AAQL program has aligned its services with other health and social services 
providers in the community. The AAQL has interlocal agreements with Austin Parks and Recreation, 
Austin Independent School District, Del Valle Independent School District, and Santa Barbara Church. 
Within HHSD, the WIC and smoking cessation programs are regular attendance on the mobile van. Finally, 
there are a number of private organizations that join the mobile van at its regular sites. 

5. OUTPUT Performance Measures (replace the blue text and shaded spaces below with the actual 
wording of your measures and their corresponding 12-month goal amounts): 

Page 1 of3 



Please enter the output performance measures to be reported for your program. You must report the number of 
unduplicated clients served by fUnding source and at least one other output. Actual total program performance 
data for these outputs will be reported in the quarterly program performance reports. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 1 County Funding Source~ (Trayis County 

Blood pressure exams Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of units of preventative health 800 3,200 4,000 
services (such as screenings and health 
education) provided by Austin Health 
Connection. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 2 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of clients served by the AAQL 1,200 4,800 6,000 
Preventive Team Initiative. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 3 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of job fairs develoned in underserved 2 8 10 
areas. 

Travis All Other TOTAL 
OUTPUT # 4 County Funding Sources (Travis County 

Annual Annual Goal + All Other) 
Goal Annual Goal 

Number of new locations for services by 1 4 5 
AAQLlCm 

(If approvedfor additional Output measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

6. OUTCOME Performance Measures (replace the blue text in the left column below with the actual 
wording of your measures' numerators, denominators, and outcome rates): 
Please enter the outcome peiformance measures to be reported for your program. For any outcome which will not 
have a percentage rate, use only the first (numerator) row and edit as needed. In the middle column's shaded 
blocks, include the corresponding 12-month goal amounts and percentages (as applicable) for each line. 1(011 

Outcome will NOT be reported every quarter. ;n the right column indicate for wl.ich quarterly report(s) you 
WILL be reporting that measure (for example, you might report for Q2 and Q4 only) • 

• Total Program I f!lQ! reported 

Total Program Perfonnance - OurCOME # 1 Annual Goal every Quarter, in 
which Quarter(s)'? 

Number of clients who report satisfaction with services of mobile van staff 95 
(numerato~ Annually 
Number of clients who complete a satisfaction survey (denominator) 100 

Percentage of clients who report improved awareness of health status 95% 
resulting from the AAQL Prevention Team Initiative. (outcome rate) 

Page lof3 



. ~.... " -

(If approved for additional Outcome measures, copy and paste the blocks above and re-number accordingly) 

7. Community planning activities: 
Describe your agency's involvement in community planning activities that are specific to the services provided 
under this contract. 

lllISD conducts community forums in order to receive input on the public's perception and impressions of 
health services. Additionally, the AAQL Unit conducts monthly meetings with community partners, church 
representatives and nonprofit service organization. 

8. Program Evaluation Plan 
• Performance evaluation: 

Describe how the agency will evaluate the program's performance in achieving program goals. Note: if any 
survey(s) or questionnaire(s) are used in the evaluation of the program or its performance, please provide a brief 
description of survey procedures (for example: how the survey is distributed and to whom). 

The mobile van program is reviewed semi annually in three areas by the mobile van team and the Assistant 
Director: 

a. Screenings performed. Are the screenings in areas in the City or County with high morbidity and 
mortality? 

b. Are clients following recommendations regarding referrals? 
c. Annual client satisfaction survey 

• Quality improvement: 
Describe the process for identifying problems or other issues in service delivery, designing activities to overcome 
these problems, and following up to ensure corrective actions have been effective. 

lllISD has three levels of quality assurance. 
a. Unit level. The services and programs delivered by the Unit are reviewed by staff and program 

manager every six months. The review includes staff performance, performance measures and 
recommendations for addressing any problems uncovered. 

b. Unit level. HHSD has an internal auditor that reviews program operations in order to identify 
risks and make recommendations to reduce or eliminate them. 
c. Department level. The department has an ongoing quality improvement committee. That 
committee meets monthly to discuss and offer recommendation to resolve operational and service 
delivery issues. 

Page 3 of3 



Program 

Public HeaIItt 
Program Coste 

HIV 0utrIIach & Prevention 
Immunization 

Sexudy Transmitted Disease 
DIseasB Survelllllnce 
Tuben:UIosis Elimination 
~ and Injwy Prevention 
T .... PAI!I. Prev & F.mIy PlannIng Educ 
Information. Rafamll & PenniIting 
HeaI1h and Safety Code ComplIance (CCP) 
RodenWador Control & Nuisance Abatemen 
Health ConnecIIon Van/Outreach 
Vttal Records 
Sidde Cal Contract 
ChafChip Demonstretion 

Total 

Quarter1 : 
Quarter 2: 
Quarter 3: 
Quarter 4: 
Total 

10'1120128:27 AM 

Program 
Totel 

542.687 
1707762 
1.755.806 

770.485 
1.233.570 
1,296.533 

175198 
817 253 

3,102.304 
579723 

-
462250 
132.241 
34.000 

12,111?790 

FY13 
Revenue 

(44.921) 

3.958 

125142 

(174,0_21) 

-=y-_._-

0 

Total with 
Re"....u. 

542687 
1707.762 
1.710.685 

770485 
1229812 
1296533 

175198 
817 253 

3.102.304 
579723 

-
337108 
132,241 
34000 

1~71' 

County Total 

153092 
481760 
482.841 

217.348 
348874 
365 752 
49423 
98423 

368022 
163540 

-
95098 
32241 
34000 

2,184,.Z13 

------, --

0 

FY13 Public H.lllllllnhrtocal 
Anllllll ServIce. OllIe. 

(October 201210 September 2013) 
Attachment B 

City Totel 

iiliti,i 
:~ 
:::: ~: ~: 

389.595 [ ;'::::: 
1.228.002 I:::;::;; 
1.228.244 I~~UH 
553.11~ ::::; 
8112,738 U~::;:: 
930.781 I:,:;:;:' 
125.773 I:;:::", 
720.631 I:",, ;,: 

2.736.282 I, ;,:,::: 
418.1631: ::' ::;' 

:; :=:::. 
242.011 I,:,::::, 
100.000 I :'~,~;;: 

::;;:::: 
9.111.558 

V8U'40.J)ate 
Expenses 
through 

XXIXXIXX 

1 of 1 

Ve.r.co..Oete 
AdmIn 

Allocation 
through 

XX/XXI1CX 

V .... -to-Oete 
RevemM 
through 

XXIXXIXX 

Net Total BasiS of Allocation 

% of Population (28.21%t 
% of Population (28.21%) 

% of P~ (28.21%) 
%of~(28.21% 
% of PgpUation (28.21 % 
% of POPUation (28.21% 
% of ~ (28.21% 
% FFE (ON r_ MunIS...l. 
% FFE (ON Include MUllis) 
% of Population 128.21% 
%ofP~(28.21% 
% of P.<JPUI8fIan (28.21% 
current shale 
c:umml shata 

YTDCounty 
Portion 

Dlf/wence 
~Prorated 
County Total and 

YTDCounty 
Portion 

Percent 
~Ifference 



ATTACHMENT C 
COUNTY PERSONNEL 

As of October 1,2012, County Personnel under this Agreement are: 

NAME: SLOT # 

1. Lenora Guerrero 149 



ATTACHMENT D - INVOICE FORM 

INVOICE 

QUARTERLY BILLING PUBLIC HEALTH INTERLOCAL 

BILL TO: 

Travis County Health & Human Services & Veteran Services 

Attention: Sherri Fleming 

AMOUNT: Fiscal Year 2013 Quarterly Billing 

151 Qtr Expenditures (October 1,2012 - December 31,2012) 

COUNTY PERSONNEL: 

The following figures are based on County budgeted amounts for Fiscal Year 2013: 

Regular Salaries 

Overtime Salaries 

Longevity Pay 

TOTAL SALARIES 

FICA 

Hospitalization 

Life Insurance 

Retirement Contribution Quarter Two, Three & Four 

Workers' Compensation 

Medicare 

TOTAL BENEFITS 

TOTAL SALARIES & Benefits 

Administrative Allocation 

TOTAL OF ALL CREDITS: 

CREDIT: 

Employee Credit for 114 of Fiscal Year 2013 

Total: $58,216.00 
114: 

TOTAL DUE m CITY Of AUSTIN: 

TOTAL CONTRACT: 

Slot # 149 

$36,472.00 

$1,500.00 
$37,972.00 

$2,354.00 
$8,353.00 

$99.00 
$4,659.00 

$675.00 
$551.00 

$16,691.00 

$54,663.00 

$3,553.00 

$58,216.00 

Date: 

$ 

($14,554.00) 

TOTAL NET CONTRACT; LESS CREDIT 

$ 2,884,213.00 

$ 2,825,997.00 Coptrast Balagce; $ 2,825,997.00 

Ouarter 1 Bllllpg; 

Ouarter 2 Rllllpg; 

$ 14,554.00 Ouarter 3 BillipS; 

Ouarter 4 BillipS' 

We certify that the above expenses are submitted pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Austin and Travis County for Public 
Health. 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: DATE: 
-------------------------------- --------------



TAG. SERIAL. :YEAR 

126758 CN06064646633621530S 2006 
126759 CN06064646633621480S 2006 
126760 CN0606464663362118FS 2006 
126761 CN060646466336214E5S 2006 
126895 6CA13118 2007 
126896 6CA13119 2007 
120602 n915008 2004 
126747 51574429 2004 
120605 n9186n 2004 
141729 A2VAC10SA00292P 2010 
120607 34A41862 2004 
141731 A2VAC10SA0029OY 2010 
126756 75DNY51 2006 
126757 CN0606464663362142LS 2006 
126832 OXC528 2007 
143011 MXOC9536466347832GWS 2007 
143012 MXOC9536466347832GHS 2007 

147716 HLW1V91 2006 
120601 n915020 2004 
141730 ~YAC1GSA00186W 2010 
141728 ~C10SA00183H 2010 
123116 CN3n12ORG 2004 

127516 208 2005 
131367 274 2007 

TAG. YIN GAS CARD 
100745 2B7JB21Y21K538603 
129570 1FTSX21588EB67442 3000 
129507 1 FMEU63EnUB39383 2953 

96438 1J4FF28S6XL672898 7051 
106451 2FTPX17Z63CA02823 2243 
106453 2FTPX18Z33CA04303 2256 
106457 2FTPX18ZX3CA04296 2257 
100624 1 FTZX1728YNC23918 8643 
n130 1GCEC14H25Z248722 6809 

TAGt SERIAL NUMBER LOCATED 

110007 205CDA1238 RLC 
110008 20SCDA1233 " RLC 

FY 13 Public Health Interlocal 
Attachment E- County Inventory 

DESCRIPTION LOCATION 

MONITOR, 20" LCD FP DELL UL TRASHARP 2001 FP RLC 
MONITOR, 20" LCD FP DELL ULTRASHARP 2001FP RLC 
MONITOR, 20· LCD FP DELL UL TRASHARP 2001 FP RLC 
MONITOR, 20" LCD FP DELL UL TRASHARP 2001 FP RLC 
CAMERA, FUJIFILM S6000FD DIGITAl R&V 
CAMERA, FUJI FILM S6000FD DIGITAL R&V 
GPS UNITS GARMIN ETREX RLC 
GPS UNITS GARMIN ETREX RLC 
GPS UNITS GARMIN ETREX RLC 
SAMSUNG CL65 RLC 
DIGITA~ CAMERA-FUJI FINEPIX S3000 RLC 
SAMSUNG CL65 RLC 
PROJECTOR, DELL 11 OOMP DLP RLC 
MONITOR, 20" LCD FP DELL UL TRASHARP 2001 FP RLC 
1 .... r\IN I cr\, DELL ~llQl;N (;OLOH LA~t;R R&V 
MONITOR, 20" LCD FLAT PANEL, DELL R&V 
MONITOR, 20" LCD FLAT PANEL, DELL R&V 
INV I CDVVI\, LATITUut: 0610 (NOPOHT 
REPLTOR RLC-TR 
GPS UNITS GARMIN ETREX RLC 
SAMSUNG CL65 RLC 
SAMSUNG CL65 RLC 
PRINTER, PHOTOSMART 7690 PHOTO RLC 
PHOENIX 800 MD ULV MOSQUITO FOGGER R&V 
PHOENIX 800 MD ULV MOSQUITO FOGGER R&V 

TC VEHICLES 
LOCATIONIRESPONSIBLE PARTY UNIT. 
RECEMNG Betty Dunkerley Campus 
OTC H3000 
RLC H2953 
RLC H403 
RLC H2243 
RLC H2256 
RLC H2257 
TODDLN H1847 
TOODLN -' " 

H300 

TC RADIOS 
NOMENCLATURE - CKDATE 

PORTABLE RADIO 813012012 
PORTABLE RADIO -~ 813012012 

RP MISC CKDATE 
1 

CHUCK CROW 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
LEE KELLEY 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
LANIA SIBBLEY 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
GLENN BUCHHORN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
JOE STAUDT 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 812912012 
JOE STAUDT 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 812912012 
GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 
[ANDREW THOMPSON 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
DUSHUN PHILLIPS 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 1 

GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
JOE STAUDT 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 812912012 
JOE STAUDT 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 812912012 
JOE STAUDT 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 812912012 

GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
GWEN MEIGHAN 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 
ANDREA GARCIA 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 8130/2012 
OLYMPIA ELLISON 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
LEE KELLEY 12666 GWEN MEIGHAN 813012012 
JOE STAUDT 8130/2012 
JOE STAUDT 8130/2012 

UCENSE PLATE • YEARIMAKEIMODEL CKDATE 
807-741 2001NAN 
100-0953 2008IFORD1F250 813012012 
100-0615 2007IFORDIEXPLORER 813012012 
n5-382 1999/JEEPICHEROKEE 813012012 1 

842-474 20031FORD1F150 4X2 813012012 
842-4n 2oo3IFORD1F150 4X2 813012012 
843-888 2003IFORDIF150 4X2 813012012 
790-830 2000IFORD1F150 4X2 812912012 
685-235 19951CHEVROLET/1500 812912012 

RP 1 

, I 
GWEN MEIGHAN I 
GWEN MEIGHAN I 



FY 13 Public Health Interlocal 
F.Cnllntv 

110009 205CDA1240 RlC PORTABLE RADIO 
110011 205CDA1248 - R&V PORTABLE RADIO 
110013 205CDA1235 RlC PORTABLE RADIO 
110015 205CDA1241 RLC PORTABLE RADIO 
110018 205CDA1239 RLC PORTABLE RADIO 
110019 205CDA1242 R&V PORTABLE RADIO 
110020 205CDA1234 RLC PORTABLE RADIO 
110021 205CDA1243 PORTABLE RADIO 

- - - - --- - - R~C ____ - - . - -- - - - - - - --- - - -- - -

RLC - RUTHERFORD LANE CAMPUS @ CAMERON ROAD 
R&V - RODENT AND VECTOR @ TODD LANE 

2 

813012012 GWEN MEIGHAN 
813012012 JOE STAUDT 
813012012 GWEN MEIGHAN 
813012012 GWEN MEIGHAN 
813012012 GWEN MEIGHAN 
813012012 JOE STAUDT 
813012012 GWEN MEIGHAN 

,-lII30~012 &WENJJlEIGHA~ __ 



INTERLOCAL COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT 

 
BETWEEN 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY 

 
AND 

 
CITY OF AUSTIN 

 
FOR 

 
ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 

 
 

CONTRACT NO. 4400001169 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Travis County Purchasing Office 

 
 
 
 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Parties            3 
Recitals           3 
Definitions           3 
General Terms           4 
Compliance           10 
Financial Provisions          13 
Termination           15 
Audit            17 
Miscellaneous Provisions         17 
Approvals           23 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Work Statement        24 
Attachment B – Financial Report        31 
Attachment C – Performance Reports / Form      32 
Attachment D – County Personnel        33 
Attachment E – Invoice Form         34 
Attachment F – Inventory of County Property       35 



INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF AUSTIN AND TRAVIS COUNTY  

FOR ANIMAL SERVICES FY2013 
 
PARTIES 
 
This Interlocal Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by the following parties:  City of Austin, a 
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Texas ("City") and Travis County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas ("County"). 
 
RECITALS 
 
City and County have historically operated to collaboratively provide animal control services throughout 
Travis County and the City of Austin. 
 
The City of Austin Animal Services Office has the authority to perform all animal regulation functions that 
the City of Austin can perform under Texas law.  
 
Travis County Health, through its Human Services and Veterans' Services has the authority to perform all 
animal regulation functions that County can perform under Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 822, 
"Regulation of Animals," Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapter 826, "Rabies," and other applicable 
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.   
 
County wishes to purchase from City animal regulation services for the areas of the County outside of 
City’s corporate jurisdiction, and City and County are authorized to enter into an Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement for these services through Texas Constitution, Article 3, Sec. 64, and "The Interlocal 
Cooperation Act," Texas Government Code, Chapter 791. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, City and County will provide services for the care of qualified 
recipients and for public health education and information, thus providing services which will further the 
achievement of a public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the hereinafter set forth agreements, covenants and payments, the 
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, City and County agree to the terms and conditions stated in this 
Agreement as follows: 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
1.0   TERMS DEFINED.  In this Agreement, the following terms will have these meanings: 
 
 1.1 "Agreement Funds" means all funds paid by County to City pursuant to the applicable 
terms of this Agreement. 
 
 1.2 "Agreement Term" means the period October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013, and/or 
any subsequent renewal term(s) agreed to by the Parties pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  
 
 1.3 "City Council" means the City Council of the City of Austin, Texas. 
 
 1.4 "Commissioners Court" means the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas. 
 
 1.5 "County Auditor" means the Travis County Auditor 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 3 of 35



 
 1.6 "County Purchasing Agent" means Cyd Grimes, the Travis County Purchasing Agent, or 
her successor. 
 
 1.7 "Day(s)" means calendar day(s), unless otherwise specifically noted in any individual 
provision. 
 
 1.8 "Officer" means Abigail Smith, Chief Animal Services Officer, or her successor. 
 
 1.9 "County Executive" means Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHSVS, or her 
successor. 
 
 1.10 "Fiscal Year" means that twelve-month time period between any October 1 and the next 
following September 30. 
 
 1.11 "ASO" or "City Department" means the City of Austin Animal Services Office. 
 
 1.12 "Parties" and/or Party" means the County and/or City. 
 
 1.13 "Subcontract" means any agreement between City and another party to fulfill, either 
directly or indirectly, any of the requirements of this Agreement, in whole or in part. 
 
 1.14 "TCHHSVS" or "County Department" means Travis County Health, Human Services & 
Veterans Services. 
 
GENERAL TERMS. 
 
2.0 PURPOSE AND SCOPE.  The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions 
under which City shall provide, and County shall pay for, animal regulation services in the areas of County 
that are located outside the jurisdiction of the City. 
 
3.0 AGREEMENT TERM. 
 
 3.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement begins on October 1, 2012, and shall continue through 
September 30, 2013, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. No renewal 
terms are authorized. 
 
  
4.0 AMENDMENT 
 
 4.1 Written Amendment.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any 
change to the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by the Parties. 
 
 4.2 Acknowledgements as to Amendments.  It is acknowledged by the Parties that no officer, 
agent, employee or representative of either party has any authority to change the terms of this Agreement 
unless expressly granted that authority by the Party’s governing body. 
  
 4.3 Submission - Amendments.  All requests for all changes, alterations, additions or 
deletions of the terms of this Agreement or any attachment to it shall be submitted to the County Executive, 
the Officer and the County Purchasing Agent, or their designees.  Upon agreement by the City Department 
and County Department, the request will be presented by the County Purchasing Agent to the 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 4 of 35



Commissioners Court and by the Officer to the City Council or appropriate City authority for 
consideration. 
 
5.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 5.1  Inclusive Agreement.  All oral and written agreements between the Parties to this 
Agreement relating to animal services that were made prior to the execution of this Agreement, including 
the applicable terms of the Agreement, have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement.   
The Parties agree that the Interlocal Agreement for Public Health Services which became effective in 2007, 
and which was  amended and renewed through  fiscal year 2012, is concurrently being amended for fiscal 
year 2013 and that all references and terms addressing animal services in that document are being deleted 
and replaced by this Agreement. 
  
 5.2 Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performance by the Parties in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement. 
 
  5.2.1 Attachment A, Work Statement, Animal Services 
  5.2.2 Attachment B, Financial Report 

5.2.3 Attachment C, Performance Reports/Form 
  5.2.4 Attachment D, County Personnel 
  5.2.5 Attachment E, Invoice Form 
  5.2.6 Attachment F, Inventory of County Property 
   
 5.3 Authorized Representatives.  City and County agree that, unless otherwise designated 
specifically in any provision, all communication, requests, questions, or other inquiries related to this 
Agreement shall initially be presented by and through the County Executive for the County and the Officer 
for the City.  
 
6.0 PERFORMANCE. 
 
 6.1 Services and Activities.   
 

6.1.1 Program Services.  The Parties shall perform the services and activities stated in 
the attached Work Statements, either directly or indirectly through Subcontracts, in accordance 
with the terms and conditions stated therein and in this Agreement.  The provision of services by 
the City does not include services required due to extraordinary or catastrophic events or disasters 
or that may be required due to changes in state or federal laws or regulations unless specifically 
provided for herein. 

 
6.1.2 Catastrophic Events.  In the event of any extraordinary or catastrophic event or any 

disaster (Event), City shall not be responsible for providing any services or activities related to the 
Event, and County shall not be responsible for paying for any services or activities related to the 
Event, without the approval of City Council and the Commissioners Court for additional 
compensation. City and County will make a good faith effort to coordinate and work together to 
meet the needs of the community related to such Event. 

 
 6.2 Supplies and Equipment.  
 

6.2.1 Jointly Provided.  County shall retain title to that equipment listed in Attachment 
F, "Inventory of County Property." City shall make such County Property available to County 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 5 of 35



annually for inventory purposes and provide assistance pursuant to Section 6.4.  City shall provide 
all other necessary supplies and equipment and shall provide for the maintenance of such supplies 
and equipment (including that property owned by County).  Vehicles used to provide services in 
County areas shall carry the seals of both jurisdictions. 

 
6.2.2 Replacement.   
  
 (a) Capital Acquisition Property.  For purposes of this Agreement, "Capital 
Acquisition Property ("Property") shall be considered to be any tangible, non-expendable 
property with a value of more than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). Only property within 
this definition will be considered for reimbursement by County under this Agreement. 

 
 (b) Cost to the City of Property required because of replacement or because of 
expanded services shall be: 
 

(i)  approved by City and County in the budget process related to the year 
in which the equipment will be purchased; and 

 
(ii)  charged to County in an amount equal to the equivalent of 
depreciation, although City will follow City accounting procedures and 
GASB requirements in accounting for supplies and equipment. For 
example,  if Property purchased by City for use under this Agreement has 
a four (4) year life, the charge to County would be calculated on a monthly 
basis as follows: 
 

% of population agreed to for County for that year   
X    [times] 
________1______ _ 

        4 [# year life] X 12 
 -      [less] 
 reasonable salvage value 
OR 

25% X 1/48 - reasonable salvage value 
 

(c) such purchases shall be made subject to the mutual agreement of the 
Parties as to the need, purchase price, and proportionate share of County.   

 
(d) The County shall determine and be responsible for the disposition of 

County equipment that has been replaced. The City shall determine and be responsible for 
the disposition of City equipment that has been replaced. 

 
(e) In the event of termination of this Agreement by either Party prior to the 

completion of the useful life of the asset, the Parties will mutually agree to settlement of 
costs related to such asset. 

 
6.3 Fees. 

 
6.3.1 Fees.  City shall charge only those fees authorized by the County to be charged for 

the services to be provided by City under this Agreement in accordance with County policies and 
applicable law.  No change in those fees or additional fees will be collected by City without prior 
approval of the Commissioners Court.  The City shall have no duty to collect unpaid fees.  In the 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 6 of 35



event the City undertakes collection efforts pursuant to written authority by County, the City's costs 
shall be separately billed and paid according to the written authorization by County.  

 
6.3.2 Payment to County.  City shall deposit fees as they are collected to a designated 

County account. Fee deposit forms and/or receipts will include the following information: 
 

 (a) Receipts:  Payor information (Name -individual or company; phone 
number (if provided by payor); payment method;  amount received;  amount applied;  
department (ASO);  other receipt details if available. 

 
(b) Fee Deposits:  Amount, purpose of fee or program for which fee collected; 

permit receipt number;  payor check number;  amount - check or cash;  other, where 
available;  copy of deposit slips;  copy of check. 

 
City shall make available (for inspection or copying) itemized deposit records as they are 
maintained by City. 

 
6.3.3 Supporting Documentation for Collections.  City shall make available to County, 

for viewing and copying, copies of the supporting documentation for any billing or collection 
(subject to Section 6.3.1) to be undertaken by the County or on its behalf. 

 
6.3.4 Changes in County Fees.  City understands and agrees that any changes in County 

fees charged under this Agreement must be processed according to County policies and procedures 
and applicable laws, including public hearings and Commissioner Court approval.  No change in 
any County fee will be made without written notice from County of the completion of such process 
and the identification of the changes in fees. 

 
6.4 County Property.  

 
6.4.1 Annual Inventory.  City shall provide an annual written inventory regarding all 

property received from the County pursuant to Section 6.2, and certifying the continued use of such 
property.  Such inventory shall be reviewed by County and subject to County acceptance and 
approval. 

 
6.4.2 Discontinued Use.  Should County property or equipment (as listed in Attachment 

F) be deemed to no longer be of service or serviceable, City shall return such property to the 
County or request written disposition instructions.  Property returned to the County shall be 
returned subject to ordinary wear and tear.  When use of County property (as listed in Attachment 
F) is discontinued, City will obtain an appropriate replacement (which will be City property) 
pursuant to Section 6.2.2, and cost to County for such property will be as calculated under Section 
6.2.2(b). 

 
6.4.3 Responsibility.  City shall take reasonable measures to protect County property 

provided under this Agreement. 
 

  6.4.4 Loss or Damage.  City shall furnish County with a written, factual report of the 
 theft, loss off, or damage to any County property by providing written notice to the County 
 County Executive County Executive with a copy to: 
 
  Dan Mansour or his successor or designee Ron Dube  

Travis County Risk Management   Fixed Asset Manager 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 7 of 35



  P. O. Box 1748     Travis County Purchasing Office 
  Austin, Texas  78767    P. O. Box 1748 
        Austin, Texas  78767 
 
 In the event of any theft, vandalism, loss or other offense against the property, City shall notify 
 the appropriate local law enforcement authorities and County immediately following such 
 incident.  The City shall repair or replace any County property lost or damaged due to the City's 
 fault.  Determination as to whether to repair or replace shall be the decision of City, with 
 consultation with and agreement of County.  County shall notify City in writing of such 
 agreement (or disagreement) with the City's proposal within thirty (30)  days of receiving written 
 notification; if County does not notify City of County's decision  within that thirty (30) day 
 period, County will be presumed to have consented to City's recommendation.  Any deficiency or 
 delay in performing services under this Agreement due to a delay in repairing or obtaining 
 replacement equipment shall not be deemed a default of this Agreement. 
 

6.5 Insurance.  City and County acknowledge and agree that each Party is self-insured and 
will maintain such coverage at a level sufficient to cover the needs of City and County, respectively, 
pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards.  Each Party shall require all subcontractors 
providing services under this Agreement to have insurance coverage sufficient to cover the needs of the 
Parties and/or subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. 
 
 6.6 Liabilities and Claims.   
 

6.6.1  Liability.  City shall not be liable for any claims, damages or attorney fees arising 
from any negligence or unlawful acts of the County or its employees in relation to this Agreement.  
County shall not be liable for any claims, damages or attorney's fees arising from any negligence or 
unlawful acts of the City or its employees in relation to this Agreement.  City and County 
acknowledge that each entity is otherwise responsible for any claims or losses from personal injury 
or death or property damages that were caused by the acts or omissions of that entity, its agents, 
employees, or representatives in the performance of the services and activities under this 
Agreement; and that each entity will be responsible for the handling of the portion of any claim 
which is based solely on the assertion that a policy of that entity is illegal or unenforceable in any 
way. 

 
6.6.2 Claims Notification.  If City or County receives notice or becomes aware of any 

claim or other action, including proceedings before an administrative agency, which is made or 
brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against City or County in relation to this 
Agreement, City or County shall give written notice to the other Party of the claim or other action 
within three (3) working days after being notified of it or the threat of it.  The notice shall include:  
the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that made or threatened to 
make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or proceeding; the basis 
of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, 
action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against whom this claim 
is being made or threatened.  This written notice shall be given in the manner provided in Section 
19.0 of this Agreement.  Except as otherwise directed, City or County shall furnish to the other 
Party copies of all pertinent papers received by the notifying Party with respect to these claims or 
actions.    

 
 
 

 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 8 of 35



 6.7 Acknowledgements, Warrants, and Assurances. 
 

6.7.1 Eligible Client Warranty.  The Parties agree that services provided under this 
Agreement do not include any County eligibility requirements.  If it is determined that any added 
program services will be provided based upon specific eligibility requirements, County shall 
provide the City with standards or policies which are mutually agreeable to the Parties by which 
the City may simply and effectively determine that it may provide services to animals meeting 
County requirements for public purposes services.  

 
6.7.2 Accurate Information.  City warrants that all reports, data and information 

submitted to County will be accurate, reliable and verifiable. Approval by County of such shall not 
constitute nor be deemed a release of the responsibility and liability of City, its employees, agents 
or associates for the accuracy and competency of their reports, information, documents, or services, 
nor shall approval be deemed to be the assumption of such responsibility by County for any defect, 
error, omission, act or negligence or bad faith by City, its employees, agents, or associates. 

 
6.7.3 No Duplication.  City acknowledges and agrees that City will not accept payments 

from other sources for the same services paid for by County for the provision of services 
hereunder.   

 
 6.8 Personnel.   To the extent the County employee position listed in Attachment C D is 
engaged in directly providing services that would otherwise be provided by the City under this Agreement, 
the City shall make an appropriate adjustment in calculating total program costs to the County.  At such 
time as the position listed becomes vacant, the City shall hire replacement personnel to provide the work or 
services and an adjustment to the cost and payment terms of the Agreement shall be made.  It is understood 
that the costs of this FTE (with necessary adjustments) will be reflected as credits to County in the invoices 
for payment provided by City to County under Section 13.2, unless or until such position is transferred to 
City.  As long as this employee is employed by County, the Parties understand and agree that the employee 
will receive from County, as part his compensation, cost-of-living increases approved by City during any 
budget process for the next Fiscal Year.  
 
 6.9 Forms - W-9 Taxpayer Identification Form.  City shall provide the County Purchasing 
Agent with an Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 
Certification that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules and regulations, 
and a statement of entity status in a form satisfactory to the County Auditor, and with immediate notice of 
any changes to said forms.  City understands that this W-9 form must be provided to the County Purchasing 
Agent before any Agreement Funds are payable. 
 
 6.10 Materials and Publications.  City and County, as appropriate, must comply with the 
applicable standard patent rights clauses in 37 Code of Federal Regulations, Section 401.13 or Federal 
Acquisition Regulations, Section 52.227.1.   All reports, charts, schedules, or other materials submitted by 
either Party under the terms of this Agreement, and all work performed under this Agreement shall be the 
property of the creating Party.  Either Party may publish the results of this Agreement performance at their 
own expense with notice to the other Party.  Any publication or other use shall include acknowledgement 
of any support received from the other Party and the appropriate reference to any copyright.  Subject to 
rights of third parties and compliance with confidentiality or privacy laws, each Party hereby grants the 
other Party an irrevocable, non-exclusive, non-transferable and royalty-free license to use, reproduce, 
publish, revise and make disposition of, prepare derivative works from, distribute to the public, to perform 
and display publicly, for or on behalf of that Party according to law, any material (including software) that 
may be developed as part of the work under this Agreement, provided that it is an original work of 
authorship under the U. S. Copyright Act. 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 9 of 35



 
 6.11 Qualifications.  If specific qualifications are set forth in the job descriptions required by 
either Party, each Party agrees that only personnel with the required qualifications will be assigned to the 
job. 

 
7.0 COMPLIANCE. 
 
 7.1 Federal, State and Local Laws.  City shall provide all services and activities performed 
under the terms of this Agreement in compliance with the Constitutions of the United States and Texas and 
with all applicable federal, state, and local orders, laws, regulations, rules, policies and certifications 
governing any activities undertaken during the performance of this Agreement including, but not limited to:  
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 
U.S.C., Section 794); and the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 (S.933) 
("ADA  City shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment based on race, 
religion, color, gender, national origin, age or handicapped condition.  In performance of all Agreement 
services and activities, City will comply with applicable state and federal licensing and certification 
requirements, health and safety standards, and regulations prescribed by the U. S. Department of Health 
and Human Services and the Texas Department of State Health Services. 
 
 7.2 Confidentiality.   
 

7.2.1 Method.  Each Party shall secure the confidentiality of records and other 
information relating to clients served in accordance with the applicable Federal, state and local 
laws, rules and regulations and applicable professional ethical standards. This provision shall not 
be construed as limiting the right of access to otherwise disclosable client information. 

 
7.2.2 Limited Access.  Prior to a scheduled monitoring or audit, each Party agrees to 

submit to the other Party in writing any relevant requirement precluding that Party's access to 
information including the correct citation of the legal authority on which the limiting Party relies to 
support its claim that the other Party is prohibited from access to the client information. 

 
7.2.3 Masking.  Upon authorization from either Party to render client files anonymous, 

the other Party agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct the 
authorizing Party's monitoring and evaluative duties in any way. 

 
7.2.4 Privacy.  Each Party shall comply with state and federal laws relating to the 

privacy and confidentiality of records that contain information made confidential by law.  
 
 7.3 County Rules/Policies.  
 

7.3.1 Applicable County Rules/Policies.  In provision of services related to local rules 
and regulations, City shall administer and enforce County rules and policies within the 
unincorporated areas of the County (and the ETJ, where applicable).  County agrees that said 
rules and policies will be written in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
rules and regulations.  County has provided City with current copies of all relevant  rules/policies, 
and will provide City with copies of any amendments to those rules/policies. City may notify 
County of any issues with said policies by giving written notice including a description of that 
issue and recommended resolution.  Such notice shall go to the County Executive with a copy to 
the County Attorney.  County shall notify City in writing of such agreement (or disagreement) 
with the City's proposal for resolution at the earliest possible date, but no more than thirty (30) 
days of receiving written notification; if County does not notify City of County's decision within 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 10 of 35



that thirty (30) day period, County will be presumed to have consented to City's recommendation.  
If requested by County, City will work with County in the event that resolution of the issue 
requires an amendment to the County policy in order to allow sufficient time for consideration by 
the Commissioners Court. 

 
7.3.2 Imminent Threat.  If the City believes an imminent threat to public health exists 

and a County policy or rule does not authorize prompt action, notice shall be provided to the 
County Executive and County Attorney by confirmed facsimile, electronic mail or personal 
delivery, and the County Executive or her designee shall immediately respond to City and 
provide direction.  The parties agree that City staff shall not be required to enforce a policy or 
rule that does not comply with applicable laws or regulations, and failure to enforce a policy or 
rule in such circumstance shall not be deemed a default under this Agreement. 

 
8.0 RETENTION AND ACCESSIBILITY OF RECORDS. 
 
 8.1 Retention and Maintenance of Records.  City shall create and maintain all records and 
reports required and/or created relevant to performance under this Agreement, including but not limited to 
those specifically set out in this Section (and all other applicable provisions of this Agreement), including 
all fiscal records, documentation about operations and documentation for all expenditures pertaining to this 
Agreement, and all operational and statistical reports related to performance in a readily available state, 
until all evaluations, audits and other reviews have been completed and all questions or issues (including 
litigation) arising from those evaluations, audits and reviews are resolved satisfactorily to County, or three 
(3) years after the end of the final Agreement Term, whichever occurs later. 
 
 8.2 Access.  Subject to all applicable laws, City shall give County, and County shall give City, 
or any of their respective duly authorized representatives, access to and the right to examine all books, 
accounts, records, reports, files and other papers, things or property belonging to or in use by City or 
County, respectively, pertaining to this Agreement at reasonable times and for reasonable periods.  These 
rights to access shall continue as long as the records are required to be retained by City and/or County, and 
for any additional time period that the records are retained by City and/or County.  If there is any incident 
in which claims are made against the County or any County employee, or City or any City employee, as a 
result of the activities performed under this Agreement, the Party against whom the claim is made shall 
give the duly authorized representative(s) of the other Party full and reasonable access to and the right to 
examine documentation related to this matter at reasonable times and for reasonable periods.  These rights 
to access shall continue until all claims are resolved or three years after the termination of the Agreement, 
whichever is later. 
 
9.0 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
 9.1 Performance/Financial Reports.  City shall submit quarterly and end-of-year 
performance and financial data to the County as set forth in Attachments B and C within thirty (30) days 
after the end of the Agreement Term.  
 
 9.2 Reimbursement Reports.  For any expenses that are separately or individually approved 
by the Commissioners Court to be paid on a reimbursement basis, apart from the maximum amount to be 
paid, City shall deliver to County reports that provide all of the information required by County within 
twenty (20) days after the end of the calendar quarter to which the reimbursement relates. 
 
 9.3 Annual Performance/Financial Close-Out Report.  City shall deliver a 
performance/financial close-out report to the County in a form mutually agreed to by the Parties. 
 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 11 of 35



 9.4 Corrections.  City agrees to correct or revise any errors, omissions or other deficiencies in 
any reports or services provided by the City to ensure that such reports and services provide accurate 
information.  City shall make the required corrections or revisions without additional cost to County. 
 
 9.5 Legal Prohibition.  If City is legally prohibited from providing any required or requested 
report, it shall immediately notify County, through County Department, in writing of this fact.  Such notice 
shall include specific identification of the basis of the prohibition, including statutory citations as 
applicable, and shall be reviewed by County for final resolution. 
 
 9.6 Additional Reports.  County may make, and City will respond to, reasonable requests of 
City to produce additional reports based on available information.  The Parties shall mutually agree to the 
timing, content and format of such reports. 
 
 9.7 Changes.  City shall promptly provide County with written reports of any changes in any 
of the information, reports and/or records provided to County pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
10.0 NON-WAIVER 
 
 10.1 County Approval. 
 

10.1.1 County's Satisfaction.  The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that County 
shall not be responsible for the cost of any services provided under this Agreement that are not 
substantially performed according to the terms of this Agreement.  

 
10.1.2 Responsibility and Liability.  Approval of County of any service, report or other 

performance by City under this Agreement shall not constitute nor be deemed a release of the 
responsibility and liability of City, its employees, agents or associates for the accuracy and 
competency of their reports, information, documents, or services, nor shall approval be deemed to 
be the assumption of such responsibility by County for any defect, error, omission, act or 
negligence or bad faith by City, its employees, agents, or associates. 

 
11.0 PRIOR DEBTS.  County shall not be liable for: costs incurred or performances rendered by City 
under this Agreement before or after the Agreement Term, although the Parties agree that this Agreement 
shall not affect County's obligation to pay City for services provided prior to the effective date of this 
Agreement under the terms of the previous agreement between City and County; expenses not billed to 
County within the applicable time frames set forth in this Agreement; or any payment for services or 
activities not provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
12.0 LIMITATIONS. 
 
 12.1 Current Revenue Funds.  County shall make payments for services under this Agreement 
from current revenue funds available to County and set aside for this purpose.  County is paying for the 
performance of governmental functions and services from current revenues available to County.  The 
payment is in an amount that fairly compensates City for the services or functions performed under this 
Agreement. 
 
 12.2 Immunity or Defense.  It is expressly understood and agreed by all Parties that, neither the 
execution of this Agreement, nor any conduct of any representative of City or County relating to this 
Agreement, shall be considered to waive, nor shall it be deemed to have waived, any immunity or defense 
that would otherwise be available to that entity against claims arising in the exercise of its governmental 
powers and functions, nor shall it be considered a waiver of sovereign immunity to suit.  It is understood 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 12 of 35



and agreed that a decision by one Party to waive immunity or to compensate a claim for which immunity 
would have been a defense and would have operated to prevent payment does not operate as a waiver or 
decision to compensate by the other Party; nor will such action by one Party operate to incur any expense 
or charge to the other Party. 
 
 12.3 Training.  The Parties agree, to the extent possible, to extend opportunities for training to 
each other's personnel on matters relevant to each department's functions of a space available basis. 
 
FINANCIAL PROVISIONS  
 
13.0 AGREEMENT FUNDS. 
 
 13.1  
 
  13.1.1 Term Agreement Funds Amount.  In consideration of full and satisfactory 
 performance of the services and activities provided under the terms of this Agreement, and subject 
 to other applicable provisions of this Agreement, County shall pay the City the following amount 
 during the Term: 
 
   GROSS Total:   $   967,275.00 
   LESS Personnel Credit:  $     78,392.00 
   NET Agreed Upon Total: $   888,883.00 
 

City expressly acknowledges and agrees that the sum stated in this Section 13.1.1 is the amount to 
be paid by County to City during the Term period unless an increase in the County budget for this 
Agreement is approved by Commissioners Court and this Agreement is appropriately amended. 

 
13.1.2 Fiscal Year Limitation. 
 

(a)  City expressly acknowledges and agrees that County funding obligations can 
ONLY be incurred for the portion of the Agreement Term corresponding to a time period 
included in the approved budget for any one Fiscal Year unless services are requested 
outside of the scope of the Agreement. 

 
(b)  In no event shall any provision of this Agreement or any agreement subject to 

this Agreement be interpreted to obligate the County beyond the funds approved by the 
Commissioners Court for any Fiscal Year/budget period.  Payments by County shall be 
subject to the Fiscal Year limitations applicable to this Agreement under Section 13.0.  In 
no event shall any provision of this Agreement or any agreement subject to this Agreement 
be interpreted to obligate the City to provide services outside of the scope of this 
Agreement. 

 
 13.2  Payments to City. 
 
  13.2.1 Quarterly Payments  County shall pay City quarterly based upon actual 
 expenditures incurred by City during each calendar quarter, which shall be calculated as described 
 in Section 13.3 below.  County shall submit payment to City within thirty (30) calendar days 
 following receipt of an invoice.   

 
13.2.2 Quarterly Invoice Dates.  City shall provide a written invoice to County by the 

following dates: 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 13 of 35



 (a) January 31 (for period October 1, 2012 through Dec. 31, 2013) 
 (b) April 30 (for period Jan 1 through March 31, 2013) 
 (c) July 31   (for period April 1 through June 30, 2013) 
 (d) November 30 (for period July 1 through Sept. 30, 2013) 
 
13.2.3 Quarterly Invoice Form.  On or before the first day of the months set forth in 

Section 13.2.2, City shall provide County with quarterly invoices utilizing the form attached to this 
Agreement as Attachment E. 

  
13.3 Cost Model.   
 
 13.3.1  Cost Model.   
 

(a) General.  City and County agree that the determination of costs for Animal 
Services will be calculated based upon a straight cost methodology described in Subsection (c). 

   
  b) Application.  The Parties agree that the Travis County population   
 percentage calculation and the cost allocation methodology set forth in this    
 Section 13.3.1 applies to the Term of this Agreement. 
 
  (c) Animal Services.  The annual price for Animal Services shall be   
 allocated as follows: 
 
   (1) Using a 3-year rolling average, 

a. Animal Control services shall be based on the percent (%) of 
activities attributed to County; and 
b. Shelter Services, including Adoption and Rescue, shall be based 
on the percent (%) of animals accepted at the Shelter attributed to County. 

 
 (2) Spay/neuter sterilization services at County sites shall be as set 

   forth in Section III.B.8.c of  Attachment A to this Agreement. 
 

(3) City will credit $10,000 per term year for coyote abatement services 
provided by the County's Predator Control Program.  This credit will be shown as a 
separate line item in the Cost Model and will be netted from the total cost charged 
to the County. 

 
13.3.2 The cost model does NOT include, either directly or indirectly, and County will 

not pay for, any of the following: 
 

(a)  Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) for City employees whether or not 
those costs are for current year benefits, prior year benefits, or future year benefits; 

(b) employee recognition, rewards or awards other than performance pay 
documented pursuant to Council adopted compensation schedules; 

(c) entertainment and gifts, including meals or beverages, even if related to a 
business purpose.  This subsection (c) notwithstanding, the cost model WILL allow for 
payment for meal and beverage expenses for employees incurred during out-of-town trips 
or conferences related to services provided under this Agreement and incurred according to 
the City travel policy (a current copy of which has been provided to County; copies of 
amendments will be provided to County whenever changes are made). 

(d) legislative consultant services; 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 14 of 35



(e) donations to non-profit or private organizations; 
(f)  legal services (the Parties agree that the City has no obligation to provide legal 

services to County under this Agreement); 
(g) consulting services.  This subsection (g) notwithstanding, the cost model WILL 

allow for payment for consulting services related to services provided within the scope of 
this Agreement. 

 
14.0 TERMINATION. 
 
 14.1 Breach or Default - Option to Cure.   Termination for breach or default shall be as 
follows: 
 

14.1.1  Actions of Breach/Default.  Actions of breach or default of a material term of this 
Agreement shall include, but not be limited to the following where such action substantially 
impairs the value of the Agreement as a whole to the non-breaching/defaulting Party:   

 
(a) for City:  failure to provide or make available the services to be provided under 

this Agreement; failure to timely submit required reports, records, or notification; failure to 
make corrections as required by this Agreement, and/or actions by City that would 
reasonably cause the Commissioners Court to believe that City is not using Agreement 
Funds in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, thereby necessitating a financial 
review or performance evaluation; 

 
(b) for County:  failure to timely submit any report, record or notification and 

failure to make timely payment. 
 

 14.1.2 Notice of Breach/Default.  If either Party shall breach or be in default as set forth 
in Section 14.1.1, the other Party may provide written notice pursuant to the section entitled, 
"Notices," to the breaching or defaulting Party, specifying the breach or default and requested 
correction. 
 
 14.1.3 Cure.  Upon receipt of notice of breach/default under this Section 14.0, the Party 
receiving such notice shall have forty-five (45) calendar days in which to cure the alleged 
breach/default.  If more than forty-five (45) days are required to cure such default or breach, a 
reasonable extension of such time may be established , provided both Parties agree in writing as to 
the time period to be substituted. 
 
 14.1.4 Failure to Cure.  If the breaching/defaulting Party fails to cure the alleged 
breach/default within the time period under Section 14.1.3, the non-breaching Party may then, with 
written notice: 
 
  (a)  re-negotiate an extension of time for cure; 
 
  (b)  agree to continue performance under the terms of the Agreement; or 
 
  (c)  provide notice of termination pursuant to Section 14.3.2. 

 
14.1.5 Liability for Repayment.  City shall be liable to County for money paid and/or 

advanced to City by County under this Agreement upon a failure by City to provide or make 
available the services to be provided under this Agreement and a failure to cure under Section 14.1.  

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 15 of 35



Return of funds under this Section 14.1.5 shall be made by City to County within thirty (30) days 
of request by County. 

 
 14.2 Other Reasons for Termination.  A Party may terminate this Agreement if: 
 
  14.2.1 it is unable to conform to changes required by federal or state laws or regulations; 
 

14.2.2 during the budget planning and adoption process, the governing body fails to 
provide funding for this Agreement for the Fiscal Year following the beginning of that Agreement 
period. 

 
 Notice of termination under this Section 14.2 shall be given in writing as soon as the Party 
 termination becomes aware of the event warranting termination under this Section 14.2. 

 
 14.3 Notice of Termination.   
 

14.3.1 Notice - Termination for Convenience.  Either Party may terminate this 
Agreement, in whole or in part, without cause, if the Party wanting to terminate the Agreement 
notifies the other Party in compliance with the Notice provisions of this Agreement of the decision 
to terminate this Agreement, the effective date of termination, which must be at least six (6) 
months (or any time period agreed to in writing by the Parties) after that notice, and, in the case of 
partial termination, the portion of the Agreement to be terminated. 

 
14.3.2 Notice - Termination for Other Reasons.  For termination under Sections 14.1 or 

Section 3.3, the terminating Party shall notify the other Party in compliance with the Notice 
provisions of this Agreement of the decision to terminate this Agreement, the effective date of 
termination, which must be at least ninety (90) days (or any other time period agreed to in writing 
by the Parties) after that notice, and, in the case of partial termination, the portion of the Agreement 
to be terminated. 

 
14.4    Limitation on Termination.  Nothing in the above Sections 14.1 and 14.2 prevents or 

prohibits either Party from taking any other action provided for under the terms of this Agreement or 
allowed by law.   
 
 14.5 Mutual Termination.  Any Party has the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in 
part, when the Parties agree that the continuation of the activities funded under this Agreement would not 
produce beneficial results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds; provided that both Parties 
agree, in writing, upon the termination conditions, including the effective date of the termination, the 
provisions under which termination shall be accepted; and, in the case of partial termination, the portion of 
the Agreement to be terminated. 
 
 14.6 Results of Termination.   
 

14.6.1  Post-Termination Costs.  County shall not be liable to City or to City's 
Subcontractors, for costs incurred after the effective date of termination of this Agreement.  County 
shall not under any circumstances be liable to City's Subcontractors for any payments under this 
Agreement. 

 
14.6.2  Continued Liability.  Notwithstanding any exercise by a Party of its right of 

termination under the provisions of this Agreement, a breaching Party shall not be relieved of any 
liability to the other Party for damages caused by virtue of any breach of this Agreement. 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 16 of 35



 
14.6.3  Transition.  Where applicable, at the end of the Agreement Term or following any 

other Agreement termination, each Party shall, in good faith and in reasonable cooperation with the 
other Party, aid in transition to any new arrangement or provider of services which have been 
provided under this Agreement. 

 
15.0 AUDIT. 
 
 15.1 County/City Audit.  County reserves the right to conduct an annual performance/ 
financial audit of City's performance of this Agreement.  City agrees to permit County, or its authorized 
representatives, to audit and copy at its expense City's records that relate to this Agreement and to obtain 
any documents, materials, or information relating to this Agreement which are necessary to facilitate such 
audit. City reserves the right to conduct an annual performance/financial audit of the County's performance 
of this Agreement.  County agrees to permit City or its authorized representatives, to audit and copy at its 
expense County's records that relate to this Agreement and to obtain any documents, materials or 
information relating to this Agreement which are necessary to facilitate such audit. 
 
 15.2 Facilitation.  City shall take whatever action is appropriate to facilitate the performance of 
any audits conducted pursuant to Section 15.0 that County may reasonably require of City. County shall 
take whatever action is appropriate to facilitate the performance of any audits conducted pursuant to 
Section 15.0 that City may reasonably require of County. 
 
16.0 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 
 16.1 No Joint Enterprise.  The relationship of County and City under this Agreement is not 
and shall not be construed or interpreted to be a joint enterprise or joint venture.  No employee of City shall 
be considered an employee of County or gain any rights against County pursuant to County's personnel 
policies.  No employee of County shall be considered an employee of City or gain any rights against City 
pursuant to City's personnel policies. Neither Party shall have the authority to make any statements, 
representations or commitments of any kind, or to take any action which shall be binding on the other Party 
or which shall hold itself out to be binding on the other Party.  The Parties expressly agree that each Party 
is an independent contractor, and that each Party assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities 
applicable to it as an independent contractor. 
 
 16.2 Authority to Obligate.  It is acknowledged by City that no officer, agent, employee or 
representative of County other than the Commissioners Court has any authority to sign any document or 
make any type of agreement obligating County unless expressly granted that authority by the 
Commissioners Court under a specific provision of this Agreement or by separate action by Commissioners 
Court. 
 
 16.3 Employees.  Except as specified in Section 6.8, this Agreement shall have no effect upon 
the personnel policies of the City or County; or employment status or benefits of any City or County 
employee.  Each Party retains all authority and liability related to the employment of that Party's 
employees.  This Agreement does not create an employment contract between the City or County and/or 
individuals with respect to continued employment or the provision of any benefit.  Each Party 
acknowledges that the other Party intends that each employee is at will, and that either the employee or the 
City or County can terminate the employee's employment for any reason and at any time, with or without 
notice.  The Parties shall not have any contractual or statutory liability for any employee of the other Party. 
 
 
 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 17 of 35



17.0 SUBCONTRACTS. 
 
 17.1 City Responsibility.   
 

17.1 Subcontractor Compliance.  City is wholly responsible to County for the 
performance under this Agreement, whether such performance is provided directly by City or 
indirectly by any and shall monitor both financial and programmatic performance and maintain 
pertinent records concerning Subcontractor(s) that shall be available for inspection by County.  
City shall ensure that its Subcontractors comply with all applicable terms of this Agreement 
(including terms related to records and reports) as if the performance rendered by the Subcontractor 
was being rendered by City.   City shall inspect all Subcontractors' work and shall be responsible 
for ensuring that it is completed in a good and workmanlike manner pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement.   City shall provide County with copies of any subcontract under which Agreement 
services are provided upon written request by County.  Subcontracts shall include provisions 
ensuring that:  Subcontractors will receive no duplicate payments from other sources or under other 
contracts for services/participants provided under this Agreement; that Subcontractor will 
cooperate with any County inquiries related to Agreement services; that Subcontractor agrees to 
comply with all laws; and that City is solely responsible for payment.   

 
 17.2 Level of Service.  City will ensure the provision of timely services by individuals, 
agencies, or other Subcontractors which meet or exceed applicable licensing and regulatory standards 
applicable to the service provided and will provide County relevant documentation of such licenses upon 
request. 
 
 17.3 Agreement Limitation.  This Agreement sets out the agreements and obligations between 
County and City only, and does not obligate County in any way to any of City's Subcontractors, nor to any 
other third party, nor does it obligate City in any way to County’s contractors,  residents nor to any other 
third party.   
 

17.4 Minority Business Representation.  City agrees to make a "good faith" effort to take all 
necessary and reasonable steps, in accordance with City's Minority and Women Owned Business Program 
(a copy of which has been provided to County, with changes to be provided as made) to ensure that 
minority businesses are given the maximum opportunity to be Subcontractors under this Agreement where 
such Subcontractors exist. City must report all expenditures made to minority Subcontractors to the County 
Purchasing Agent upon written request. 
    
 17.5  Payment to Subcontractors.  City shall make its best effort to pay Subcontractors in a 
timely manner and shall make such payment pursuant to applicable law. 
 
18.0 MONITORING.  County shall have the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of City's (and 
Subcontractor's) compliance/performance with the terms of this Agreement, and of the adequacy, 
effectiveness and timeliness of City's performance under this Agreement.  Such monitoring visit may 
include review of any and all performance activities as well as any and all records or other documentation 
maintained in relation to City's performance under this Agreement.  Within thirty (30) days of each 
monitoring visit, County shall provide City with a written report of the monitor's findings.  If the report 
notes deficiencies in City's performances under the terms of this Agreement, it shall include requirements 
and deadlines for the correction of those deficiencies by City as mutually agreed to by City and County. 
City shall take action specified in the monitoring report prior to the deadlines specified.  City will include 
the above right to monitor provision in any Subcontract(s) entered into under this Agreement. 
 
 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 18 of 35



19.0 NOTICES. 
 
 19.1 Requirements.  Except as otherwise specifically noted herein, any notice required or 
permitted to be given under this Agreement by one Party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given 
and deemed to have been given immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for 
the Party to whom the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States 
Mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at 
the address hereinafter specified. 
 
 19.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be: 
 
  Sherri Fleming, County Executive County Executive (or her successor) 
  Travis County Health, Human Services and Veterans Services 
  P. O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
 
With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
 
  Honorable David Escamilla (or his successor in office) 
  Travis County Attorney 
  P. O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
  ATTENTION:  Civil Transactions 
and 
  Cyd Grimes (or her successor) 
  Travis County Purchasing Agent 
  P. O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
 
 19.3 City Address.  The address of the City for all purposes under this Agreement and for all 
notices hereunder shall be: 
 
  Marc A. Ott (or his successor in office) 
  City Manager 
  P. O. Box 1088 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
 
With copy to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
 
  Abigail Smith, Officer (or her successor) 
  City of Austin 
  Animal Services Office 
  Office of the Officer 
  P. O. Box 1088 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
and 
  City Attorney 
  301 West Second Street, Fourth Floor 
  Austin, Texas  78701   
 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 19 of 35



 19.4 Change of Address.  Each Party may change the address for notice to it by giving written 
notice of the change.  Any change of address by City, including a change in the City's authorized 
representative, shall be reported to the County Executive and the Purchasing Agent within twenty (20) days 
of the change.  Any change of address by County, including a change in the County's authorized 
representative, shall be reported to the Officer within twenty (20) days of the change. 
 
20.0 PROHIBITIONS. 
 
 20.1 Conflict of Interest.  In performing duties under this Agreement, City employees shall 
comply with the conflict of interest requirements and ethics provisions set forth in the Austin City Code, 
Article 4, a copy of which has been provided to County, as well as with the conflict of interest provisions in 
Chapter 171 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
 20.2 Solicitation.  City warrants that no persons or selling agency was or has been retained to 
solicit this Agreement upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, 
excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by City to 
secure business.  For breach or violation of this warranty, County shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement without liability, or, in its discretion, to, as applicable, add or to or deduct from the Agreement 
price for consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or 
contingent fee. 
 
 20.3 Gratuities.  County may cancel this Agreement if it is found that gratuities in the form of 
entertainment, gifts, or otherwise were offered or given by City or any agent or representative to any 
County official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect to the 
performing of this Agreement.  In the event this Agreement is cancelled by County pursuant to this 
provision, the County shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover from City a 
sum equal in amount to the cost incurred by City in providing such gratuities.  City's employees, officers 
and agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from 
Subcontractors or potential Subcontractors. 
 
 20.4 Nepotism.  City agrees that it will comply with TEX. GOVERNMENT CODE ANN., Ch. 
573, by ensuring that no officer, employee or member of the governing body of City shall vote or confirm 
the employment of any person related within the second degree by affinity or third degree by consanguinity 
to any member of the governing body or to any other officer or employee authorized to employ or 
supervise such person. 
 
21.0 ASSIGNABILITY. 
 
 21.1 Written Approval.  No Party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other Party.  It is acknowledged by City that no officer, 
agent, employee or representative of County has any authority to assign any part of this Agreement unless 
expressly granted that authority by the Commissioners Court.  Submission of a request by City for approval 
under this Section 26.1 shall be made in writing to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the County 
Executive. Submission of a request by County for approval under this Section 26.1 shall be made in writing 
to the Officer. 
 
 21.2 Binding Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, 
administrators, and legal representatives of the Parties to this Agreement. 
 
22.0 LEGAL AUTHORITY. The person or persons signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party 
warrants that he, she or they have been duly authorized by their respective entities to sign this Agreement 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 20 of 35



on behalf of the entity and to bind the entity validly and legally to all terms, performances, and provisions 
in this Agreement.  Each Party warrants that the Party possesses the legal authority to enter into this 
Agreement, receive funds authorized by this Agreement, and to perform the services that Party has 
obligated itself to perform under this Agreement. 
 
23.0 INTERPRETATIONAL GUIDELINES.  
 
 23.1 Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time 
shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any 
period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that the City or County has declared a holiday for its 
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation. 
 
 23.2 Numbers and Gender.  Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed to 
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other unless the 
context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise. 
 
 23.3 Headings.  The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Agreement have 
been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection, and 
are not to be used in construing this Agreement. 
 
24.0 OTHER PROVISIONS. 
 
 24.1 Survival of Conditions.  Applicable provisions of this Agreement shall survive beyond 
termination or expiration of this Agreement until full and complete compliance with all aspects of these 
provisions has been achieved where the Parties have expressly agreed that those provisions should survive 
any such termination or expiration or where those provisions remain to be performed or by their nature 
would be intended to be applicable following any such termination or expiration. 
 
 24.2 Non-Waiver of Default.  One or more acts of forbearance by any Party to enforce any 
provision of this Agreement or any payment, act or omission by any Party shall not constitute or be 
construed as a modification of this Agreement or a waiver of any breach or default which then exists or 
may subsequently exist. 
 
 24.3 Reservation of Rights.  If any Party to this Agreement breaches this Agreement, the other 
Party shall be entitled to any and all rights and remedies provided for by Texas law and any applicable 
Federal laws or regulations.  All rights of City and County under this Agreement are specifically reserved, 
and any payment, act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to County or City under 
it.  The exercise or failure to exercise any right or remedy in this Agreement of City or County or the 
failure to act in accordance with law based upon the other Party's breach of the terms, covenants and 
conditions of this Agreement, or the failure to demand the prompt performance of any obligation under this 
Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Agreement or under any 
law, nor shall any action taken or not taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a waiver of 
any other rights or remedies. 
 
 24.4 Law and Venue.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all 
obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in the City of Austin, Texas, or in Travis County, 
Texas.  It is expressly understood that any lawsuit, litigation, or dispute arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement will take place in Travis County and the City of Austin. 
 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 21 of 35



 24.5 Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is ruled invalid, illegal or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of it shall remain valid and binding, and shall continue to 
have full force and effect and shall in no way be impaired or invalidated by that holding. 
 
 24.6 Political Activity.  City shall not use any of the Agreement Funds for any activity related 
to influencing the outcome of any election for public office, or any election, or the passage or defeat of any 
legislative measure.  This prohibition shall not be construed to prevent any official or employee of City 
from furnishing to any member of its governing body upon request or to any other local or state official or 
employee, or to any citizen, information in the hands of the employee or official not considered under law 
to be confidential  No Agreement Funds can be used directly or indirectly to hire employees or in any other 
way fund or support candidates for the legislative, executive or judicial branches of the government of City, 
the State of Texas or the government of the United States. 
 
 24.7 Sectarian Activity.  City shall ensure that provision of services under this Agreement shall 
be carried on in a manner free from religious influence.  City shall not execute any agreement with any 
primarily religious organization to receive Agreement Funds from City unless the agreement includes 
provisions as necessary to effectuate this assurance.  Neither City's nor County's selection of a 
Subcontractor nor expenditure of funds under this Agreement is an endorsement of the Subcontractor's 
charitable or religious character, practices or expressions.  No expenditures have as their objective the 
funding of sectarian worship, instruction or proselytization.  City and County agree to be bound by the 
provisions of Section 702 of the Civil Rights Act [42 U.S.C., Section 2000E-1(a)] regarding employment 
practices and Section 104 of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 
(8 U.S.C., Section 604a) regarding additional rights and responsibilities for charitable and faith-based 
providers of social services, assisted individuals and providers of such services. 
 
 24.8 Dispute Resolution/Mediation.  Initial disputes and unresolved questions or issues of City 
or County shall initially be presented by City to County by submission in writing to TCHHSVS with a copy 
to the County Purchasing Agent and by County to City by submission in writing to the Officer. If 
satisfactory resolution cannot be achieved between the Parties within a reasonable time,  and should 
mediation be acceptable to both Parties in resolving a dispute arising under this Agreement, the Parties 
agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas, as the provider of mediators for mediation as 
described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023.  Unless both Parties are satisfied 
with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the 
dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in 
TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Sec. 154.073, unless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the 
confidentiality. 
 
 24.9 County Public Purpose.  By execution of this Agreement, the Commissioners Court 
hereby finds that the needs to be addressed by the services to be provided under the terms of this 
Agreement and specifically set forth in the attached Work Statements, constitute a significant public 
concern impacting members of the population which the County serves.  The Commissioners Court further 
finds that the provision of services to be provided by City pursuant to this Agreement will further the public 
purpose of addressing those health and human services issues, problems and needs identified in this 
Agreement for identified individuals. 
 
 24.10 Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be financially liable to the other Party for delays or 
failures to perform under the Agreement where such failure is caused by force majeure (i.e. those causes 
generally recognized under Texas law as constituting impossible conditions).  Such delays or failures to 
perform  shall extend the period of performance until these exigencies have been removed.  The Party 
seeking to avail itself of this clause shall notify the other Party within five (5) business days or otherwise 
waive the right as a defense, unless notification is impractical under the circumstances, in which case 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 22 of 35



Contract No. 4400001169
Page 23 of35

notification shall be done in as timely a manner as possible. City agrees that breach of this provision
entitles County to reduce or stop payments or immediately terminate this Agreement.

24.11 Publicity. In any publicity prepared or distributed by or for City related to this
Agreement, the funding through County shall be mentioned as having made the project possible, either
through use of the County logo or in applicable text. Prior to publication or any disbursement of such
publicity, City must provide a copy of the final form of the publicity. When appropriate as determined by
County Executive, City shall publicize the services and activities of City and County under this Agreement.
City shall work with County to allow fordistribution from appropriate County locations of any materials
prepared related to services provided under this Agreement.

24.12 Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement sets out the agreements and obligations
between City and County only, and does not obligate City or County in any way to any other third party.
This Agreement creates no third party beneficiary rights as between City and any of County’s
Subcontractors or between County and any of City’s Subcontractors. City and County, respectively, each
have the sole responsibility for payment for services rendered by each Party’s Subcontractors with
Subcontractor’s sole recourse in the event of non-payment, insolvency or cessation of operations being
against the Party with whom the Subcontract was made. Neither Party shall under any circumstances be
liable to the other Party’s creditors or Subcontractors for any payments under this Agreement.

BY

BY:

Title:

Date:

TRAVIS COUNTY

BY:
SAMUEL T. BISCOE
Travis County Judge

Date:_______________

County Approvals:

As Legal Form:

,llf7
Assi’ant Cclnty Attorney

Fund dBy!

County Auditor

Date:_______

Date: i,12/3
Purchasing:

_________________________________________

Date:___________
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, County Purchasing Agent

CITY OF



ASO Interlocal Work Statement 

ATTACHMENT A 

WORK STATEMENT 

ANIMAL SERVICES PROGRAM 

I. PROGRAM SERVICES DESCRIPTION 

The City of Austin and Travis County have adopted rules governing the keeping of animals. State laws 
governing ownership of domestic and exotic animals are enforced by both jurisdictions through local policies 
and adopted rules and ordinances. The roaming nature of some animals across jurisdictional boundaries is best 
served by a collaborative effort. 

ll. PURPOSE 

The purpose of the Agreement is to allow the City and the County to combine resources and capabilities in 
providing a collaborative animal control enforcement and shelter services program that serves a regional 
populace in the identification and vaccination of domestic pets, the maintenance of shelter facilities, and the 
control of animals at large (both domestic and wild). 

ID. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY - CITY 

City-shall perform the following services on behalf of the County: 

A. ANIMAL CONTROL. The City of Austin will provide Animal Control (AC) services to Travis 
County as follows: 

1. Rabies. For services related to rabies control activities, services will be provided to those 
incorporated areas outside the city limits of the City of Austin but within Travis County which have not adopted 
ordinances or rules pursuant to Chapter 826, Tex. Health and Safety Code, and all unincorporated areas outside 
the city limits of the City of Austin but within the Austin ETJ and Travis County. 

2. Other Animal Control Services. For all other animal control services, City will provide for County 
in those unincorporated areas outside the city limits of the City of Austin but within the Austin ETJ and Travis 
County. 

3. City acknowledges that County has no responsibility to provide and will neither provide nor be 
charged under this Agreement for services to any incorporated area outside the city limits of the City of Austin 
but within Travis County which has adopted rules and ordinances pursuant to Chapter 826, Tex. Health and 
Safety Code. 

4. County Rules. 'city services will include enforcement of the adopted "Regulations of Travis County, 
Texas Governing Animal Control" ("Rules") as currently written and as amended. County will provide City 
with copies of any amendments to those Rules. Any amendment which may result in increased services 
demands and/or costs will not be effective until the Parties have mutually agreed to a written amendment to this 
Amendment as necessary to reflect such change. Specific services will include the writing of citations, 
impoundment of animals, and provision of education or educational materials as allowed under the Rules. 

5. Travis County Sheriffs Office (TCSO). An Animal Control Officer (ACO) will assist the Travis 
County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) with animal seizures when the TCSO has the authority to seize animals from a . 

Page 1 of7 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 24 of 35



ASO Interlocal Work Statement 

pet owner. As needed, assistance with animal transport will be available to TCSO or other emergency entity 
when they are responding to -emergency situations where the handling of animals is necessary. TCSO will 
continue to cover service response after-hours and when Animal Control personnel are not available to respond 
in a timely manner due to service demands, with increased communications and coordination to be maintained 
between TCSO and City Animal Control. 

6. Other services will include: 
a. Training. City will ensure that Animal Control and TCSO personnel are adequately trained 

on the law and Rules. 
b. Sick and Injured Animals. City will respond to calls for sick and injured stray animals and 

transport those animals to the shelter for care. 
c. Dangerous Dog Hearings. City will conduct Dangerous Dog hearings in accordance with the 

"Regulations of Travis County, Texas Governing Animal Control." 
d. Customer Services. City will provide customer service either by telephone or directly to 

citizens who visit the shelter 
e. Customer Complaints. City will dispatch personnel to resolve customer complaints 

associated with enforcement of the "Regulations of Travis County, Texas Governing Animal Control." 
However, customers will be referred to the appropriate agency (including Travis County) when the 
issues or service request is outside the scope of the above regulations or when the service required to 
resolve the issue is provided by another agency (including Travis County). 

f. Dispatch. Dispatch services will include the following: management of field resources while 
they are in the field; distribution of service requests to field resources; customer service resolution by 
telephone; filing of citations; and bite report tracking for all reported animal bites requiring rabies 
quarantine. 

g. Hours of Services will be: 
(1) Full Services. Hours of full service are 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Emergency only 
services are available from 6 p.m. to 7 a.m. On official City holidays, full service hours 
end at 3 p.m. and emergency only services begin at 3 p.m. 
(2) Telephone. Hours of service for telephone customer service will be 24 hours a day, 
365 days a year. 
(3) Visitation: Hours for customers visiting the shelter will be 11:00 to 7:00 p.m., 
every day of the week. 

B. SHELTER SERVICES. The Austin Animal Center (AAC) will accept every Travis County 
animal delivered to the shelter by animal control, emergency service personnel and those brought in/dropped off 
by citizens. Each animal is provided food, water, shelter, waste management, and veterinary care. Additional 
shelter services include the following: 

Acceptance and Maintenance of Animals 

1. When the shelter cannot provide treatment necessary to maintain the animal at a humane level of pain, 
that animal will be humanely euthanized according to applicable law. 

2. Animals will be held the minimum hold time as established in the "Regulations of Travis County, Texas 
Governing Animal Control." At the discretion of the City of Austin's Chief Animal Services Officer, an 
animal's hold time may be extended to allow additional time for reclaim or disposition of the animal. 
Records regarding each animal are maintained in a computer database and will be maintained for the 
length of time required by the state record retention schedule. Records will be made available to County 
upon request. 

3. All fees associated with the reclaim of animals as outlined in the "Regulations of Travis County, Texas 
Governing Animal Control" will be collected and deposited quarterly in County accounts as directed by 
County, and an accounting of funds collected provided to Travis County semi-annually. 

Page 2 of7 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 25 of 35



ASO Interlocal Work Statement 

Quarantine 

4. A fully accredited quarantine facility and system to provide for the strict isolation and close observation 
of dogs, cats, and domestic ferrets during quarantine to determine whether the animal was capable of 
transmitting rabies at the time it bit a person will be provided. All required state reporting will be 
completed as well as victim notifications. At the end of the quarantine period (240 hours), the owner 
may reclaim its animal by paying the associated fees or the animal may be evaluated for the adoption 
and rescue programs. Animals are also given their rabies vaccination if they are not current. 

Medical Care 

5. Emergency veterinary treatment and care is provided to any animal needing such care upon arrival at the 
Center. Injured animals requiring veterinary care above the capabilities of the Austin Animal Services 
(AAS) system may be referred to local emergency animal hospitals. Reclaiming owners are responsible 
for paying veterinary fees upon reclaim of their animal. 

6. Medical diagnostics, medical treatments, and vaccinations are provided to all animals that enter the 
shelter. These activities provide for the well-being of animals during their stay at the Austin Animal 
Center. They also help ensure healthy animals for the placement programs or return of the animal to its 
owner. 

Vaccinations 

7. Every animal leaving the shelter is provided rabies immunizations unless proof of current vaccinations 
is provided. 

Sterilization and Immunization 

8. A. Shelter. The shelter performs castrations and ovariohysterectomies on animals prior to their release 
(as per state law) through the placement programs. Additionally, when an animal is reclaimed after 
expiration of the mandated hold time the shelter will attempt to arrange for sterilization of the animal if it is 
intact. Approximately 85% of all adopted animals are sterilized on-site before they go to their new homes. 

B. County Clinics. County sterilization and immunization will be provided through immunization and 
sterilization clinics in low-income areas of Travis County identified by County as follows: 

a. Targeted areas. Low-income neighborhoods with large numbers of stray animals will be the 
targeted neighborhoods. 
b . Rabies Clinics. Pet owners in low-income neighborhoods will receive free rabies 
vaccinations if residents of Travis County. Vaccinations will be provided using City staff and 
volunteer resources. Services will be provided in convenient locations (parks, health clinics, 
libraries, etc.) within the neighborhood in order to eliminate transportation barriers. 

c. Sterilization Clinics. A mobile veterinary service will provide sterilization services. 
Animals will. be sterilized and receive a rabies vaccination at no cost to the owner. Services will 
be provided in convenient locations (e.g., parks, health clinics, libraries, etc) within the 
neighborhood in order to eliminate transportation barriers. 

Page 3 of7 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 26 of 35



ASO Interlocal Work Statement 

(1) Maximum Amount. During the Initial Term of the Agreement, the City will 
provide twelve (12) sterilization and immunization clinics at a maximum cost to County of 
$100,000. City's obligation to provide sterilization and immunization service to County will be 
limited to the amount funded each term by County for this purpose. Renewal Term amounts 
will be that amount set by the Commissioners Court in the budget process related to that term. 

(2) Invoices. Monthly invoices will be provided to County for each clinic held, with the 
invoice including the date of service, location of service, type of service, type of animal, and 
cost for the service(s). County's invoice will also include a copy of the service provider's 
invoice. 

(3) Fees. Fees for service will be those fees charged by the provider of services. As of 
June 5, 2012, the fees are as follows: 

AUTHORIZED SERVICE 
Dog Spay 
Dog Neuter 
Cat Spay 
Cat Neuter 
Additional charge for pets 
in HeatJPregnant 
Cryptorchid 
Rabies Vaccine 
DA2PPIDHPP Vaccine 

COST 
$48.25 
$41 
$34 
$28 

$10 
$ 6.75 
$ 11.00 

City will provide County with written notice of any change in the provider or the fees, or the 
minimum per clinic charge in subsection (4) below, and County's acceptance of any such 
change will be inferred effective 30 days from receipt of notice unless County notifies City of 
objection in writing. 

(4) Clinic Cost. The total paid by County for each clinic will be either the minimum 
amount charged to City per clinic, if any, which is anticipated to be One Thousand and One 
Hundred Dollars ($1,100) as of the effective date of this Agreement, or the actual amount for 
Authorized Services reflected in the invoices, whichever is greater. Only those services listed 
will be provided under this Agreement and reimbursed by County. 

e. Other Reporting. As to the above services, City will provide reports detailing dates of 
service, type of service, and type of animal for each animal receiving service. 

Euthanization 

9. Animals that are not released to the owner, placed into the custody of a new owner, or placed with 
another animal welfare organization for the purpose of rehoming or sanctuary, are humanely euthanized by 
injection according to applicable law. 

Adoption 

Page 4 of7 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 27 of 35



ASO Interlocal Work Statement 

10. An attempt will be made to place adoptable animals in new homes and lor place them with approved 
partner animal welfare agencies for the purposes of rehoming or sanctuary. Placement programs will 
maintain appropriate screening and matching criteria in order to optimize the opportunity of a successful 
placement for each animal. Additionally, the adoption program will provide education and education 
materials to shelter visitors. Animals will receive behavior examinations and medical examinations prior to 
placement in order to determine suitability for rehoming. 

11. Volunteers from the City's TLAC Volunteer Program will be utilized throughout the shelter programs 
when it is safe and useful to do so. Volunteers will also be used to provide education and outreach programs 
as appropriate. 

Shelter Hours 

12. Shelter hours of operation for receiving animals are 11 :00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 
1100 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Saturday and Sunday, 365 days per year. 

13. Shelter hours for all other services are 11:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. every day of the week. The shelter is 
closed (except for receiving of animals) on some official City of Austin Holidays. 

C. PREVENTION SERVICES. The City of Austin will provide education/outreach and prevention 
programs to impact animal welfare and reduce shelter intake. Programs are designed to improve the conditions 
and standards of care that animals experience as well as reduce the number of unwanted animals coming into the 
shelter. Examples of current programs include: 

1. Responsible Pet Owner class. First time violators of pet laws may have citations waived by attending 
the course on responsibilities of pet ownership. County participants may receive waivers pursuant to the 
Rules. 

2. Speakers are available for education opportunities in neighborhoods (group meetings, newsletters, 
church meetings, schools, clubs, etc.) 

3. Free rabies vaccination program. Free rabies vaccinations are provided in economically disadvantaged 
neighborhoods and education about pet responsibility issues and animal welfare issues is offered while 
conducting the clinic. County vaccination services will be provided as set forth herein. 

4. Free sterilization services are provided in East Austin neighborhoods on a weekly basis. This program 
may be expanded to the county sites as Travis County makes funds available. Sterilization services for 
the Initial Term of the Agreement will be provided as set forth herein. 

City will coordinate with County in developing or making changes to the above programs, including associated 
costs and expenses incurred by-County. County may elect to participate in the above programs each Agreement 
Term at the levels which County designates and for which budget is provided. 

D. PREDATOR CONTROL. Travis County provides predator control services in Travis County 
through an Interloca1 Agreement with the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Texas Cooperative Extension
Wildlife Services. The city provides 'customer service, field services, and logistical support to the County 
initiatives. The City contributes flnancial support as provided in the Cost Methodology section below. Predator 
control services will be provided as follows: 

I.General Services. Services will emphasize activities related to the coyote population, but will include, 
as feasible, services related to ,other damage-causing wildlife ("DCW"). 

Page 5 of7 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 28 of 35



ASO Interlocal Work Statement 

2. County Services. County will provide, either directly or through contract, those services related 
to wildlife management as outlined in the County's agreement with Texas Cooperative Extension- Wildlife 
Services ("TWS"). 

3. City Services. City will provide the following services during the operation of the wildlife 
management program: 

a. Handle calls related to coyotes and DMW at the AAC and City 311 call center and 
forward requests for services to the TWS biologist for handling as appropriate. 

b. Provide education and information to citizens in those cases where additional services 
are not warranted and assist the TWS biologist with education efforts in the neighborhoods including 
direct customer service, neighborhood meetings and material distribution. 

c. Maintain the database of complaints by geographic area to track problem 
neighborhoods and provide information to the TWS biologist. 

d. Transport carcasses of removed animals and dispose of them. This will include storage 
of carcasses in the AAC refrigerated storage facilities until such carcasses are picked up by City of 
Austin Resource Recovery to be delivered to the Texas Disposal Services landfill. 

e. Provide the rabies quarantine/testing and reporting required for any suspect animal. 

f. Provide any coordination support requested by the TWS biologist while conducting 
activities to facilitate notifications to the appropriate City departments. 

g. Transport trapped coyote(s) requiring euthanasia when requested by TWS. 

h. Euthanize coyote(s) when instructed by TWS to do so. 

i. Provide the necessary City authorization to access City-owned property to implement 
the wildlife management program as described herein. 

IV. STATEMENT OF RESPONSmILITY - COUNTY 

County shall be responsible for prosecuting offenses committed within the County's jurisdiction or concerning 
County regulations. 

v. SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. Services to be provided under this Agreement are limited to activities occurring in those areas within the 
applicable jurisdiction of Travis County as set forth in this Agreement and as provided by applicable law. 

2. County relinquishes ownership of any County animals impounded at the City's shelter; County's 
relinquishment of ownership gives the City the right to humanely dispose of the animals pursuant to the 
Rules, the terms of this Agreement, and applicable law. Disposal includes release to the owner, placement 
with another animal welfare organization for the purpose of rehoming or sanctuary, or humane euthanasia. 

3. By approval of this Agreement, County delegates animal control authority to the City as set forth herein 
and provides designation of qualified personnel of the City to enforce the rules and regulations enforceable 

Page 6 of7 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 29 of 35



ASO Interlocal Work Statement 

by Travis County concerning the keeping or care of animals. 

4. County agrees that the Animal Control Authority (as designated in the Ru1es) has authority and 
responsibilities as set forth in the Ru1es, this Agreement and applicable laws and regu1ations. Where City 
and County personnel are involved, City will work with County to maximize the enforcement efforts of all 
available City and County personnel assigned to duties carried out under this portion of this Agreement. To 
the extent possible, City will direct all personnel in a manner that will achieve maximum coverage of all 
portions of Austin and Travis County. 

VI. COST METHODOLOGY 

By April 15t of each term year the agreement is in force, City will provide to County the information necessary 
to prepare and compile the ensuing fiscal year's budget so that annual costs and expenses associated with the 
performance of the Agreement may be appropriately considered and budgeted. 

The annual fixed price for Animal Services shall be allocated as follows: 
1. Using a 3-year rolling average 

a. Animal Control services shall be based on the percent (%) of activities attributed to County; and 
b. Shelter Services, including Adoption and Rescue, shall be based on the percent (%) of animals 

accepted at the Shelter attributed to County. 
2. Spay/neuter sterilization services at County sites shall as set forth in Section m.B.S.c of this Work 
Statement. 

3. City will credit $10,000 per term year for coyote abatement services provided by the County' s Predator 
Control Program. The Parties agree that this credit has already been applied to the amount to be paid by 
County for the Initial Term. 

VII. PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

For Animal Services, the City shall provide performance reports to the County per Sections 9.1 and 9.3 of the 
Agreement. 

A. ANIMAL CONTROL. The following Travis County-only data measures will be reported: 
1. Number of citations issued for violations 
2. Number of citations that are processed to court as opposed to dropped due to compliance with officer-

provided alternatives to court 
3. Number of attendees at responsible pet ownership classes 
4. Percent of priority 1 and 2 activities completed 
5. Average Response Time (in minutes) 

B. SHELTER SERVICES. The following Travis County only data measures will be reported: 
1. Number of animals sheltered 
2. Percent of animals sheltered 
3. Number of animals adopted 
4. Number of animals returned to owner 

C. PREVENTION: SPAYINEUTER CLINIC 
1. Number of animals sterilized 
2. Number of animals sterilized at community clinics 
3. Number of spay/neuter clinics 

Page 7 of7 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 30 of 35



I 

m 
" o,o~ , .. 

'ii i ~l~ 43 ) 
I~ I . . , . . ~ .. i~' •• 1 
..11",;::;11: ·d z--I: 
.. E JiI '" •• ;u 

-• -
~ • 

£ 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 31 of 35



r 

i 
PrOl"am 
Animal Control 

I 
I 

I 
r 

Shelter Services 

i 
r 

Prevention SpaylNeuter Clinics 

10/1/2012 

FY 13 Publich Health Interlocal 
Animal Services Office 

(October 2012 to September 2013) 
Attachment C 

! 

. I All Other Fundln, l TOTAL (Travis 
TravIs County Annual . County + All 

Activity I Sources ;nnUaI Other) Annual 
Annual Performance Measure Go Goal 

1 
Average response time (in minutes) 90 80 85 

Average number of citations issuedfor 

110 I violations 1,200 1,310 

Number of citations that are processed to court I as opposed to dropped due to compliance with ' 
85 1 officer provided alternatives to court. 1,000 1,085 

Number of anendees at responsible pet 
25 1 ownership classes 100 125 

Percent of priority 1 and 2 activities completed. 95%1 95% 95% 

number of companion animals sheltered 3,000 . 17,000 20,000 
percent of animals sheltered 15%1 85% 100% 
number of animals adopted 1,200 . 9,000 10,200 

number of animals returned to owner 320 1 4,000 4,320 
r 

number of animals sterilized 1,200 I 5,212 I 6,412 
number of animals sterili=ed at community I 

6,200 I clinics I 1,800 8,000 
number of spay/neuter clinics 50 ! 140 190 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 32 of 35



ATTACHMENT D 
COUNTY PERSONNEL 

.As of October 1,2013, the effective date of this Agreement, this is one County employee providing 
services under this Agreement are: 

NAME: SLOT # Job Title 

1. Michael Parson 155 Animal Control Supervisor 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 33 of 35



ATTACHMENT E -INVOICE FORM 

INVOICE 

QUARTERLY BILLING PUBLIC HEALTH INTERLOCAL 

BILL TO: 

Travis County Health & Human Services & Veteran Services 

Attention: Sherri Fleming 

AMOUNT: Fiscal Year 2013 Quarterty Billing 

1S
\ Qtr Expenditures (October 1, 2012 - December 31,2012) 

COUNTY PERSONNEL: 

The following figures are based on County budgeted amounts for Fiscal Year 2013: 

Regular Salaries 

Overtime Salaries 

Longevity Pay 

TOTAL SALARIES 

FICA 

Hospitalization 

Life Insurance 

Retirement Contribution Quarter Two, Three & Four 

Workers' Compensation 

Medicare 

TOTAL BENEFITS 

TOTAL SALARIES & Benefits 

Administrative Allocation 

TOTAL OF ALL CREDITS: 

CREDIT: 

Employee Credit for 1/4 of Fiscal Year 2013 

Total: $78,391.00 
1/4: 

TOTAL DUE TO CITY OF AUSTIN: 

TOTAL CONTRACT; 

Slot # 155 

$52,507.00 

$1,500.00 
$54,007.00 

$3,348.00 
$8,353.00 

$99.00 
$6,627.00 

$389.00 
$783.00 

$19,600.00 

$73,607.00 

$4,784.00 

$78,391.00 

Date: 

$ 

($19,597.75) 

$19,597.75 

TOTAL NET CONTRACT; LESS CREPIT 

$ 967,275.00 

$ 888,883.00 Contract Balance; $ 869,285.25 

Qyarttc 1 Billing; 

Qyarter 2 BIlling; 

$ 19,597.75 Quarttc 3 Billing; 

Quarter 4 Billing; 

We certify that the above expenses are submitted pursuant to the Intertocal Agreement between the City of Austin and Travis County 
for Public Health. 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: DATE: ------

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 34 of 35



COATag Llc Plate 

XTS2600 Animal Services OffIce 

XTS2600 Animal Services OffIce 

97P014TC Animal Services OffIce 727·175 

04P016TC Animal Services Office 796·242 

04P017TC Animal Services OffIce 874-209 

10/1/2012 

FY13 Public Health Interlocal 
Animal Services Office 

(October 2012 to September 2013) 
Attachment F 

Serial LOC 

206CDA1237 ACOOoo 

206CDA1246 ACOOoo 

1FTEF276rvKD72698 ACOOoo 

1 FTNF20P74ED03626 ACOOoo 

1 FTNF20P&4ED03624 ACOOOO 

1 of 1 

Year Description Mlleaae 
2002 Motorola Potable Radio nla 
2002 Motorola Potable Radio nla 
1997 Ford F·2&O 174496 
2004 Ford F·2&O 166184 
2004 Ford F·2&O 172088 

Contract No. 4400001169 
Page 35 of 35



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663, Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract No.  4400001293, Spirit Reins, 
Inc.,  to provide Trauma Focused Equine Assisted Therapy  for youth 
referred from the COPE Mental Health Court and Crossover Unit. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The Contractor will provide Trauma Focused Equine Assisted Therapy 
for youth identified and referred by the Travis County Juvenile Probation 
Department in coordination with the Collaborative Opportunities for 
Positive Experience (COPE) Mental Health Court and/or Travis County 
Juvenile Probation Department Crossover Unit.   

Section 4.10 of the contract states: Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. 
CODE ANN. § 262  et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that 
this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the County 
Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or 
professional services.   

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  As-Needed   

Contract Type:  Professional Services Agreement 

Contract Period:  February 5, 2013 – September 30, 2013 

  Auto-Renewal 

 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 7



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #:  

  Funding Account(s): Grant:  800258; Internal Order: 100609; Product 
Code:  85121701; Commitment Item:  511010 

  Comments:  As Needed contract. 

 





















4400001293

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

SPIRIT REINS, INC.

FOR

TRAUMA FOCUSED EQUINE ASSISTED THERAPY

COLLABORATIVE OPPORTUNITIES FOR POSITIVE EXPERIENCE
(COPE) PROGRAM & CROSSOVER UNIT

CONTRACT NO. 4400001293

Travis County Purchasing Office

Page 1 of 25



‘4

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Defmitions 3
2.0 Term 4
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 4
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment 7
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access 9
6.0 Amendments/Modifications 9
7.0 Other Provisions 10

Approvals 15

Attachments

Attachment A — Scope of Services & Performance Measures 16
Attachment B — Fee Schedule 18
Attachment C — Insurance Requirements 19
Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including 22

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons 23
Attachment E — Certification regarding Debarment 25

Page 2 of 25

4400001293



4400001293

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR INDWIDUAL AND FAMILY COUNSELING SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the following parties: Travis County, Texas, (the
“COUNTY”) and Spirit Reins, Inc., (the “CONTRACTOR”).

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to obtain the services of a qualified counselor to provide Trauma Focused
Equine Assisted Therapy for Travis County referred participants of the Collaborative Opportunities for Positive
Experiences (COPE) Program & The Crossover Unit, for Travis County and;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the professional ability and expertise, and any necessary professional
degrees, licenses, and certifications to provide these services;

NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1.0 DEFiNITIONS

In this Agreement,

1.1 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor.

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and Spirit Reins, Inc.

1.5 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

1.5.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of any
property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or,

1.5.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a
calendar year;

1.5.3 but does not include

1.5.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a
posted, published, or marked price available to the public,

1.5.3.2 any fmancial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal,
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to

Page 3 of 25



4400001293

similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the
ordinary course of its business; and

1.5.3.3 a transaction for a fmancial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of
Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee
or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or
she should have known about the Contract.

1. 6 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavits
attached to this contract and marked as Attachment D.

1.7 “DIRECTOR” means the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer of Travis County Juvenile Probation
Department or her designee.

2.0 TERM

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by
all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

2.2 Renewal Term(s). Subject to continued funding by the Commissioners Court, this Agreement
shall thereafter automatically renew on October 1 of each year for succeeding terms of one year unless
sooner terminated by either party as provided herein.

2.3 Termination. Either party may terminate this Contract at any time by giving the other party
written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of the termination.

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and activities
described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is expressly
incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary
powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and his best professional
judgment.

3.3 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is
prohibited from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the
CONTRACTOR’ S obligations under this Agreement.

3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities
pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 {S.933].

Page 4 of 25



4400001293

3.5 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws,
rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the
performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently
delinquent in payment ofproperty taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector.

3.7 Insurance Requirements CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in
Attachment C, “Insurance Requirements”, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof.

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual
information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the DIRECTOR and may rely
on all factual information supplied by the DIRECTOR in response to these requests. However
DIRECTOR shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any elected official of
County for any other purpose than ëonveying factual information.

3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the
services in CONTRACTOR’S proposal.

3.11 Professional Licensure/Certification. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all necessary licenses
and certifications related to the Counseling services being provided hereunder. In the event licensure or
certification expires, is revoked, suspended, probated, or is canceled, CONTRACTOR shall inform
COUNTY of such event within five (5) working days.

3.12 H Duty to Report. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that suspected or alleged cases of child abuse or
exploitation or neglect of clients served under this Agreement are immediately reported to the Director
and to the appropriate authorities as required by law and in conformity with the procedures detailed in
Chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that its employees, interns,
volunteers, subcontractors, agents, and consultants are properly trained in the reporting requirements and
procedures of Chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code.

3.13 Standard of Care. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, CONTRACTOR
shall perform all services and responsibilities required of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement using
at least that standard of care which a reasonably prudent licensed counselor in Travis County, Texas
would use in similar circumstances. CONTRACTOR warrants the duties within this Agreement shall be

Page 5 of 25



4400001293

performed in a good and workmanlike manner. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve
CONTRACTOR of this duty.

3.14 Duty to Disclose Information. CONTRACTOR has an affirmative duty under this Agreement to
promptly ascertain and disclose in sufficient detail all of the following information to Director:

3.14.1 Any and all licensure complaints and any corrective action required by any of
CONTRACTOR’S licensing authorities or funding entities.

3.14.2 Any arrest of any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of
CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR.

3.14.3 Any finding of “Reason to Believe” by a state regulatory agency in a child abuse, neglect
and exploitation investigation where an employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or
consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR was the alleged or designated perpetrator.

3.15 Disqualifying Criminal History

3.15.1 CONTRACTOR agrees to provide documentation to DIRECTOR that a criminal
background check on every employee, intern volunteer or agent whose duties in connection with
this Agreement include direct access to youth referred under this Agreement. To comply with
this requirement, a criminal background check shall include a fingerprint-based criminal history
search of criminal information databases maintained by the Federal Bureau of Investigation and
by the State of Texas and shall have been conducted within two years prior to assignment of
services under this Agreement.

3.15.2 CONTRACTOR shall not assign or allow any employee, intern, volunteer, agent,
including employees and volunteers of its subcontractors, to provide services to youth referred
under this Agreement whose criminal background check reflects a disqualifying criminal history.
To comply with this requirement, a disqualifying criminal history includes: any felony
conviction or deferred adjudication within the past ten (10) years; any jailable misdemeanor
conviction or deferred adjudication within the past five (5) years; any current felony or jailable
misdemeanor deferred adjudication, probation or parole; or the requirement to register as a sex
offender.

3.16 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion from
Participation in Contracts Exceeding $100,000.00

The Contractor certifies, by entering into this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. The Contractor shall
include this certification requirement in all subcontracts to this contract that exceed $100,000.00.
*Form is provided as Attachment E*

3.17 CONTRACTOR certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Agreement is not
ineligible to receive the state funds or specified grant or payment under Section 231.006 of the Texas

Page 6 of 25



4400001293

Family Code and acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if this
certification is inaccurate.

3.18 Financial Reporting. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY copies of profit and
loss statements, annual fmancial statements, audit reports, and other fmancial records and reports that
may be requested by COUNTY. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct onsite review of
CONTRACTOR’S financial records and source documents.

3.19 CONTRACTOR is hereby notified that state funds may be used to pay for services rendered to
Travis County Juvenile Probation. For this reason, CONTRACTOR shall account separately for the
receipt and expenditure of all funds received as payment under this Agreement, and shall adhere to
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the accounting, reporting and auditing of such
funds. Contractor agrees to provide County an independent fmancial audit of all state funds received
under this Contract at least once a year. The audit shall be prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Auditing Standards and any other audit requirements of County or TJJD.

3.20 Monitoring. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct periodic fmancial and programmatic
monitoring of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees to cooperate fully with COUNTY’S monitoring
activities.

4.0 COMPENSATION. BILLING AND PAYMENT

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR’s compliance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: N/A-As needed Basis
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None.

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY’S satisfaction and given COUNTY’S
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY’S obligation to make any payment to
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR’S profession.

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and each
invoice shall contain the name of each client served by CONTRACTOR, the type and date of service
provided by CONTRACTOR, the total hours of service provided by CONTRACTOR, the fee assessed
for each service provided by CONTRACTOR and the total amount of payment requested for each client.
Each invoice submitted by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR. Original
invoices shall be sent to:

Page 7 of 25



4400001293

Financial Services
2515 South Congress Avenue.

Austin, Texas 78704.

4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30)
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to
CONTRACTOR.

4.6 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable.

4.7 Delinquent Property Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the
CONTRACTOR is delinquent w the payment of property taxes at the time of invoicing, the
CONTRACTOR hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered hereunder to the Travis
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt.

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Govermnent Code, If notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the State, the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not
be drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or assignee of
CONTRACTOR until:

4.8.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the debt is
outstanding; and
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid.

4.8.2 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written
agreements with the COUNTY.

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CONTRACTOR to the outstanding
balance of debt for which notice is made under section 4.8.1.1 above, if the notice includes a
statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may be applied to reduce
the outstanding debt.

4.9 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement.

4.10 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE ANN. § 262
et Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the
County Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services.

Page 8 of 25



4400001293

4.11 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it.

4.12 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that COUNTY is under no obligation to refer any
client to CONTRACTOR for services under this Agreement and this Agreement shall not be so
construed.

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records
and other information relating to services provided under this Agreement in accordance with the
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR
agrees to mask information identif’ing clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY’S monitoring
and evaluation duties in any way.

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall make
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR

5. 3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their
authorized representatives.

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries,
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR fl become property of the
COUNTY.

6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS

6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR
REPRESENTATiVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

Page 9 of 25



4400001293

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachment to it to the Director with a copy to the Purchasing.

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy,
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise Contractor as to such
authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit
any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing
Agent to sign the Amendment.

7.0 OTHER PROyISIONS:

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS,
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR iNJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS
CONTRACT.

7.2 Copyrights. Patents & Licenses. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable
copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on
materials used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the COUNTY shall not be liable for any
infringement of those rights and any rights granted to the COUNTY shall apply for the duration of this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY, its officers, agents, and employees from all
claims, losses, damages, causes of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation,
court costs and attorney fees for damages to any person or property arising in connection with any
alleged or actual infringement of existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in
this Agreement.

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, finn, corporation, or other entity against
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, finn, corporation or other entity that
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any,
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided
herein. Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions.

7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may,
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold

Page 10 of25



4400001293

further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein.

7.5 Non-Waiver of Default

7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of
any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist.

7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment,
act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it. Any
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

7.6 Forfeiture of Contract If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement, provided, however, that this
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics
Policy.

7.7 Entire Agreement

7.7.1 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement
related to the subject. matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this
Agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies
and procedures approved by Commissioners Court for County. Any prior agreements, promises,
negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect.

7.7.2 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance
with all the provisions of this Agreement.

7.7.2.1 Attachment A — Scope of Services
7.7.2.2 Attachment B — Fee Schedule
7.7.2.3 Attachment C — Insurance Requirements
7.7.2.4 Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including:

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons
7.7.2.5 Attachment E —Certification Regarding

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion for Covered Contracts

7.8 Notices:

7.8.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom

Page 11 of25



4400001293

the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail,
postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the
party at the address herein specified.

7.8.2 County Address. The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. CPPO (or her successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Estela Medina (or her successor)
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

7.8.3 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this
Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be:

Spirit Reins, Inc.
P.O. Box 368
Liberty Hill, TX 78642

(512) 515-0845

7.9 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8. Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen
(15) days of the change.

7.10 Authority: The DIRECTOR or her designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the
work to be performed under this Agreement. The DIRECTOR shall have complete authority to interpret
and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S services.
The DIRECTOR may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive information.

7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent. When the CONTRACTOR and/or
COUNTY have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this COUNTY, the
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY shall then present the matter to the Purchasing Agent by providing the
Purchasing Agent with written notice of the dispute. Such notice shall contain a specific written
description of the issues involved as well as the CONTRACTOR’s requested resolution of the dispute
and any other relevant information which CONTRACTOR desires to include. As of the receipt of such
notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the COUNTY representative in any
further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in relation to the described dispute. Unless
otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at
this stage not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent is may be considered void. If the CONTRACTOR
does not agree with any document, notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the

Page 12 of 25



4400001293

Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the
Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Director within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document,
notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will
issue a written notice of the fmal resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of
receipt of the initial written notice of dispute by the Purchasing Agent. If this fmal resolution does not
resolve the dispute to the Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to
the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy of
such response to the Director. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days
after receipt of the unsatisfactory fmal resolution. Contractor then has the right to be heard by
Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the
Commissioners Court agenda.

7.12 Mediation. If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to
paragraph 7.11, Contractor shall notify the Travis County Management representing this contract, and, if
mediation is acceptable to both Parties in resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties
agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas, or another mediation group as chosen by
County and approved by Contractor, as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX.
CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023. Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of
the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All
communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV.
PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the
confidentiality.

7.13 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with COUNTY
staff and other contractors as reasonable and necessary and as required by the DIRECTOR.

7.14 Independent Contractor. The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR is an
independent contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and
liabilities applicable to him as an independent contractor. CONTRACTOR shall not be considered an
employee of COUNTY, or gain any rights against COUNTY pursuant to the COUNTY’S personnel
policies.

7.15 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as
the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

7.15.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Agreement
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective shall not impair,
invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect thereof shall be limited to
the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

7.15.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in Travis
County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this Agreement shall be in the City of
Austin, Travis County.

7.15.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR that

Page 13 of 25



4400001293

no officer, agent, employee or representative of COUNTY has any authority to assign any part of
this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court.

7.16 Binding Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and their respective
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONTRACTOR may
assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent
of the other party hereto.

7.17 Performance of Other Services. As a part of this Agreement, it is understood that
CONTRACTOR is free to provide services outside this Agreement as it sees fit at those times which
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is also understood that COUNTY is free to have more
than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Agreement.

7.18 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement which by their terms are performable
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or
end and remain fully performable.

7.19 Interpretational Guidelines

7.19.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time
shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the last day of
any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that COUNTY has declared a holiday for its
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation.

7.19.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed to
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise.

7.19.3 Headings. The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Agreement
have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or
subsection and are not to be used in construing this Agreement.

7.20 Conflict of Interest Ouestionnaire: If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code,
the Consultant shall complete and file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk,
Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The Consultant shall update this
Questionnaire by September 1 of each year for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176
of the Local Government Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes
incomplete or inaccurate, the Consultant shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Consultant should
note that the law requires the County to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the official Travis
County Internet website.

7.21 The person or persons signing this Agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or representing
themselves as signing this agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and guarantee
that he, she or they have been duly authorized by CONTRACTOR to sign this Agreement on behalf of
CONTRACTOR and to bind CONTRACTOR validly and legally to all terms, performances, and
provisions in this Agreement.

Page 14 of25



4400001293

DUPLICATE ORIGiNALS

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

2CzL:Y

By: ca /&,‘iVcS;reJ,—
Name and Title (Prin(ed)

Date:

Travis County

By: Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Date:

Approved as to Legal Form By:
Assistant County Attorney

Approved by Purchasing:
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent

Page 15 of 25



4400001293

Attachment A
Scope of Services

CONTRACTOR, Spirit Reins, Inc., shall provide professional Equestrian Therapy for youth
identified and referred by the Travis County Juvenile Probation Department, hereinafter
“Department,” in coordination with the Collaborative Opportunities for Positive Experience
(COPE) Mental Health Court and/or Travis County Juvenile Probation Department Crossover
Unit, as described below:

1. Youth will be identified and referred to CONTRACTOR by the Department for Tratiina
Focused Therapy through use ofhorses and a trauma focused equine program.

2. The Department will designate what type of therapy (individual or family) that is to be
provided to each youth referred and CONTRACTOR will only provide the service(s) as
designated.

3. CONTRACTOR will give these youth and their family priority in scheduling
appointments for therapy when possible.

4. CONTRACTOR agrees to contact the COPE and/or Crossover Manager within twenty-
four (24) hours when a youth or family member does not attend a scheduled appointment
or a therapy session is cancelled.

5. CONTRACTOR may terminate services with approval from the COPE and/or Crossover
Manager if the family cancels or does not appear at three (3) consecutivly scheduled
appointments or sessions.

6. CONTRACTOR agrees that no payment will be provided for therapy sessions that do not
occur, regardless ofadvance cancellation or failure to appear by client.

7. If Equine Therapy is designated by the Department, then CONTRACTOR shall provide
Equine Therapy services to youth/family participants of COPE or individual sessions for the
youth of the Crossover Unit as follows:

7.1 Sessions will be in the CONTRACTOR’S community-based setting.

7.2 The first session will be provided within five (5) working days after the initial
intake.

7.3 The length of each individual session will be 50—60 minutes in duration for
twelve (12) weeks. The number of sessions may be increased if authorized in
writing by the Department.

7.4 Sessions will be therapeutic in nature with the goal of reducing behaviors related
to trauma experienced in the child’s past or current trauma that has been
conducive to escalating behaviors or the need of increased intervention by the
Department. Sessions can be used to establish or reestablish parent-child
relationships, teach coping and problem solving skills to the youth and address

Page 16 of25



4400001293

specific goals in the COPE individual/family case plan or Crossover Unit case
plan or any additional goals set forth by the CONTRACTOR.

7.5 Sessions will be scheduled weekly, unless CONTRACTOR deems it appropriate
to modify frequency.

7.6 All sessions will be completed within nine (9) months of the initial intake session.

7.7 CONTRACTOR will notify the COPE and/or Crossover Manager within forty-
eight (48) hours when the number of sessions are decreased due to either lack of
progress in the therapy sessions or termination of therapy.

7.8 At no time shall the number of sessions provided per client exceed twelve (12)
unless CONTRACTOR obtains written authorization from the Department.

7.9 CONTRACTOR will provide a weekly progress report using a form supplied by
the Department. These progress reports will address the youth and/or their
family’s compliance in keeping appointments and report any failure to appear for
scheduled appointments. The therapist will also provide any information on the
youth’s progress with therapy.

7.10 CONTRACTOR will provide a final progress report that will include outcome
information, as well as a diagnosis and current Global Assessment ofFunctioning
(OAF) within forty-eight (48) hours after the final therapy session.

Page 17 of 25



4400001293

ATTACHMENT B
FEE SCHEDULE

For and in consideration of full and satisfactory performance of the services and activities described in
the Scope of Services for Spirit Reins, Inc., Attachment A, Travis County Juvenile Probation Department
shall pay Contractor at a rate of:

Trauma Focused Equine (individual therapy) $70.00 per session

Trauma Focused Equine (family therapy) $85.00 per session

Page 18 of 25



4400001293

ATTACHMENT C
INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to AU Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ Vifi or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall be
considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of
policies and endorsements.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during y term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to lie cancelled or lapse during y term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

Page 19 of25



4400001293

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (ll.A - H.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(sI performing
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’
Compensation Act.

2. Employers’ Liability limits are:

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin:

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:
$500,000 per occurrence for coverage A and B with a
$1,000,000 policy aggregate

2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:
a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

4. a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

* Supplement Insurance Requirement If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided, the
required limits shall be:

$1,000,000 per occurrence with a
$ 2,000,000 policy aggregate

Page 20 of 25



4400001293

C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet

1. jf any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence
2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B)

t Alternative Insurance Requirement
If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to
and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of

$ 1 00,000I$300,000/$50,000
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance

1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services
under this Contract.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
this Contract is signed andlor effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3)
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of
coverage and the extended reporting dates.

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance shall
provide. Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their
insurance policy.

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires
or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and jjj contain both
the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date.

Page 21 of25



4400001293

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

ATTACHMENT D
ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date:________________________________________
Name of Affiant: kiiotka i

Title of Affiant: E ectc Av;t

Business Name of Proponent: p;r-’- ,Lrts
County of Proponent: 14L //ai

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit as
Exhibit “1”.

5. Affianthas personally read Exhibit il to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit ‘1” with whom Proponent is doing business or has done
business during the 365 day period immediately bef date of this affiday whose name is not disclosed in the
solicitation.

Signature of Affiant
2c15 i2 2p/ 2
Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by I?JJVÔ ‘\ Sfl’ lL I I I , 20
-

JUliE A. WATSON Notary Public, State of____________

STATE OF TEXAS Typed or printed name of notary JL LI
‘OF My COnTh. Exp. May 13, 2016 My commission expires: W’C i, )C’ 1o

Page 22 of 25



4400001293

EXHIBIT 1
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

December 17 2012

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant Vacant
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Kurt Sauer Daffer McDaniel, LLP
Executive Assistant Loretta Farb
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Karen Huber
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Leonard Huber Retired
Executive Assistant Garry Brown
Executive Assistant Julie Wheeler*
Executive Assistant Jacob Cottingham
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley*
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder*
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.*
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Interim Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Interim Chief Information Officer Rod Brown
Interim Chief Information Officer Walter Lagrone
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge

Page 23 of25



4400001293

Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis*
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M 03/14/13
Attorney, Transactions Division Tamara Armstrong 03/30/13
Executive Assistant Lori Duarte 06/15/13
Chief Information Officer Joe Harlow 07/31/13
County Auditor Susan Spataro, CPA 08/31/13
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P 09/26/13
Executive Assistant Cheryl Aker 10/05/13
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Jayne Rybak, CTP 12/14/13

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

Page 24 of 25



4400001293

ATTACHMENT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR
COVERED CONTRACTS

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a
contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered contractor must also
screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification ‘contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into. If it is
later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the potential
contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” ‘participant,” “person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily
excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, andlor Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? _YES

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled “Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts “without modification, in all covered sub contracts”; and
in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered
subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, ANI) VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
CONTRACTS

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal department or
agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County.

The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certilj to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, the
contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the
explanation(s) to this certification.

Name of Contractor Vendor ID. or Social Security No.

42%-4
YiO,1/3 2/1OnLQZ cS,ii; ;,-e,4r-

Signature of Authorized Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative

Page 25 of 25



‘ ,

$ > 3
,l

‘! ‘ ‘

J; . ‘ :4
‘: ‘

:

‘ *
£ .

qn?
t ‘ tft4fl7:t*k’ A1 ‘ . ,(;

I ) dYfl
jjjt

; — 4$t I r — t tt 4
1 A ‘ I t4% t ,, J i

S! 4kI I

r %J+f*f%u fliptA t(et/M i t & 4

V
V

444 11) I

f#1?4% *4’cgP 4lI 4 14 4êWk4Mf41 t47K4M 4i 4 4-4

4 1 ) 41; -Ø4 444; a; 4l4P)4fj
It 4 SM s< ‘t-’

4 4 ; t V VtII 94ttN 11 qG4;4’ ‘ ‘r4s ó’4%’fLte1i4;. 44 x4.4p ; 4

4 4’7a4 fl444 4; t4N p4;4 bp 4441544 441 c; t LA; 11q (44 I444 a
4 1P 111442 &N41t 4444144%

41I44
4 4i% 4;r

114) 44 .444(44444) 144; 44 \Ikk4l 11A4413 4’1t 141 4 44 44

44Ajt

4444 4 4) 4 L,s Lc%411fl4tA j14(4 1l$4 4 L-a S$ 44a)A

4j . 1 (444444112 4 .Vt- #ç1 4 4444 A4- lt 47

I
, 4414 I4/

41 i-.dAt
rl

‘l44- 4;. 47 111 4, w44J.. “4144 44 1L 44 44444.4 4, 4st;; 4

V aj 44 qst &4444g 44 j444 ki-4444t 144;7

4 4)4 4444 lfl ;44 A44fi4t- 4V 4 44444%J$I 4

.4 nkk4?44 404 VIal1
4I

1 4 ) S” 4 ,4444 );4%444 4*41

k1’*11 )tp41444 4;<ç, j
1444” a I 4’ j444 44” áw 1 \4; 1 1 44 4; 44 (4” * 44 ‘ 3 1 44.

A”’ 4+44 4t 4) 1 4 ç 4”I42 LI 4114 A 4;I 4;4*j 4; a44 ‘ t 44’
44(4445444 4d L4-44 Z4;434/f42h 1tIL 4;;43;

4; 124 44 4 41 4-’ 44 14; t44flh 444 1’ - 44-4;ct 14’w4

TI; a ‘*4 44 4 4; irn r7 “

4444, ‘ 41 ‘41.4; cI- )Q )444111 4111414 4i1t54W
4 4;-T4f t- I 4 4’ fl474 4544444 1 s4)j; 47 444 _414; *4444 44) -44

LA a 4 .41k £11 I 42 ‘‘4 4%4j42I441444f 4)1 a I44*, 14*414) uwb,#4.rs 441; .4.4) 441 444

) 4. j ;? ). 44 4 4 44 4aa-.-4 “41L44

44*. 44q ;-4;41 I 4441

4-,% 4\ )4; ifl$ ‘‘U’ ‘i%t- ½a*. ? fl111” jfl*. )

4 1 4.)r44)x

44 41 q4% 44 4L. 1141 444A,4 •4

3141j 4444 4 44 41’ 4’ 4 4 444 4j$4 d’4x?n4 441 1 4 414 jJ
4 (‘-*4; Pfl a i A _t’ 444; .n’ 44 1 (44F* V fl44I4444 4-,ik l,444

-

-‘ 44- 4; -.4 ‘r4 la.u4 44 45

4g-.; L4 ‘-‘ k’a”6.4t 144. s ‘. 2, 44 >S4 -- .4 14444k!

44 -rH), 44.1144;. I (14 444 .4, 4)1% 4 -447k ;/ -K4;-’44’4- t ½. ‘4 44/I’S I ;.;4’1444444’ 44444 -14444+41, 44 41444 4’,tt.414.

__I:
:-4-4’t-/ .4t14A4,Ør441

s-4;4;’ 1

L —

4”

k 4 h 444)flf ‘4- Iç4ft* 41 $4 4iV1(4Ø44 J’ t w

I

I
44



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lee Turner, P.E. 512-854-7598 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Steve Manilla, P.E. 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Commissioner Daugherty 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the 2011 Bond Program El Rey Boulevard 
Sidewalk project, in Precinct Three.  

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

El Rey Boulevard is located in the Granada Hills Subdivision in southwestern Travis 
County, Precinct Three.  The improvements involve installing one pedestrian sidewalk 
along El Rey Boulevard from US 290 West to Espanola Trail.  The Travis County 
Citizens Bond Advisory Committee voted to include the El Rey Boulevard Sidewalk 
project in the 2011 Travis County Bond package that was approved by the 
Commissioners Court and then the voters in November 2011.  After TNR got into the 
design of the project several property owners along El Rey objected to the project and 
indicated that they were not given the opportunity to express their concerns about the 
project. Several meetings between proponents and opponents of the project, as well as 
Citizen’s Communications at Court, have occurred during the past few months and no 
consensus has been reached. TNR has suspended design work on the project and now 
seeks Court affirmation for the project prior to re-starting the design process. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
TNR recommends proceeding with the design and construction of the project for safety 
reasons. It has been reported, during the bond project selection process and after the 
project was approved and started, that pedestrians must share the roadway surface 
with motor vehicles. Some residents are concerned with the narrow width of the shared 
roadway surface and the lack of shoulders for pedestrians to step aside when 
confronted with motor vehicles, some of which routinely exceed the posted speed limit. 
The sidewalk will improve safety along El Rey Boulevard by providing a walkway that 
will eliminate the need for pedestrians to walk in the street.  The sidewalk will be 
constructed in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and 
Architectural Barriers Regulations of Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation 
(TDLR).  
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 8



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

The El Rey Boulevard sidewalk project was included in the 2011 Travis County Bond 
package. The Commissioners Court approved a professional services agreement with 
Chan & Partners Engineers on October 16, 2012 to design the project.  When TNR Staff 
and the Consultant started to work with the homeowners whose property directly 
connects to the sidewalk, several of them indicated that they were not aware that the 
sidewalk was in the bond package. They also indicated that they did not want it installed 
in front of their homes for a variety of reasons.  Some of the area residents have 
appeared before the Commissioners Court to show support or to oppose the project. 
Their testimony was taken in December and January during Citizen’s Communication. 
The most recent and comprehensive testimony was made on January 29th. 

The basic safety issue is that currently vehicles and pedestrians must share the 
roadway surface. Homeowners who live on El Rey and support the project claim that 
walking in the street is unsafe because of the volume and speed of cars using the road.  
They report that when a car drives on the street they may need to step into the drainage 
ditch to allow the car to pass. Furthermore, at times they are forced  to the middle of the 
road to pass around parked cars.  They also report that a school bus picks up students 
at the community park, so students who walk to the bus stop must walk in the road.  

The project is intended to mitigate the safety issue by separating pedestrians from 
motor vehicles on the road.  

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
Funding for the El Rey Sidewalk project was included in the 2011 Travis County Bond 
package. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
None 
 
 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


Meeting Date: February 5,2013 

Prepared By: Thomas Weber Phone #: 4-4629 

Division Director/Manager: Jon.JJ1', Division Director-Natural Resources & 

Environmental QUalit~ r-


Department Head: Ste~~nilla, .E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on acceptance of a 

donation of $21 ,500 from TXI Operations, LP for the benefit of the Colorado River 

Corridor Environmental Monitoring Initiative. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR's Environmental Quality Program is managing the existing environmental 

monitoring project initially approved by the Commissioners Court on January 11, 

2011. The county has funded professional services through 2016 to carry out 

monitoring of air quality, noise, and groundwater elevations adjacent to tracts where 

TXI will commence sand/gravel mining near Hunters Bend Road and Dunlap Road. 


TXI and Travis County executed an agreement in 2012 that will result in land 

acquisitions by Travis County in exchange for county approval of site plan 

modifications to construct internal haul road stream crossings. TXI had to obtain 

water quality variances from the City of Austin (COA) in order to construct the stream 

crossings. The COA City Council approved Ordinance No. 20121011-071 on 

October 11, 2012. A copy of this ordinance is attached as Exhibit 1. As a condition of 

its granting of the variances, the COA is requiring that TXI donate $21,500 per year 

for three years (2013 - 2015) to the county for additional environmental monitoring 

[see Exhibit 1, Part 3.(A)(7)( e)]. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The 2013 funding from TXI has been received. TNR recommends the donation be 

accepted. If accepted, the funds will be encumbered so that a contract modification 

can be processed to enhance monitoring services, including monitoring of additional 

chemical constituents and using more sensitive trigger points for estimating 

threshold levels. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

The COA Environmental Board and City Council heard public testimony criticizing 

the monitoring program. This led to their action to require TXI funding to the county 


salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 9



I 

to address the public's concerns. Accepting this donation is a step towards 

addressing the concerns in our monitoring plan. Alternatives to this approach would 

be to either not enhance the monitoring or to fund the enhancements using county 

funds. 


TXl's donation is being made pursuant to requirements in a COA ordinance that 

does not result in any collaboration, negotiation, or acceptance of input from TXI 

regarding the county's monitoring program. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

The donation would have a positive fiscal impact to the county and would allow the 

county to enhance its current monitoring program without using county funds. 


ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Exhibit 1 - City of Austin Ordinance 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Financial Manager TNRCynthia McDonald 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 

cc: 

Donna Williams-Jones TNR-Financial Svs 854-7677 
Tom Nuckols County Attorney's 

Office 
Daniel Wilson County Auditor's Office 

0801 - NREQ



ORDINANCE NO. 20121011-071 


AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIANCES TO ALLOW CONSTRUCTION OF 
INTERNAL HAUL ROADS IN THE CRITICAL WATER QUALITY ZONE BY 
TXT OPERATIONS, LP; ESTABLISHING CONDITIONS FOR THE 
VARIANCES; ESTABLISHING PROJECT REGULATIONS; AND PROVIDING 
EXPIRATION AND LIMITATIONS FOR THE VARIANCES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN: 

PART 1. FINDINGS. 

The City Council finds that: 

(A) 	 The properties located at 801-1019 Dunlap Road, 4501 N. Dunlap Road, and 
] 860 I FM 969, subject to Site Plan Nos. SP-2008-0513D, SP-2008-0515D, 
and SP-99-0186D, respectively, are currently legally permitted for the 
mi ning of sand and gravel by TXI Operations, LP ("TXl"). 

(B) 	 TXI will submit revisions to SP-99-0 186D for sand and gravellnining on the 
properties described in the attached EXHIBIT A not later than 60 days after 
the effective date of this ordinance. 

(C) 	 TXl and Travis County are negotiating a Development Agreement regarding 
the properties described above, the essential elements of which are: 

(I) 	 TXI will forego the use of Dunlap Road and Hunters Bend Road for 
the transportation of unprocessed mined materials. 

(2) 	 TXI will donate certain real property to Travis County for 
conservation as open space or parkland, and sell certain real property 
to Travis County to buffer neighborhoods from TXI operations. 

(3) 	 To buffer neighborhoods set forth in the agreement from TXI 
operations, TXI will agree to prohibit mining and industrial uses on 
property TXI owns now and property TXI may own in the future. 

(D) 	 Three important components of the Agreement are: 

(1) 	 the ability of TX] to construct an interna1 hau] road andlor conveyor to 
transport mined materials to its processing plant without using public 
roads, except for a single crossing of Dunlap Road; and 

(2) 	 the ability of IXI to continue its sand and gravel mining operations on 
the projects subject to Site Plan Nos. SP-2008-0513D, SP-2008
0515D, and SP-99-0 I86D, and 

Page 1 of 11 



(3) 	 the ability ofTXI to conduct sand and gravel mining on the properties 
described in EX") BIT A under the regulations in effect on October 
30,2008. 

(E) 	 Construction of the internal haul road andlor conveyor requires variances 
from City environmental regulations. 

(F) 	 The City is willing to grant the needed variances for the internal haul road 
and/or conveyor, subject to specific conditions to mitigate any 
environmental impact of the variances. 

(0) 	 The City is willing to establish the regulations under which the properties 
subject to Site Plan Nos. SP-2008..0513D, SP-2008-0515D, and SP-99
0186D and described in EXHIBIT A will continue to operate, and the 
regulations under which the properties described in EXHIBIT A w·j 11 be 
reviewed, subject to specific conditions. 

PART 2. V AR1ANCES. 

(A) 	 The variances in this Subsection (A) apply to the construction of internal 
haul roads andlor conveyor and associated creek crossings on the properties 
subject to Site Plan Nos. SP2008-0513D, SP2008-0515D, and SP99-0 186D. 
The variances are effective only after TXI has met all the conditions listed in 
Part 3 of this ordinance. 

Subject to the conditions listed in Part 3 of this ordinance, variances are 
granted from: 

(I) 	 City Code Section 25-8-341 (Cut Requirements), to allow cuts to 
exceed four feet but not to exceed ten feet for construction of the 
proposed internal haul road and/or conveyor and associated creek 
crossIngs; 

(2) 	 City Code Section 25-8-342 (Fill Requirements), to allow fi]] to 
exceed four feet but not to exceed ten feet for construction of the 
proposed internal haul road and/or conveyor and associated creek 
crossings; 

(3) 	 City Code Section 25-8-392 (Critical Water Quality Zone), to allow 
the proposed internal haul road andlor conveyor to cross Gilleland and 
Elm Creeks at the three locations shown in the attached EXHIBrr B; 
and 

(4) 	 City Code Section 25-8-281 (Critical Environmental Feature) to 
allow a reduced setback for wetlands and wetland mitigation as 
established in this ordinance. 

Page 2 of 11 



(B) 	 The variance in this Subsection (B) applies to internal haul roads and/or 
conveyor and associated creek crossings and the sand and gravel mining 
operations subject to Site Plan Nos. SP2008 ..0513D, SP2008-0515D, and 
SP99-0 186D and to the sand and gravel mining operations on the properties 
described in EXHIBIT A. The variance is effective only after IXI has met 
al1 the conditions listed in Part 3 of this ordinance. 

Subject to the conditions 1isted in Part 3 of this ordinance, a variance is 
granted from City Code Section 25-5-81 (Site Plan Expiration) to provide 
that the site plans subject to this ordinance expire only after the reclamation 
of all mined areas and processing of materials from those areas at the 
Webberville processing plant has been completed, or thirty-five (35) years 
after the effective date of this ordinance, whichever is sooner. 

(C) 	 The variance in this Subsection (C) applies to site plan revision app1ications 
for the nlining of sand and gravel on the properties described in EXHIBIT 
A. The variance is effective only after TXI has met all the conditions listed 
in Part 3 of this ordinance. 

Subject to the conditions listed in Part 3 of this ordinance, a variance is 
granted from City Code Section 25-1-533 (General Rules) to allow the sand 
and gravel operations and development applications on the properties 
described in EXHIBIT A to comply with the regulations in effect on 
October 30, 2008 rather than the regulations in effect on the date the 
application is filed. This variance does not apply to regulations exempt from 
Texas Local Govenlment Code Chapter 245 (Issuance o.f Local Permits). 

PART 3. VARIANCE CONDITIONS. 

(A) 	 Compliance with the conditions listed in this Subsection (A) shall be 
determined by the director of the Watershed Protection Department and the 
director of the Planning and Development Review Department based on site 
plan revisions filed by TXI. The site p1an revisions filed by TXI shall 
include notes requiring ongoing comp1iance with the listed conditions. 

(1) 	 Haul Road and/or Conveyor 

Plans filed by TXI shaH demonstrate: 

(a) 	 Erosion and sedimentation controls ("ESC") shall be installed 
at each creek crossing to remove sediment from road runoff in 
accordance with the City of Austin EnvironmentaJ Criteria 
Manual ("ECM"). 

Page 3 of 11 



(b) 	 The 2-year stonn shall be used as the minitnum storm for ESC 
design. 

(e) 	 AI] berlns and other ESC sha1l be placed to avoid trees, and 
may not be placed within the critical root zones of trees. 

(2) 	 Critical Water Quality Zone: 

Plans filed by TXI shall demonstrate: 

(a) 	 MaxitTIum use of ESC per ECM Section 1.4, with a focus on 
prevention of erosion of disturbed soils using site management 
and prevention techniques including but not Hmited to 
maximizing phasing, p1acing stockpiles outside of the 
floodway, providing temporary stabilization within 14 days, 
diverting flows around work areas, and placing controls in 
layers where appropriate. 

(b) 	 The limits of construction shall exclude the critical water 
quality zone, to the maximum extent feasible. 

(3) 	 Bridge Crossing over Gilleland Creek: 

Plans filed by TXI shan demonstrate: 

(a) 	 Streatn channel bed and bank stability, using HEC/RAS 
modeling with creek at range of -flows up to 100 year stornl and 
Colorado River at base flow conditions. 

(b) 	 Approaches to bridge (paved and unpaved) shall be designed to 
withstand the 100 year stonn. 

(c) 	 The bridge and its paved approaches have curbs directing all 
stormwater to sedimentation basins. 

(d) 	 The road is graded to drain to sedimentation basins. 

(e) 	 The ESC have sediment basins or traps per ECM Section 
1.4.5(K) or (L) to remove sediment prior to discharge to 
vegetated areas. 

(f) 	 Basins and traps are able to be easily maintained and applicant 
shall clean the basins and traps when sediment reaches either 
50% of design depth or 1 foot, whichever occurs sooner. 

Page 4 of 11 



(g) 	 Discharges from basins or traps shall be dispersed to vegetated 
areas using a level spreader and shall be designed to eliminate 
the possibility of erosive flows. 

(h) 	 A schedule for periodic street cleaning of the bridge and its 
paved approaches and regular ESC maintenance plan. 

(4) 	 At-Grade Crossings over Ehn Creek: 

PJans filed by TXT shall delnonstrate: 

(a) 	 Appropriate annoring and anchoring of at-grade crossing for 
stability and to prevent scour of channel at base flow and up to 
IOO-year stonn. 

(b) 	 Approaches to at-grade crossing (paved and unpaved) shall be 
designed to withstand lOO-year storm. 

(c) 	 Roadside channels on each side of the road down slope to the 
at-grade crossing shall constitute a series of gentle drops 
("broken backs") and flow shall be designed to eliminate the 
possibility of erost ve flows. 

(d) 	 Berms shall be composed of compacted earth and vegetated 
with sod and shall be designed as sedimentation basin or traps 
per ECM Section 1.4.4.B.I, Section 1.4.4.B.2, and Section 
1.4.5(K) or (L). 

(e) 	 Berms shall be designed to be stable and pennanent in flows up 
to the lOO-year storm. 

(f) 	 All berms and other ESC shall be placed to tninimize the effect 
on trees. 

(g) 	 Quantification of performance for TSS removal per ECM 
Section 1.4.4.B.I, Section 1.4.4.B.2, and Section 1.4.5.K. 

(h) 	 Mulch logs shall be used instead of silt fence outside of berms 
during construction and shaH be removed after construction is 
complete. 

(i) 	 A schedu1e for periodic street cleaning of the at-grade crossings 
and their paved approaches and regular ESC maintenance plan. 

(5) 	 Conveyor: 

Plans fi]ed by TXI shall demonstrate that any mechanical material 
transport at any stream crossing shall be placed above the elevation of 

Page 5 of 11 



the lOO-year, 24-hour storm and shall have sufficient containment to 
prevent discharge of materials into or adjacent to streams. This 
condition shall be included as a plan note on the submitted site plan 
reVISIon. 

(6) 	 Wetland Protection: 

Plans filed by TXl shall demonstrate: 

(a) 	 The limits of construction sha1l exclude Critical Environmental 
Feature (CEF) setbacks to the maximum extent feasible. 

(b) 	 All CEFs and approved CEF setbacks shall be shown on the 
plan sheet, including those within the ordinary high water mark 
of Gi lleland Creek. A note may be made on the plan sheet that 
CEF details may be modi tied only upon approval by the 
director of the Watershed Protection Department or designee. 

(c) 	 A Restrictive Covenant, approved by the City Attorney or 
designee, executed by TXl, and filed of record in the Real 
Property Records of Travis County, Texas, shall restrict from 
development and ensure that the mitigation area more 
particularly described in the attached EXHIBIT CremaIns 
undisturbed and in its natural state in perpetuity. 

(7) 	 Additional Conditions: 

(a) 	 TXI shall not use fertilizers, pesticides, or herbicides within the 
critical water quality zone, except those used for agricultural 
purposes. 

(b) 	 TXT shall revegetate all disturbed areas within the Critical 
Water Quality Zone ~n accordance with City Standard 
Specification Series 600, item 609S (Native Grassland Seeding 
and Planting .for Erosion Control) including rooted plantings, 
seeding, soil type and depth, and temporary irrigation. Species 
selection shall be based on site specific species, and must be 
approved in advance by the City. 

(c) 	 TXI shall be required to post fiscal security and provide 
temporary irrigation as required under the Austin City Code, 
which may include but is not limited to use of water trucks or a 
sprinkler system. 

Page 6 of 11 



(d) 	 TXl shall file site plan revision applications for the mining of 
sand and gravel on the properties described in EXHIBIT A not 
later than 60 days after the effective date of this ordinance. 

(e) 	 TXI shaH provide funding in an amount not to exceed $21,500 
per year for up to three years of additional monitoring by Travis 
County. 

(8) 	 Compliance with the conditions listed in this Subsection (8) shall be 
determined by the City Attorney based on documents provided by Travis 
County and TXI. 

(1 ) 	 Agreement: 

A Developn1ent Agreelnent between Travis County and TXI 
regarding the development of the properties subject to City Site Plan 
Nos. SP-2008-0513D, SP-2008-0515D, and SP-99-0 186D, and the 
development of the properties described in EXHIBIT A has been 
executed and recorded in the Real Property Records of Travis County, 
Texas. 

(2) 	 Escrow: 

TXI and Travis County have placed in escrow all items required to be 
escrowed under the Development Agreement. 

PART 4. EXPIRATION; LIMITATION. 

(A) 	 The variances granted in Part 2 (A) of this ordinance expire upon the 
expiration of City Site Plan Nos. SP-2008-0513D, SP-2008-0515D, and SP
99-0186D. 

(B) 	 The variance granted in Part 2 (C) of this ordinance expires: 

(a) 	 60 days after the effective date of this ordinance if sand and grave] 
mining site plan revision applications have not been filed for the 
properties described in EXHIBIT A; or 

(b) 	 upon expiration of the site plans for the properties described in 
EXHIBIT A, whichever is earlier. 

(C) 	 The variances granted in this ordinance do not apply to any use other than 
sand and gravel mining, the internal haul road and/or conveyor and 
associated creek crossings on the properties subject to City Site Plan Nos. 
SP-2008-0513D, SP-2008-0515D, and SP-99-0 1860. 

Page 7 of 11 



(D) 	 Development applications filed for uses other than sand and gravel mining 
on the properties subject to this ordinance must comply with the regulations 
in effect at the time of application. 

PART 5. Approval of the variances granted in this ordinance does not constitute 
approval of zoning, subdivision, a site plan, a building permit, or any other deve]opment 
permit, and it does not constitute a commitment to any particular land use, intensity of 
land use, or utility services. 

PART 6. The requirements imposed by City Code Section 25-8-41 (Land Use 
Commission Variances) regarding the processing and granting of variances is hereby 
waived for the variances granted in this Ordinance. 

PART 7. This ordinance takes effect on October 22,2012. 

PASSED AND APPROVED 

§ 

§ 	 &)-1./_______O~ct~o~be~r~1~1_______,2012 §-------~-fl~~fi-ng-W-e~D------
Mayor 

Page 8 of 11 



AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIANCES FOR SPECIFIC PROJECTS OF 

TXI OPERATIONS, LP FROM CERTAIN REGULATIONS 

EXHIBIT A 


DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES TO FILE SITE PLANS 

FOR SAND AND GRAVEL MINING 


Page 9 of 11 



_~"'",I>---. 
4A. ..J 

\ 
) 

. '\ 
{ 

."" 
o· 

'('9C>', ~? ~.. Uti \. ,<'; , 

.,-11 ~'"~--"~;'=lt-, ~ ;._=.~ •.~~."c::::":,,,~,,~:,-,~, 
~ ~ ... 

~' 
i 
! 

<f 

""- .. ""- .... - .. ~---- .. 

4>' 
\ 

- - - ..- PROPEI\TY BOUIICARV 
• -- -- ·-LNITOf'IXIHiTR\.ICtION((lRICItALPEIWIT,I'I'HEiU1: 

A t.,;,;;,. -;.--;; NOTDEF~Eoev CWQZORl'RoPERTY800NOMYI 
-----wATfAWf<VCENTERUfE 
-. - -m~E"~((lI'I,II'.lWll'EIWITi 
.__ •. __ •••• ,oo-r~F~.(FaAA21lQ') 

[ : : : )tRIl'lI:AI.WAtEROU1,lllYlONiIC~ 
• - - - ·W..\leROIJI.U1'YTAANSlTIONZtM:iWQ'l'1l 
t::!!ZZ':E:iPfQ05EO ~ £xPMlSDI ARfA!I (l'1311C.) 

• • !.lINING E)(i>AHSl)N PaNTS iStE TAIIL£ TItS SHEEl) 

~.....~--.~-

1II1 ('SrM<*''fr'1 

I' , £:-~Gi··-~ .r_._ I., ,.."., ••~... _r..._'h__ .......,....... 
~.......:r ..til.. _~~ f!J'" dllitJl'li. t'Jllln 

~ 

EXHIBIT "A" 




AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIANCES FOR SPECIFIC PROJECTS OF 

TXI OPERATIONS, LP FROM CERTAIN REGULATIONS 

EXHIBITB 


LOCATION OF CREEK CROSSINGS 

Page 10 of 11 



§IaItu q;:
~"(',o\>$8S J 

"'D ~a.,D ,§ 

........'-,'.'. .-, ,_i 

TXI 
!.O~l\;!'::1v 

:'~ST 

........l ""If 

/ 
, 

i 

.I 

/ 

/ 
t 

/
i· 

Txt 

TXI 
rORhSBV 

•....EST 

PRELIMINARY DRAWING 
fOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 

lEGEND 

lXI 
H0RNsav 

"."'Sf 

~ I ~ 

'J'o1-tiHt- H,vll'J

,. .......... CC\l~i::C{ING HA.!L ;,Qi;o---------- 
 # J Txt PROJECTS 
PROPOSED CROSSING LOCATIONSf4UGI\M=:NT VARIES ',MTH WINING PI1t.SE.t l11r ~~'1Z1J i ~ 

\ 

EXHIBIT." 



AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIANCES FOR SPECIFIC PROJECTS OF 

TXl OPERATIONS, LP FROM CERTAIN REGULATIONS 

EXHIBITC 


DESCRIPTION OF WETLAND MITIGATION AREA 

Page 11 of 11 



t 
j 

I 
I 
I

• 
I 
I 
" ",

" 

" 
'~ 

'"\ 

I., I TXI HORNSBY EAST &WEBBERVILLE 
MITIGATION AREAa 

·t. t;-.- =jFOr J f \ 
(SCAJ.£ IN FEET) 



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: January 15, 2013 
Prepared By: Thomas Weber 
Division Director/Manager: Jon White, N " ural Resources & Environmental 
Quality Division r 

Department HeadlTitle: Ste anilla, .E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests: 
A) A variance from Travis County Code, Section 82.941 (i), to allow the Lake Travis 
ISO to construct a storm sewer outlet headwall within a waterway setback; 
B) A variance from Travis County Code, Section 82.943(a), to allow the Lake Travis 
ISO to place fill material and cut excavations in excess of eight vertical feet; and 
C) A variance from Travis County Code, Sections 82.401 (a) and 82.920, to allow 
the Lake Travis ISO to proceed with a construction plan for the New Middle School 
without filing ·fiscal security. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
In Basic Development Permit Application #12-1748, Lake Travis ISO proposes to 
develop a 32.46 acre tract at 4932 Bee Creek Road, in the City of Lakeway ET J, to 
construct the New Middle School, including associated drives, sports fields, utilities, 
water quality controls, and detention structures. The proposal is subject to the 
development permitting requirements of Travis County and City of Lakeway. The 
tract for the school site generally wraps around the top of a hill with steep slopes 
facing west and downhill to a tributary of Bee Creek. Approximately 27% of the site 
has slopes greater than 150/0. The site consists of mixed grasses and dense wooded 
areas adjacent to a horse farm. The applicant requests two variances to allow the 
preferred development configuration in spite of the topographic challenges of the 
site. The applicant also requests a variance from fiscal security requirements. 

Variance A would allow construction of a storm sewer outlet headwall within the 
waterway setback of a tributary of Bee Creek. Section 82.941 (h)(1 )(B)((i) of the 
Travis County Code requires a setback of 25 feet from the 1DO-year floodplain 
boundary of a waterway. Section 82.941 (i) requires that setbacks shall remain ·free 
of construction, development, and other alterations. Section 82.941 (i) also requires 
that drainage patterns from development be dispersed into sheet flow before 
reaching the setback area. 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 10



Variance B would allow land grading changes including excavations ("cuts") and 
placement of fill material to exceed eight feet of elevation change, in order to 
construct the school and associated structures on this site. Section 82.943(a)(1) of 
the Travis County Code specifies that all cut and fill land balancing is limited to a 
maximum of eight vertical feet. 

Variance C would allow the construction plan to proceed without the posting of 
construction fiscal security for temporary erosion and sediment controls and 
permanent site stabilization. Section 82.920 specifies that approval of a commercial 
site development is contingent upon execution of fiscal security. Section 82.401 (a) 
specifies that the County will not approve a construction plan for a commercial 
development until the filing of construction security payable to the County Judge, in 
the amount equal to the cost of placement of temporary erosion and sediment 
controls and achieving permanent site stabilization. 

Section 82.921 sets out the procedures and submittal requirements for a variance 
that an applicant may request. Exhibit 1 includes the written variance requests by 
Lake Travis ISO. Staff has determined that the requests are complete and consistent 
with the submittal requirements. 

Section 82.921 (c) speci'fies that the Commissioners Court may grant a variance if it 
determines that: 
(1) the requirement will deprive the applicant of a privilege or the safety of property 
given to owners of other similarly situated property with approximately 
contemporaneous development; 
(2)(A) the variance is not based on a condition caused by the method chosen by the 
applicant to develop the property, unless the development method provides greater 
overall environmental protection than is achievable without the variance; 
(2)(8) the variance is the minimum change necessary to avoid the deprivation of a 
privilege given to other property owners, to allow a reasonable, economic use of the 
entire property, and a reasonable use of the entire property; 
(2)(C) the variance does not create a significant probability of harmful environmental 
consequences; and 
(2)(0) development with the variance will result in environmental protection that is at 
least equal to the environmental protection achievable without the variance. 

The waterway setback requirements and cuUfili limitations were adopted by Travis 
County in 2005 and became effective in an ET J in the Lake Travis watershed in 
2010. The requirement of fiscal security for temporary erosion and sediment controls 
and permanent site stabilization became a requirement of Travis County on august 
14, 2012. 



STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Variance A: 
Staff recommend approval of Variance A. Lake Travis ISO proposes placement of a 
storm sewer outlet headwall within the waterway setback in a drainage easement 
granted by the adjacent property owner (See Exhibit 2). Staff agrees with the 
applicant that the encroachment into the setback would allow for more certain 
compliance with Section 82.941 (i) at significantly less cost while significantly 
dissapating the velocity and energy of the flow at the outlet point. While the variance 
is caused by the method chosen by the applicant, the staff believe the location of the 
storm sewer outlet below the steep slope will achieve greater environmental 
protection and reduces the probability of soil erosion and harmful environmental 
consequences than if the storm sewer discharged above the steep slope and outside 
of the waterway setback. Staff also have determined that the applicant's variance 
request is a method that makes minimal alteration of the waterway setback area 
(affected area equals 1821 sq. ft. or 0.041 acre), includes sufficient erosion and 
stabilization controls while construction of the storm sewer occurs. 

Variance B: 
Staff recommend approval of Variance B. Lake Travis ISO proposes placement of 
land balancing cuts totaling 0.519 acres and fill placement totaling 2.441 acres. 
Exhibit 3 shows the specific locations proposed for the cutlfill. Staff agrees with the 
applicant that cuts and fills exceeding eight feet are important in order for design a 
functional site that provides educational services on this topographically challenging 
location. Without the variance, all athletic 'functions would not be possible and the 
practice and competition fields would need to be limited due to the topography. The 
applicant notes that the amount of cut/fill is minimized due to the school design of a 
split level building, use of terraced retaining walls, and placement of 73% of the 
facility on slopes of less than 15%, more closely following the natural terrain. 

The potential environmental impact of the cut/fill is mitigated by the applicant. First, 
TNR is requiring a detailed sequence of construction to limit the runoff impacts from 
disturbed land. Secondly, use of reinforced concrete, engineered retaining walls on 
the site will contain fill and armor the faces of the cut slopes in the cut areas and the 
embankment materials in the fill areas. Also, certain steep slopes will be sodded with 
solid grass or will use permanent rock berms. These measures will provide for an 
equivalent level of environmental protection when compared to shallower cut/fill and 
the proposal does not create a significant probability of environmental harm. 

Variance C: 
Lake Travis ISO provided an engineer's cost estimate that permanent stabilization of 
the site's disturbed land surface will cost $282,650 for hydromulch seeding, topsoil, 
and watering. The cost of erosion controls is estimated as $60,140. The applicant 
proposes that fiscal security for the total amount of $343,790 be waived by Travis 



County. In lieu of posting the security, the ISO provided a letter of commitment 
indicating it has the necessary public funds available to expend in order to fulfill the 
County's requirements. 

Staff recommend approval of variance C. Staff agree that the applicant would be 
deprived of a privilege given other similar property owners. For instance, the City of 
Austin waives fiscal security requirements for the Austin ISO under commitments in 
a written agreement. Because Lake Travis ISO is a public entity with taxing authority, 
there is not a significant probability of harmful environmental consequences caused 
by default on construction completion as sometimes occurs with private developers. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
None identified. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Granting of a fiscal security variance is not expected to be a negative fiscal impact 
since the applicant is a public entity with taxing authority. If the project site is not 
permanently stabilized, Travis County would need to expend resources to compell 
Lake Travis ISO to fulfill their responsibilities. 

EXHIBITS/ATTACHMENTS: 
Exhibit 1 - Variance Requests from Lake Travis ISO 
Exhibit 2 - Waterway Setback Diagram 
Exhibit 3 - Site and Cut and Fill Diagram 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Jon White Director, NREQ TNR 854-7212 

cc: 

Teresa Calkins Program Manager TNR 854-7569 
Dave Fowler Project Manager TNR 854-7590 
Tom Nuckols Asst. Co. Attorney County Attorney 854-9415 
Anna Bowlin Director TNR 854-7561 

1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning- Application No. 12-1748 



EXHIBIT 1 

VARIANCE REQUESTS FROM 

LAKE TRAVIS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 


PERMIT APPLICATION #12-1748 


This Exhibit includes: 
1) Letter from Cunningham - Allen requesting waterway setback variance 
2} Letter from Cunningham - Allen requesting cut and fill variances 
3) Letter from Lake Travis ISD requesting fiscal security variance 
4) Letter from Cunningham - Allen estimating costs for erosion controls and permanent 

stabilization 



Cunningham" Allen 

, December 18, 2.012 

Travis Coun~ 
Transportation and Natural"Resources 

Development Services 
411 W.13th,Street 
Austin, TX 78701 

Attn: Ms. Teresa Carkins,·~.E. 

RE: Variance Request - Activity in Waterway Setbacks 
LTISD New Middle School (Permit Number 12-1748) 

CAl Job NO.452.0301 

Dear Ms. Calkins: 

On behalf of Lake Travis ISO (LTISD); we are hereby requesting a variance from the "Limitation of Activity 

in Waterway Setbacks"" Sec. 82.941.{i) of the Travis County Development Regulations to allow for the 
. placement of a storm sewer outlet headwall within the waterway setback for an unnamed tributary of 
Bee Creek. This headwall and associated storm sewer is the splitter box outlet line from Water Quality 
Pond #1 serving th~ propose:d new lTISD Middle Sc~ool at 4932 Bee Creek Road. This storm sewer 

outlet headwall will be constructed off of the school property within a proposed Drainage. Easement 

granted by the adjacent property owner (Architectural Granjte and Marble - 19.012 Hwy. 71). The 
property is within the .extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Lakeway. 

. , 

Sec. 82.941.{i) of Chapter 8? - Travis County De~elopment Regulations states: 

(I) 	 Limitation oj·Activity in Waterway Setbacks. The.following requirements apply to waterway 
setbacks established in subsections (g) - (hJ of this section: . 

(1) 	 Setbacks shall remain free of construction, development, and other alterations except/or 
. approved utility and roadway crossings. 

(2) 	 Wastewater collection lines and lift stations are prohibited from· running within the 
setback zone parallel or sub-parallel to ~he waterway. 

(3) 	 No golf courses, on-site wastewqter systems or wastewater irrigation shall be located in 
a waterway setback. 

(4) 	 Before reaching a setback areal drainage patterns from a development shall be des.igned 
to prevent erosion, maintain infiltration and recharge of local seeps and springs, attenuate 
the harm ofcontaminants collected and transported by storm water, and di~per.sed into a 

. . Cunningham IAlIen, Inc. '. Engineers • Surveyors • Planners 
3103 Bee Cave Road, Suite 202 • Austin, Texas 78746·5580 Tel' (512) 327-2946· Fax' (512) 327'2973. www "h 11 . . ', - .cunrung am-a en. com 

TBPE Firm Registration #: F-284 . . , . 



Ms. Teresa Calkins, P.E. 

Page 2 


s~eet flo.w ppttern. Whenever possibleJ the natural drainage features and patterns must· 
be maintained. 

Based on the topography of the project site'and the required layout of the school building and water 
quality ponds, it would be impracticaf. ~o attempt to discharge the splitter box bypass flow from Water 

. . Quality Pond #1 as sheet f]o~ to existing grade onsite. The peak flows from this splitter box are 
approximately 85 cfs and 115 cfs in the 25 and lOO-year stor.." events. The existing natural topography 
between WQ Pond #1 and the school property line is marked by bands of very steep {>35%} slopes 
consisting of limestone ledges with poor soil a~d heavy juniper growth. An attempt to disperse the 

. splitter box bypass as sheet·flow at the head of such slopes would lead to additional site disturb~nce in 
. the construction of a long flow spreader which would likely not completely prevent long term erosion on 

these steep slopes. 

In addition, the downgradient property owner {Architectural Granite and Marble} has expressed a desire 
,that he not receive these flows distributed aJo~g the length of the joint property line but would prefer to 
receive these flows as a point discharge which can be ·mo.re conveniently conveyed to the existing 
waterway on ·his property. For this reason, the Water Quality Pond #1 splitter box bypass frow is 
designed to be conveyed via enclosed storm sewer directly to an existing unnamed tributary of Bee 
Creek located on the adjacent property. 

The attached storm sewer plan shows the proposed alignment of the storm sewer line and the proposed 
headwall construction within the Waterway Setback (indicated thereon as a 25' setback from the 
approximate lOO-yr floodplain). Our design entai'ls the construction of a 36/1 concrete headwall/stilling 
basin at the base of the existing stream bank with a large rock splash pad in the stream ·bottom., We've 
estimated the cost to construct this headwall/stilling basin at approximately $12,000, the large rqck 
splash pad at $1500, and additional 36" storm sewer line constructed within the waterway setback at 
approximately $12,50P for a total estimated cost for the work within the setback at $26,000. ' 

Following are additional justifiCations in support of our request: 

1. 	 Discharging this farge amount of storm water outside of the Waterway Setback would require the 

construction of a large flow spreader set back a minimum of 25' from the top of the stream bank. In 

this area} the stream bank is a mix of old alluvial depOSits arid severely weathered limestone and 

caliche, which is prone to erosion . . Assuming that it was feasible to distribute the storm sewer 


. discharge as sheet flow (less than 2/1 depth to minimize eros'on in this erosion prone material), the 
weir flow equation gives a required weir length of 563' long for the 115 cfs.in the design storm. In 
addition to a concr~te flume/weir, a loose rock splash pad would al:so be necessary along the length 
of the spreader. At an estimated $75jlf for a concrete fjum~/flow spreader, this would be 
app~oximately $42t 225 in addition to the cost of the proposed headwall/stilling,basin' ($12,000) for a 
total estimated cost of $54,225. Since the location of this flow spreader would be on an adjacent 
property owner (not LTISD property), it is Ukely that there would be additional unknown 
costs/hardships involved to procure the necessary easement/property to contain the required flow 
spreader. Jt is also probable that despite attempts to spread the flows out, the continual discharge 
of flows directly at the top of this bank will lead to severe erosion of this st~eam bank. 

2. 	 By discharging directly to the stream bed in Jieu of constructing a long flow spreader as required' to 
diStribute this large amount of flow outside the WatelWay Setback} the proposed plan will minimize 
the long term maintenance otherwise needed to ensure the design functionality. 



Ms. Teresa Calkins} P.E. 
Page 3 

3.. The proposed construction of the storm sewer outlet headwall within the Waterway setback 
includes the placement of large rock dissipaters (~2}J-15" 'in 5i~e) at the lip of the. headwall. Field 
reconnaissance indicates the existing stream bed in this area is bedro~k, which would negate the 
need for rock dissipaters. We are proposing the 'use of fiowable backfill behind the proposed 
headwall and over the proposed section of the storm sewer built withiri the waterway setback. Silt 
fence will be used arour:-d the perimeter of construction} a temporary rock berm p!aced at the 
headwall within the setback} and temporary rock berms will be pJaced at intervals along the length 
of the storm sewer construction from the headwall up to the pond splitter box. Construction will 
proceed from the lower end at the, creek bank up to the pond splitter box. As individual sections .of 
line are backfilled/ the surface shall be restored with seeding and soil blankets as soon as practicable 
and the temporarY rock berms relocated up the hiJl to act as a temporary BMP for the next section 
of line under construction'. 

In accordance with the detailed Sequence of Construction included in the permit plans, ~he construction 
of this storm sewer line and propose~ outfall directly to the creek will' be one of the first permanent 
items built. In additionJ this fine wHf not be placed into service until the onsite perm'anent water quality 
ponds are construq:ed and fully functioning as sediment ponds. 

If you have any questions or need any additional information concerning this variance request} please 
let me know. 

Sincerely, 

CUNNINGHAM IALLEN} INC. 

Curtis Morriss/ P.E. 

Attachment: Storm Sewer Plan Exhibit 

cc:: 	 Jim Ratcliff, Lake Travis ISO 
Chuck Fields, Plelds and Associates Architects 



Cunningham IAllen 

December 19/2012" 

Travis County 
Transportation and Natural Resources 

. Development Services 

411 W.13th Street 


Austin, TX 78701 . 


Attn: ·Ms. Teresa Calkins, P.E. 

RE: 	 Variance Request - Maximum Cut and Fill 

LTrSD New Middle School 

CAl Job No.452.0301 


Dear Ms. Calkins: 

'On behalf of tak~ Travis ISO (LTISD), we are hereby requesting a vari"ance from the maximum allowable 
cut and fill limitation for the construction of the new middle school proposed on their 32.466 acre 
property located off Bee Creek Road, approximately 0.5 miles north of its intersection .with Highway 71. 
The property is within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Lakeway. 

The new middle school will consist of the main school building designed to accommodate 1200 students, 
associated drives and parking lots, one football field with running track, one practice field, one outdoor 
basketball court, and four tennis courts. 

Se~. 82.943(a) of Chapter 82 - Travis County - Standards 'for Construction of Streets and Drainage in 
Subdivisions s~t.es (in part): 

{aJ 	 Land Balancing. Except as provided by subsection (b) of this section, a proposal for cut o,.,d fill 
land balancing must comply with the fol/owing requirements: 
(1) .AII clit and fill land balancing is limited to a maximum" of eight vertica/feet. This includes · 

eight vertical feet maximum of excavated cut, eight vertical feet maximum placement pIfill, 
or an .eight vertical feet maximiJm combination ofcut andfill. 

(2) 	Applicable fill containment, temporary controls, and permanent stabilization standards 
" specified in Sections 82.936, ?2.937, and 82.970 must be followed. 

(3)" A retaining wall ov~rfive feet in height shall be detailed in the construction plans sealed by a 
Texas licensed professional engineer and submitted with the development p'ermit application 

. for a commercial site development, multi-!amiJy qwelling,' or subdivision. . 
(4) 	 Cut and flll located. on tJ $Iope with o' gradient of mote than 15 percent miJst include 

appropriate BMPs 'to prevent erosion, ·including diversion of sUrface water -runoff; use of 
terraces; soil retention blankets, mulch, -riprap or structural containment; establishment of 
mixed vegetation (suc~ as forbs, shrubs, tr.ees); or similar controls~ . 

Cunningham IAllen, Inc. • Engineers • Surveyors· Planners 
3103 Bee Cave Road, Suite 202· Austin, Texas 78746-5580 Tel: (512) 327-2946· Fax: (512) 327-2973 • www.cunningham-allen"~om 

TBPE Firm Registration #: F-28~. " 

www.cunningham-allen"~om


Ms. Teresa Calkins, P.E. 
Page2 

Based on the topography of the proje~ site and the required' layout ' of the schoof building and 
associated ameni~ies, we are hereby submitting a variance request application for ,cuts and fills 
exceeding 8 feet . 

. The sl,opes of the existing topography are such that retaining walls, ,cuts, and fills in excess of 8 feet will 
be ne~essary at severar locations to allow for the adequate and efficient use of the proposed .facilities, 
and to .satisfy ~aximum slope requirements for hand,icappedaccessibility and parking, as weJl as 
passenger, bus, fire, and emergency'vehicle access drives. In"an effort to minimize cut and fill, the 

" buIlding was designed with split levels to better aqapt to the topography, with the main entrance and 
associated parking being atthe hIgher level and the other amenities atthe lower levei. 

The attach.ed exhiJjit shows the proposed site and grading plan and delineates in different colors cut/fill 
areas ranging from 8' to 11'-11", 12' to 17'-11111, 18' to 23'-11", and,24' and greater. 

Following are additional justifications in support of our request: 

1. 	 LT1SD, as a .public school district, seeks to maximize the use of property purchased with public funds. 
This site/s location is ideal for the District's need of a new middle school based on ihe demographics 
in the area. Howeve~ the topography of the site - which is consistent with the general to'pography 
in the are~ - is such that t~ere ar~ substantial grad~ differe'nces across,the property. Cuts and fills 
over 8' are necessary in order to design a functional site to properly provide the intended 
educational services and the use of the associated amenities. Application of the cut and fill provision 
to this project deprives the Distric:t of the reasonable and u,seful use of the prope~y as a vital public 
facility within the community. 

2. 	 It is not feasible to fully comply with the requirements of Sec. 82.943{a) while accommodating all of 

the educational programs and athfetic functions required for a middle school. At a minimum, full 

compliance would require the elimination of the practice and competition fields (areas 'AI, 'S', 't: 

and 'Oi) due to the size of their respective footprints, ~nd the natural topography in~these areas . . 


'3. , As requested by Sec. 82.921(b)(2), the ,following is an approximate design and 'cost comparison of 
the proposed designs for each area exceeding the 8' .cut/fiU limitation to a hypothetical design not 

. exceeding ,the 8' cut/fill Jim,itation. Please note that these are hypotheti'caJ scenarios used for 
discussion- only as we don't believe that they would all be feasible when integrated over the entire 
site. ' " . 

' (a) The fill over '8' could be eliminated at the chifler and fire: turnaround are~ (area 'E') by lowering' 
the fire pepartn:tent acce~s drive by approximately 8 feet. However/this WOUld, require 8' higher 
structural concrete walJs adjacent to t,he building and problematic fire/emergency acces$ to the 
competition field. The 'added cost of the higher concrete r~tain;ng walls adjacent to'the Quilc~ing 
would, be partially offset by the lower cost ' of the limestone bloc~ ·waifs around the chiller., 
Based on the length of the walls ihvo.lved, the'estimated wall height of 8', and an estimated cost 
of $18/sf for limestone block wall along the fire lane ·vs. $30/sf for the structural concrete 'walls 
adjacent to the building, we estil11a~e th,is, cost at $52,320. 

(b) 	 The fills over.8' at the rear of the buHding (areas 'F', ,'G', and,'Wl c~uJd be reduc'ed but would' 
require extensive handicap compliant ramps to get down from the building ,exits; Based on 

http:attach.ed


Ms. Teresa Calkins, P.E. 
Page 3 

lowering these areas "by 4', three 48' long ramps with hand railing would be required at an 
estimated· cost of $8,16p/ramp or $24,180 total. The costs of these ramps w,?uld be offset by 
concrete and block wall heights r~duced by 4' in these areas with an "estimated savings of 
$49,290. We estimate the net cost of this change at ($24720). Although in theory t/:lere may be 
a potential cost savings by reducing the fill in these areas, in practice there is little space 
available at in areas 'G1 and 'H' for ~mps. 

(c) 	 T"he cuts over 8' next to the building (areas 'I', and IJ') could be eliminated but YJould require 
substantial waterproofing and '-subsurface drainage of the building exterior walls in these 
. locations at an estimated cost of $25,000. The building would also require extensive redesign at 

" area~' as this is a point of emergency ingress/egress. It is unknown the magnitude of this cost. 
(d)" The fiJI over 8' for the tennis courtS (area 'K') cQul~ be eliminated with the constru.ction of an 8' . 

high} 260' long concrete retaining waH and a 96' long "handicap ramp complex between the 
tennis courts and the adjacent parking lot. We estimate the cost of this wall and ramp complex . 
at approximately $82,120. However, lowering the tennis courts would reduce the . availaple 
depth in ·the adjacent water quality pond which would require this" pond to occupy a . larger 
footprint to attain the necessary water quality volume. We estimate the footprint for this p~nd 
would be approximately 60% larger than the current design and would cQst an additional 
$75,000. We estimate the total cost to lower the tennis courts at approximately $160,000. 

(e) 	 Elimination of the cut over 8' for the main entry drive ·(area 'L') along the building front would 
require raising this drive by approximately 4'. This would reduce the wall . height of the 
rimestone block wall adjacent to the property line and require higher concrete retaining walls 
adjacent to area '1' and additional walls/handicap ramps next to the building's main entrance. " 
We estimate the additional wall cost at $21,600 and the additional ramp at $8,160 for a total of 

$29,760. . ' 
(f) 	 With the current mass grading plan, the cut under the building footprint balances the fill on the 

remaining portion of the site. :Currently we don't anticipate large amounts of either import. or 
haul will be required fo~ the mass grading. Reducing the amount offill in the areas noted above 

,wou·ld require substantial lowering of the current building finish floor elevations., Not only 
would this lowering of the "building elevation generate more cut to be deaJt with, but there 

" wouJd be no opportunity for this addition·al material t~ be used on site. We estimate that to 
bring this site·into sobstantialcompliance with the cut/fill limitations of 82.943(a) would require 

. lowering the building 	and the bulk of the 29 acres within the "limits of . Construction by an 
average 2'. This would generate approx~mately 901 000 yd3 of excess materia/which wou/dneed 
to be disposed of offsite. At a rough cost of.$5/yd, this is an additional $450,000. 

(g) 	 Taken together, these costs could add as much as $700,000 to the cost of this project on tqp of 
the elimination of practice and competitjo"~ fields.. It should be noted ~hat changes to mos1; of ·' 
these site elements would ·require the const~uction ofswitchback handicap ramp complexes and 

"that it is likely that a ~ut/fiH variance would still be necessary for the area oc¢upied by the 
ramps. 

4. 	 The total area involved in this variance request is approximately 0.519 acres of cut and 2.441 acres 
.offill. These areas are broken down on the attached exhibit acco~panying this variance request. 

5. The proposed cut/fill areas located on slopes with a gradient of more th~n 15% will be contained by' 
structural retaining walls. These walls will act to armor the faces of the cut. slopes in the cut are~s 



Ms. Teresa Calkins, P.E. 
Page 4 

and the embankment materials in the fill areas and protect these cut/fill slopes from erosion. This 
deg~ee of erosion protection is the same regardless ofwhether the wall height is less than or more 
than 8'. The embankment adjacent to the tennis courts will be placed with a final design slope of 
4:1 and will be finished with solid ' grass sod. Finally, permanent rock berms will be place'd 
do.wngradient from the perimeter walls at the practice. field (areas 'A' and 'B'), the competition field 
(areas '0' and 'E') and ~hetennis courts (area 'K). 

6.. 	 As currently designed, the site essentially b.alances with onsite material be:ing processed and reused . 
onsite. 

7. 	 The proposed design minimizes unnecessary cuts and fills. The building is designed with split levels 
and was located, along wj~h the athletic fields and parking facilities within the relatively flatter area 

of the s'~e.. 

8. 	 'The District has instrLlcted the design team to conserve existing trees on-site as much as reasonable. 
To this end; several trees in the . vicinity of the proposed building and parking lots will have tree 
islands or wells constructed to enable tree survival. Also, the north driveway was i-educ~d in width 
and realigned to provide additional room for a large tree. The District is also 'considering as an 
alternate the use of rain~barrel collection systems for implementation into their science curricuJum. 

'While relatively small in comparison to the total water quality volume of the propo.sed structural 
ponds, these rainwater harvesting systems would act to decrease the net storm runoff from the 
building roof areas and increase the volume of runofftreated from the parking areas beyond what is 
required by County Code. 

The School District agrees to hold their construction contractor responsible to strictly follow the detailed 
Sequence of Construction 'and other Best Management Practices (BMPs) included jn the permit plans to 
mitigate runoff from the large amounts offill material exposed on the steep slopes during construction, 
and to fufly cooperate and address the concerns of County Inspectors and representatives during the 
construction period. 

. . 
If you have any questions or·need any additional information concerning this variance request, please 
let me know. 

Sincerely, 


CUNNINGHAM fALLEN, INC. 


Curtisryiorriss, P.E. 


Attachment: Cut and Fill Exhibit 


cc: Jim Ratcliff, take Travis ISO ' . 
Chuck Fields, Fields ~nd Associates Architects 



Facilities and Construction 

December 18,2012 

Travis County 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
Development Services 
411 w. 13th Street 
Austin, TX 78701 

Attn: Ms. Teresa Calkins, P.E. 

RE: Variance Request - Fiscal Security 
LTISD New Middle School (pennit Number 12-1748) 
CAl Job No. 452.0301 

Dear Ms. Calkins: 

Lake Travis ISD (L TISD) hereby requests a variance from the requirement in Sec. 82.920 
"Fiscal Security" to post fiscal security in accordance with the requirements of Sec. 82.401 of the 
Code. This variance request accompanies the current Site Development Permit Application 
currently in review for the L TISD New Middle School. The area within the over~l Limits of 
Construction for this project is approximately 29.2 acres. 

Following is the applicable information necessary to allow the Commissioner's Court to make 
the findings specified in Sec. 82.921 (c) of the Code; specifically: 

(1) This Variance is being sought from the requirement to post fiscal security in accordance 
with Sec. 82.920 "Fiscal Security" and Sec. 82.401 "Construction Fiscal Security" of the Code. 

(2) In accordance with the requirements of Sec. 82.920 and Sec. 82.401, the District must 
post fiscal for the cost of all temporary erosion/sedimentation controls, permanent stabilization 
ofdisturbed areas, and public improvements associated with the development of the site. The 
stated purpose of the fiscal security is " ...to ensure that temporary erosion and sedimentation 
controls and permanent site stabilization for a commercial development ...are constructed and 
maintained in accordance with the approved plan, permit, and standards required by Subchapters 
I and K". This provision is in the code to provide a means and the necessary funds for the 
County to construct and/or maintain these items should a private developer fail to do so. 
However, the School District is a public institution and has funds that are budgeted for this 
proj ect. The District intends to expend the necessary funds to fully perform the temporary and 
permanent ESC measures required by the Travis County Code. School districts usually benefit 
from this consideration and are not required to post fiscal. 

11601 West State Highway 71, Building B Austin, Texas 78738 

Telephone (512) 533-6026 Facsimile (512) 533-6002 www.ratclifij@ltisdschools.org 


mailto:www.ratclifij@ltisdschools.org


Ms. Teresa Calkins, P.E. 

Page 2 


Thank you for your assistance in having this placed on the agenda as requested. Ifyou have any 
questions or need any additional infonnation concerning this variance request, please let me 
know. 

Respectfully submitted, 

--~---~----
Jim Ratcliff, Senior Director 
Facilities and Construction 
Lake Travis ISD 

11601 West State Highway?l, BuildingB Austin, Texas 78738 

Telephone (512) 533-6026 Facsimile (512) 533-6002 www.ratcliffj@ltisdschools.org 


mailto:www.ratcliffj@ltisdschools.org


12127/2011 

Thomas Weber 

Travis County Transportations and Natural Resources 

41] West 13th Street 

Austin Texas, 78704 

REF: 	 LTISD Bee Creek Middle School 
Erosion Control Fiscal Estimate 
TNR Permit #12-1748 

CAl #: 452.030] 

Dear lV1r. Weber, 

Below is our opinion of probable construction cost for erosion controls associated with the above referenced pr~iect. 

Erosion Controls 

Description 	 Unit Quantity Unit Price Amount 

lIydromulch seeding (wI topsoil & watering) SY 141,325 $ 2.00 $ 282.650 

Silt Fence LF 5,900 S 3.00 $ 17.700 
Stabilized Construction Entrance EA 5 S l~OOO.OO $ 5.000 
Rock Berm LF 2.130 S 15.00 $ 31,950 
Inlet Protection LF 405 $ 3.00 S 1.215 
Trcc Protection LF 2.375 $ 1.80 $ 4,275 

Total Erosion Controls 	 $ 342~790 

In providing opinions of probable construction cosL it is understood that CunninghamlAlIen, Inc. has no control over the 

cost or availability of labor. equipment or materials, or over market conditions or the Contractor's method of pricing, and 

that CunninghamIAllen.lnc. opinions of probable construction costs are made on the basis of CunninghamiA lien. Inc. 
professional judgment and experience. CunninghamlAllcn~ Jnc. makes no warranty, express or implicd~ that the bids or 
the negotiated cost of the workwil1 not vary from CunninghamlAllen, Inc. opinion ofprobablc construction cost. 

Unless otherwise stated, these costs do not include gas, electric, telephone, cablc, or tiber optic construction
7 

nor permit 

or inspection fees. 

Please do not hesitate to call should you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

CUNNINGHAMIALLEN INC., 

l
Curtis Morriss. P.E. 

E:\452030i,-Documents'LCalculations\OPCC\LTISD New Middle opec Ese 



EXHIBIT 2 


WATERWAY SETBACK DIAGRAM 




LitKE Tf(ftV/5 15/) !Vt1f)f)L£ SCHoOL -WItT£~ 
5ETf5ttGK 
Vt'r f,/ /iNC£
REG?uE5r 

----



EXHIBIT 3 


SITE AND CUT & FILL DIAGRAM 




"\ '\ 

NEW LAKE TRAVIS MIDDLE SCHOOL 

\ 

1 

1 
1iIt~%A.tL 

~ lJ-i or 
,,-,,!... rm~') .~ 

\\\\ 
\ I \ \l\ 

CuUFili Table 

Num ber Milimu m Bovation Maximum Elevation M il Color 

Cui 

I .20.50" ·1 8.00' 5557 •2 · IT- ll" -1 2.00' 63 11 ••3 . 11'-11' ~.OO' 10730 

4 8.00' 11'·11 " 78661 • 
Fill 

5 12.00' IT· l1 · 25334 

2131 ••6 15.00' 23'·11" 

7' 24,00' 26.50' 202 • 

.:r \ 
\ 

l 
.'\ \.'~t:\~ 

.' ,.,\\ 
\ \ 

\~ 
~\\ \f~ 
~.\\ ~,~\\.."' ..~~ 

~\ \\ '" 
\\\1, \ • 
~~ ; 

~ 

~~ 
~\\ 

~\\\ 
~:~ 

CA 
n .,tinp;unl J\lil:ft.1De. 
~,,~- . ~. 

T«'UIl}1l1~'CUT & FILL EXHIBIT ......._Qdlj....... CIND
• I.n.MO~ . "'" 

~"",,",",I"I"~fMJ...""'lUt\._~ 

I21 07t! 2 

http:1iIt~%A.tL


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
  

  
  
Meeting Date:  February 5, 2013 
  
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Juanita Jackson   854-4467 
  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service   
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
  
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action to authorize Texas AgriLife Extension Services – 
Travis County to accept the donation of computer equipment from Texas A & M 
University System for use with Texas AgriLife. 
  
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
See attached memo 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
TCHHS&VS staff recommends approval of this donation. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
None. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
See attached memo 
  
  
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Kent Hubbard, Purchasing 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive – HHS/VS 
Dolores Sandman, AgriLife Extension Director 
Lydia Domaruk, AgriLife Extension Agent-Urban Youth Development 
  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request  

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 11 

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text





















salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 12



















































































































































































































































salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 14























salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 15

















 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, February 5, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON LEGISLATIVE 
MATTERS, INCLUDING:   

A. UPDATE ON LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES;  
B. RESOLUTION IN OPPOSITION TO HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION 

46, PROPOSING A CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT PROVIDING 
FOR THE ELECTION AND STAGGERING OF TERMS OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS FOLLOWING A CHANGE IN BOUNDARIES OF 
A COMMISSIONERS PRECINCT; AND, 

C. CREATION OF TWO ADDITIONAL CRIMINAL COURTS IN THE 
83RD LEGISLATIVE SESSION. 

D. ADDITIONS TO THE PRIORITIES, POLICY POSITIONS, AND THE 
POSITIONS ON OTHER PROPOSALS SECTIONS OF THE TRAVIS 
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE AGENDA. 

 
 
SUMMARY AND IGR COORDINATOR RECOMMENDATION:   
February 5 marks the beginning of the fifth week of the legislative session. 
As of last Thursday, 1,184 bills and joint resolutions have been filed. Your 
IGR Office is tracking 368 of them and key County policy staffers have 
already provided 346 analyses through the ATLAS system. A spreadsheet 
detailing these figures is enclosed.  
 
IGR recommends adoption and dissemination of a resolution in opposition 
to House Joint Resolution 46 by Representative Cindy Burkett.  
 
IGR also recommends several changes to the Travis County Legislative 
Agenda, as set forth in the enclosed Motion in Writing and explained 
herein.  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 16



 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  
 
1. House Joint Resolution 46 would affect the election cycles of 

commissioners courts. IGR recommends that the Court adopt a 
resolution opposing HJR 46. A memo describing the bill and a draft 
resolution are attached.   

 
2. Since last October, the Court and the criminal court judges have been 

discussing the need to expand the number of criminal courts in Travis 
County. The judges have proposed adding a district court and a county 
court at this time. The Court has asked for further information and 
analysis, and also for draft language for two different options for 
creating those courts. IGR will update the Court on those drafting 
efforts and encourage the Court to make a decision. Please see the 
attached packet.  

 
3. IGR recommends several changes to the Legislative Agenda. First, we 

recommend designating three items already in the Policy Positions 
section of the agenda as Priorities. This is because IGR will have to 
devote significant energy and take a leadership role in the passage of 
these initiatives. Second, we recommend the addition of another item 
in the Policy Positions section, consistent with the Court’s actions on 
HJR 46.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Not applicable.    
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 
NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 
WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 
REQUEST:   
 
Tanya Acevedo, Project Management Division Manager 
Travis County Information Technology Services 
Phone:  854-8685 
Email:  Tanya.Acevedo@co.travis.tx.us  

mailto:Tanya.Acevedo@co.travis.tx.us


 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 
County Attorney’s Office 
Phone:  854-3718 
Email:   Daniel.Bradford@co.travis.tx.us   
 
Leslie Browder, County Executive 
Planning and Budget Office 
Phone:  854-8679 
Email:  Leslie.Browder@co.travis.tx.us  
 
David Escamilla  
County Attorney  
Phone:  854-9415 
Email:  David.Escamilla@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive  
Health and Human Services/Veterans Services 
Phone:  854-4101 
Email:  Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us   
 
Cyd Grimes 
Purchasing Agent 
Phone:  854-9700 
Email:  Cyd.Grimes@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Danny Hobby, County Executive  
Emergency Services 
Phone:  854-4416 
Email:  Danny.Hobby@co.travis.tx.us   
 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive 
Justice and Public Safety 
Phone:  854-4415 
Email:  Roger.Jefferies@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Gregg Knaupe 
Travis County Legislative Consultant 
Phone:  499-8826 
Email: Gregg@KnaupeGR.com  
 

mailto:Daniel.Bradford@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Leslie.Browder@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:David.Escamilla@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Cyd.Grimes@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Danny.Hobby@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Roger.Jefferies@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Gregg@KnaupeGR.com


Steven Manilla, County Executive 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
Phone:   854-9429 
Email:   Steven.Manilla@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Nicki Riley 
Travis County Auditor 
Phone:  854-3227 
Email:  Nicki.Riley@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director 
Planning and Budget Office 
Phone:  854-4455 
Email: Jessica.Rio@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Aerin-Renee Toussaint, Budget Analyst II 
Planning and Budget Office 
Phone:  854-1160 
Email:  Aerin.Toussaint@co.travis.tx.us  
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Bill Status Report, January 31, 2013.  
B. Legislative Action Memorandum on HJR 46, January 31, 2013.  
C. Legislative Action Memorandum on Creation of New Criminal Courts, 

January 31, 2013.  
D. Motion in Writing, January 31, 2013.  
 

 
   

mailto:Steven.Manilla@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Nicki.Riley@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Jessica.Rio@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Aerin.Toussaint@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County IGR Bill Status Report  83rd Texas Legislature

AS OF WEEK 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

10-Jan 17-Jan 24-Jan 31-Jan 7-Feb 14-Feb 21-Feb 28-Feb 7-Mar 14-Mar

HBs 446 550 686 845

HJRs 39 43 44 51

SBs 149 162 209 268

SJRs 11 13 16 20

TOTAL BILLS 645 768 955 1,184

TRACKED 167 281 305 368

ANALYSES 109 137 281 346

SUPPORT 0 0 0 0

OPPOSE 0 0 0 0

AS OF WEEK 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21-Mar 28-Mar 4-Apr 11-Apr 18-Apr 25-Apr 2-May 9-May 16-May 23-May

HBs

HJRs

SBs

SJRs

TOTAL BILLS

TRACKED

ANALYSES

SUPPORT

OPPOSE

THURSDAY

TRAVIS COUNTY

THURSDAY

TRAVIS COUNTY

Printed: 1/31/2013, 11:02 AM



Intergovernmental Relations 
                                           Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
 700 Lavaca Building, Suite 360 Austin, TX  78701 

(512) 854-9754 
 Twitter: @TravCo_IGR deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us  

 
 

 
 

 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

 THROUGH: Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, Intergovernmental Relations 

 DATE: Thursday, January 31, 2013 for Tuesday, February 5, 2013  

 RE: Agenda Item #14-B: HJR 46   

 
SUGGESTED MOTION 

1. That the Travis County Commissioners Court adopt a Resolution expressing its 
opposition to HJR 46 and direct IGR to communicate that Resolution to members 
of the Legislature.  

2. That the Travis County Commissioners Court add the following to the 83rd Travis 
County Legislative Program as a policy position under Taxation, Revenues, 
Budget and Administration: Oppose legislation that would create voter 
confusion and endanger the efficient functioning of commissioners courts by 
disrupting election timetables.    

 
Summary and IGR Coordinator Recommendation 
A proposed constitutional amendment would disrupt the timing of elections for 
members of the commissioners court, forcing all of them to run in the first election after 
a redistricting and then to draw lots to see who would have to run again in either two 
years or four years. The Court has opposed a similar proposal in the past. IGR 
recommends that the Court adopt a resolution in opposition to the proposal and to 
amend its Legislative Agenda to reflect such opposition.  
 
Background 
Representative Cindy Burkett has filed a constitutional amendment, HJR 46, that would 
change the schedule by which county commissioners are elected following 
redistricting.1   

                                                 
1  Representative Dan Branch filed the same constitutional amendment as HJR 13 during the First 

Called Session of the 82nd Texas Legislature in June, 2011. The Commissioners Court voted to 
oppose that legislation on June 28, 2011. TAC, CUC and the County Judges and Commissioners 

mailto:deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=HJR46
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=821&Bill=HJR13


Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
January 31, 2013, Page 2  
 
 
Under current law, commissioners serve staggered four-year terms, with the 
commissioners in precincts 1 and 3 running in presidential election years (e.g., 2008) 
and in precincts 2 and 4 running in midterm election years (e.g., 2010).   
 
Under Rep. Burkett’s proposal, all four commissioners would run in the first general 
election after each redistricting (2012, 2022, etc.) and then draw lots to decide which two 
had to run again two years later.  Thus, every commissioner would run for office three 
times during a decade: two would run in 2012, 2014 and 2018, and the other two would 
run in 2012, 2016, and 2020.  (This is the system used in the Texas Senate.)   
 
This legislation would disrupt the orderly cycle of commissioners’ elections and confuse 
voters, without any justification in terms of efficiency or accountability.  For this reason, 
CUC, TAC and the County Judges and Commissioners Association of Texas (CJCAT) all 
oppose it.   
 
Issues and Opportunities 
HJR 46 would disrupt the continuity of county policies, increase confusion for voters, 
and add uncertainty and inconsistency for county commissioners courts.  
 
HJR 46 could de-stabilize a county by replacing all four commissioners at the same 
time. Every 20 years the County Judge would also be included in this cycle. The 
Commissioners Court is not a purely legislative branch of government -- it is an 
administrative component of the executive branch, responsible for the fiscal policies of 
the county. Stability and continuity are core components of county government, 
purposely built into the Texas Constitution by our forefathers. The four-year terms set 
up in the Constitution ensure that county government functions competently for local 
taxpayers without disruption of services, many of which are mandated by the state. The 
present system of alternate election of two commissioners in each election cycle assures 
both experienced leadership and voter accountability.  
 
HJR 13 will create needless confusion and unpredictability in elections, since the length 
of terms will be determined by lot, creating different commissioner precinct election 

                                                                                                                                                             
Association of Texas (CJCAT) also opposed the measure. The HJR was referred to the House 
Elections Committee, but Governor Perry did not add it to the charge and the proposal did not go 
anywhere.  

 



Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
January 31, 2013, Page 3  
 
cycles from county to county. The current system of alternate terms provides 
uniformity with the same precincts on the ballot in all counties.  
 
The voters have already expressed their preference for a county commissioner for a four 
year term as required by the constitution, not an arbitrary two year term. HJR 46 would 
result in some commissioner precincts being randomly submitted to the voters for three 
consecutive elections. Election results should not be set aside simply because a 
boundary change occurs in another part of the county. 
 
Budgetary and Fiscal Impact 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  

1. House Joint Resolution 46, 83rd Legislature, November 12, 2012.  
2. DRAFT Resolution in opposition to HJR 46, January 31, 2013 draft for action on 

February 5, 2013.  
 
 
 
CC: Bruce Elfant, Tax Assessor-Collector 
 Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk 
 Daniel Bradford, County Attorney’s Office 
 Elizabeth Hanshaw Winn, County Attorney’s Office  
 
  



By:AABurkett H.J.R.ANo.A46

A JOINT RESOLUTION

proposing a constitutional amendment providing for the election and

staggering of terms of county commissioners following a change in

boundaries of a commissioners precinct.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 18(d), Article V, Texas Constitution, is

amended to read as follows:

(d)AAEach commissioners precinct shall elect a commissioner

at the first general election that follows the adoption of a change

in [When] the boundaries of two or more commissioners precincts

located in the county. The commissioners elected after a change in

boundaries shall determine by lot which two of them will serve a

term of two years and which two of them will serve a term of four

years, so that one-half of the commissioners shall be elected every

two years thereafter [are changed, each commissioner in office on

the effective date of the change, or elected to a term of office

beginning on or after the effective date of the change, shall serve

in the precinct to which each was elected or appointed for the

entire term to which each was elected or appointed, even though the

change in boundaries places the person ’s residence outside the

precinct for which he was elected or appointed].

SECTIONA2.AAThis proposed constitutional amendment shall be

submitted to the voters at an election to be held November 5, 2013.

The ballot shall be printed to provide for voting for or against the

proposition: "The constitutional amendment providing for the

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

83R35 TJB-D 1



election and staggering of terms of county commissioners following

a change in boundaries of a commissioners precinct."

1

2

H.J.R.ANo.A46

2



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, in 1954 Texas voters amended their 
Constitution to provide that all county commissioners 
should have terms of four years in length; and,   
 
WHEREAS, the county commissioners in Precincts 1 and 3 
traditionally run in gubernatorial, or mid-term, election 
years, and county commissioners in Precincts 2 and 4 run 
in presidential election years; and, 
 
WHEREAS, House Joint Resolution 46 has been filed in the 
83rd Legislature, Regular Session, by Representative Cindy 
Burkett; and, 
 
WHEREAS, HJR 46 proposes that, after any redistricting of 
county commissioner lines, all four county commissioner 
offices shall be up for election, with the four winners then 
drawing lots to determine which two commissioners will 
run again in two years and which two will run again in four 
years, with each commissioner to stand for reelection again 
four years after that; and, 
 
WHEREAS, HJR 46 would increase voter alienation by 
creating needless confusion and unpredictability in 
elections, since the length of terms will be determined by 
lot, creating different precinct election dates from county to 
county. The current system of staggered terms helps 
reinforce stability and continuity in voters’ minds and in 
the conduct of elections; and 
 
WHEREAS, HJR 46 could radically de-stabilize a county by 
making all four commissioners run at the same time.  
Counties are an administrative component of the State.  



Stability and continuity are values built into county 
government by previous generations of Texans; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Texas voters have already expressed their 
preference for a county commissioner with a four-year term 
as required by the constitution, not an arbitrary two-year 
term at some point during a decade; now therefore,   
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Travis County Commissioners 
Court urges the Texas Legislature to oppose legislation that 
would vacate all four county commissioners’ seats after any 
redistricting of those seats, then require county 
commissioners to draw lots to determine whether they will 
run again in two or four years; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Travis County 
Commissioners Court expresses its opposition to House 
Joint Resolution 46, and wishes to communicate that 
opposition to members of the Travis County delegation and 
to the entire Legislature. 
 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________ 
SAMUEL T. BISCOE 

COUNTY JUDGE 
 
 
     
RON DAVIS    SARAH ECKHARDT 
COMMISSIONER, PCT. 1    COMMISSIONER, PCT. 2 
 
 
     
GERALD DAUGHERTY              MARGARET GÓMEZ  
COMMISSIONER, PCT. 3    COMMISSIONER, PCT. 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Intergovernmental Relations 
                                           Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
 700 Lavaca Building, Suite 360 Austin, TX  78701 

(512) 854-9754 
 Twitter: @TravCo_IGR deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us  

 
 

 
 

 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

 THROUGH: Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, Intergovernmental Relations 

 DATE: Thursday, January 31, 2013 for Tuesday, February 5, 2013  

 RE: Agenda Item #14-C: Creation of two additional criminal courts in the 
83rd Texas Legislature   

 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
 
 
Summary and IGR Coordinator Recommendation 
The Travis County criminal court judges have proposed the creation of two new courts 
– one district court and one county court – of general criminal jurisdiction. The 
Commissioners Court has expressed concern about the financial commitment involved 
in the creation and maintenance of two new courts. Two versions of the legislation 
needed to create the courts have been prepared for the Court’s consideration and action. 
Because of the notice requirements for local bills and the passage of time in the 
legislative session, IGR recommends that the Court make a decision whether to proceed 
at this time.   
 
Background 
On October 11, 2012, the criminal court judges presented their need for creation of two 
new criminal courts in Travis County: one district court and one county court.1 At that 
work session, questions were asked about the timetable for and costs incurred in 
creating those courts. On October 23, 2012, the Court discussed the issue and asked the 
judges and County staff to do additional research and quantification of caseloads and 
costs. On December 4, 2012, the Court reviewed the documentation that had been 
assembled and further discussed the issue.2  

                                                 
1  Backup materials for that Work Session can be found here.  
 
2  Backup materials for that Voting Session can be found here.  

mailto:deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners_court/agendas/2012/10/backup/item_backup_20121011ws/ws120911_item_01.pdf
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners_court/agendas/2012/12/backup/Item_backup_20121204/vs20121204_item_22.pdf


Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
January 31, 2013, Page 2  
 
At that time, the Court asked IGR to explore whether legislation could be drafted in 
such a way as to create the courts but make their actual operation contingent on future 
funding decisions by the commissioners court. IGR followed up with Representative 
Elliott Naishtat, who asked the Legislative Council to draft two versions of the proposal 
– one “contingent” (on subsequent county funding) and the other “clean.” 
Representative Naishtat asked Lege Council to advise him of any legal or practical 
issues involved in the drafting.  
 
On January 22, 2013, Legislative Council provided Rep. Naishtat’s office with draft 
language for the “contingent” versions of the proposal. The two bills:  

• Have an effective date of September 1, 2013;  
• Create a new district court with criminal jurisdiction effective September 1, 2015;  
• Create a new county court with criminal jurisdiction effective October 1, 2015;  
• Permit the Commissioners Court to begin operations of the new courts at any 

time within those two-year periods, contingent upon funding; and,  
• Provide the option for the Court to seek repeal of one or both bills during the 

next regular session in 2015 if it decides not to create or fund the courts.  
 
One concern with the “contingent” version of the district court bill: it is the 
responsibility of the Legislature to fund the base salary and benefits for district court 
judges. They are unlikely to make such a funding commitment in the 2014-2015 budget 
if the authorizing legislation creates a contingency, since there will be other, more 
immediate demands on that revenue.  
 
In addition, the Legislative Council is drafting “clean” versions of the bills, i.e., creating 
both the district and county courts on January 1, 2015. As of this writing, we only have 
the Lege Council’s version of the district court bill, but the backup includes the working 
draft of the county court bill which IGR provided for Lege Council.  
 
Legislation to create a new county court at law is, by definition, a local bill, which 
requires 30-day public notice. If the Court proceeds to seek legislative creation of a new 
county court at law, IGR recommends that notice be published as soon as practicable. 
Draft language for such notice is attached.   
 
Issues and Opportunities 
In October, the criminal court judges presented their analysis of the need for additional 
courts, including caseload growth projections, staffing, space and equipment 
requirements, and a proposed budget and timetable.  

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners_court/agendas/2012/10/backup/item_backup_20121011ws/ws120911_item_01.pdf


Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
January 31, 2013, Page 3  
 
At the December presentation, Roger Jefferies, County Executive for Justice and Public 
Safety discussed a 10-year analysis and plan regarding the need for new criminal courts 
in Travis County, and Leslie Browder, County Executive for Budget and Planning, 
discussed a five-year fiscal analysis and projections that, among other things, analyzed 
the impact of possible revenue cap or appraisal cap legislation that might be considered 
by the 83rd Legislature.  
 
As of January 31, ten pieces of legislation have been filed that would affect either the 
current 10% cap on residential homestead appraisal increases or the 8% rollback rate on 
local government tax rate increases. A summary of those bills is attached.  
 
Budgetary and Fiscal Impact 
N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
1. Draft “Clean” District Court bill, Texas Legislative Council, January 31, 2013. 
2. Draft “Clean” County Court bill, IGR, January 24, 2013. 
3. Draft “Contingent” District Court bill, Texas Legislative Council, January 22, 2013. 
4. Draft “Contingent” County Court bill, Texas Legislative Council, January 23, 2013. 
5. Proposed Legal Notice of Intent to File Local Bill, February 5, 2013.  
6. Analysis of Appraisal and Revenue Caps Bills, IGR, January 31, 2013.  
 
 
 
CC: Judge Julie Kocurek, 390th District Court  
 Debra Hale, Criminal Courts Administration 
 Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety 
 Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget  
 Cyd Grimes, County Purchasing Agent 
  

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/commissioners_court/agendas/2012/12/backup/Item_backup_20121204/vs20121204_item_22.pdf


By:AA____________________ __.B.ANo.A_____

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT

relating to the creation of an additional judicial district

composed of Travis County.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASubchapter C, Chapter 24, Government Code, is

amended by adding Section 24.594 to read as follows:

Sec.A24.594.AA450TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT (TRAVIS COUNTY). (a)

The 450th Judicial District is composed of Travis County.

(b)AAThe 450th District Court shall give preference to

criminal matters.

SECTIONA2.AAThe 450th Judicial District is created on the

effective date of this Act.

SECTIONA3.AAThis Act takes effect January 1, 2015.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

83R6165 RWG-F 1

"CLEAN" District Court bill



“CLEAN” County Court bill 
 

 
 
 Page - 1 - 

 
By:  ____________________ __.B. No. _____ 

 
 

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

AN ACT 

relating to the creation of an additional county court at law in 

Travis County. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  (a) Section 25.2291(a), Government Code, is 

amended to read as follows: 

(a)  Travis County has the following statutory county courts: 

(1)  County Court at Law No. 1 of Travis County, Texas; 

(2)  County Court at Law No. 2 of Travis County, Texas; 

(3)  County Court at Law No. 3 of Travis County, Texas; 

(4)  County Court at Law Number 4 of Travis County; 

(5)  County Court at Law Number 5 of Travis County; 

(6)  The County Court at Law Number 6 of Travis County; 

(7)  The County Court at Law Number 7 of Travis County; 

[and] 

(8)  The County Court at Law Number 8 of Travis County; 

and 

(9)  The County Court at Law Number 9 of Travis County. 

(b)  Effective January 1, 2015, the County Court at Law Number 

9 of Travis County is created.  

SECTION 2.  Section 25.2292, Government Code, is amended by 

adding Subsection (b) to read as follows: 

(b)  The County Court at Law Number 9 of Travis County shall 

give preference to criminal cases. 

SECTION 3.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2013. 



“CONTINGENT” District Court bill  
 

 
 
 Page - 1 - 

 
By:  ____________________ __.B. No. _____ 

 
 

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

AN ACT 

relating to the creation of an additional judicial district 

composed of Travis County. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  Subchapter C, Chapter 24, Government Code, is 

amended by adding Section 24.594 to read as follows: 

Sec. 24.594.  450TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT (TRAVIS COUNTY). (a) The 

450th Judicial District is composed of Travis County. 

(b)  The 450th District Court shall give preference to 

criminal matters. 

SECTION 2.  Notwithstanding Section 24.594, Government Code, 

as added by this Act, the 450th Judicial District is created 

September 1, 2015, or on an earlier date determined by the 

Commissioners Court of Travis County by an order entered in its 

minutes, subject to availability of appropriated state money for 

that purpose. 

SECTION 3.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2013. 



“CONTINGENT” County Court bill  
 

 
 
 Page - 1 - 

 
By:  ____________________ __.B. No. _____ 

 
 

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

AN ACT 

relating to the creation of an additional county court at law in 

Travis County. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  Section 25.2291(a), Government Code, is amended to 

read as follows: 

(a)  Travis County has the following statutory county courts: 

(1)  County Court at Law No. 1 of Travis County, Texas; 

(2)  County Court at Law No. 2 of Travis County, Texas; 

(3)  County Court at Law No. 3 of Travis County, Texas; 

(4)  County Court at Law Number 4 of Travis County; 

(5)  County Court at Law Number 5 of Travis County; 

(6)  The County Court at Law Number 6 of Travis County; 

(7)  The County Court at Law Number 7 of Travis County; 

[and] 

(8)  The County Court at Law Number 8 of Travis County; 

and 

(9)  The County Court at Law Number 9 of Travis County. 

SECTION 2.  Section 25.2292, Government Code, is amended by 

adding Subsection (b) to read as follows: 

(b)  The County Court at Law Number 9 of Travis County shall 

give preference to criminal cases. 

SECTION 3.  Notwithstanding Section 25.2291(a), Government 

Code, as amended by this Act, the County Court at Law Number 9 of 

Travis County is created October 1, 2015, or on an earlier date 

determined by the Commissioners Court of Travis County by an order 

entered in its minutes. 

SECTION 4.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2013. 



Please place the notice below in a newspaper of general circulation in Travis 
County as soon as possible.   
 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE 
 
Notice is hereby given of intent to introduce in the 83rd 
Legislature, Regular Session, a bill to be entitled an Act relating 
relating to the creation of an additional county court at law in 
Travis County. 
 
 



 
Updated: January 31, 2013  Page 1 of 2 

Analysis of Appraisal and Revenue Cap Bills 
83rd Texas Legislature, Regular Session 

 
Appraisal Caps 
An appraisal cap is a limitation on the amount that residential (or, in some 
proposals, commercial and industrial) property appraisals can rise each year. The 
Texas Constitution (Art. VIII, Sec. 1) currently permits the Legislature to set an 
appraisal cap for residential homesteads of 10% each year, which is does in 
Section 23.23 of the TAX CODE. 
 
Constitutional Amendment and enabling Legislation to reduce the appraisal cap 
below the current 10%.  
 

Limit the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead for ad 
valorem tax purposes to 105% or more of the appraised value: 

• HJR 58  
HB 428 

Author: Rep. Brandon Creighton 
• SJR 15 

SB 154 
Author: Senator Dan Patrick  

  
Limit the maximum appraised value of a residence homestead for ad 
valorem tax purposes to 105% or less of the appraised value of the property 
for the preceding tax year. Under Senator Nichols’ proposal, the 
commissioners court of a county may call an election to ask voters to raise 
the appraisal cap in a given year above the level set by the Legislature, but in 
no case above 110%.  

• SJR 9  
SB 95 

Author: Senator Robert Nichols 
 

 
Constitutional Amendment and enabling Legislation to establish a 10% 
limitation on increases to the appraisal of commercial or industrial property.  
 

Establish a 10% limitation on increases in the appraised value for ad 
valorem tax purposes of commercial or industrial real property: 

• SJR 14  
• SB 155 

Author: Senator Dan Patrick 
 

http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=HJR58
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=HB428
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SJR15
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SB154
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SJR9
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SB95
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SJR14
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SB155


 
Updated: January 31, 2013  Page 2 of 2 

 
Revenue Caps 
Under current law (TAX CODE §26.04), a proposed increase in the effective tax rate 
of more than 8% requires a governing body to hold a hearing and give notice of 
the proposal.  After the tax rate has been increased, the public may call for a 
rollback election to decrease the tax rate by producing a petition with either a) 7% 
of registered voters if the tax increase amounts to at least $5 million or b) 10% of 
registered voters if the tax increase amounts to less than $5 million. After this 
petition is accepted by the governing body, they shall hold a rollback election to 
ratify the rollback rate. 
 

Reduces the current rollback rate from 8% to 5% and requires that, if a 
proposed effective tax rate increase exceeds the rollback rate, an election 
must be held to ratify the proposed effective tax rate. If ratification fails, the 
governmental entity may not increase the tax rate by more than 5%.  

• SB 102  
Author: Senator Dan Patrick 

 
Reduces the current rollback rate from 8% to 5% and retains current 
language permitting citizens to call for a rollback election. However, it also 
permits a higher rate if either a) any part of the taxing unit is located in an 
area declared a disaster area by the governor or the president, or b) the 
governing body of the taxing entity makes a finding that the higher tax rate 
is necessary to protect the health, safety, or property of persons residing in 
the taxing unit.  

• SB 144 
Author: Senator Tommy Williams 

 
 
 

http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SB102
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/BillLookup/History.aspx?LegSess=83R&Bill=SB144


Travis County Commissioners Court 
Voting Session, February 5, 2013 
Motion in Writing  
 
 
Move that the Travis County Commissioners Court make the following 

amendments to its Legislative Agenda for the 83rd Texas Legislature:   
 
 

1. Add the following to the Priorities section:   
9. Support legislation to amend the Open Meetings Act to update 

references to “tape” recordings of public meetings and conform them to 
modern technology. (TRBA-9) 

10. Support legislation that would amend the Government Code to allow 
political subdivisions to implement the same loan, Roth and automatic 
enrollment provisions as state agencies, if in compliance with the 
Internal Revenue Code. (TRBA-10) 

11. Support legislation to clarify the geographic extent of ad valorem tax 
liens on business personal property. (TRBA-11)  

 
 
2. Add the following to the Taxes, Revenues, Budget and Administration 

subsection of the Policy Positions section:   
a. Oppose legislation that would create voter confusion and 

endanger the efficient functioning of commissioners courts by 
disrupting election timetables.    

 
 
 



1 
 

 

 
 
Meeting Date:  February 5, 2013 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning & Budget, (512) 854-9106  
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice & Public Safety, (512) 854-4759 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsors: 
County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe and Commissioner Sarah Eckhardt 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON THE PROPOSED 
CIVIL AND FAMILY COURT HOUSE PROJECT, INCLUDING 
 

A. TIMELINE OF WORK COMPLETED AND COMMISSIONERS COURT 
ACTIONS TAKEN TO DATE 

 
B. DOCUMENT AND AFFIRM CURRENT AND FUTURE NEED FOR ADDITIONAL 

SPACE FOR CIVIL AND FAMILY COURT PROCEEDINGS 
 

C. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF PROGRAM 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
D. PROPOSED STAFF EVALUATION TEAM FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF THE 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

E. APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE SPONSORS FOR THE PROJECT 
 

F. CHARGE FOR THE EXPANDED CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

G. MEMBERSHIP FOR THE EXPANDED CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

 
 BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:   
 
Timeline of work completed and actions taken to date  
On January 29, 2013, staff presented a status update to the Commissioners Court on 
Civil and family Court House project.  The Commissioners Court requested that a 
timeline of events related to the evolution of the Civil and Family Court House project be 
prepared for review and general discussion of progress made to date on the project.  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 17



2 
 

This information is currently being compiled and will be provided to the Commissioners 
Court as soon as the work has been completed.  A placeholder for the information is 
included as Attachment 1 and will outline specific actions taken by the Commissioners 
Court since 2002.  This information is intended to reflect actions taken to date that have 
framed the discussions about the need, location, program, relative size and estimated 
cost of the project options that are currently under consideration by the Commissioners 
Court. 
 
The latest series of actions are related to the development of a Feasibility Analysis of 
Alternative Delivery options performed by Ernst & Young. On April 3, 2012, Ernst & 
Young (E&Y) presented a summary of their findings related to a new Travis County Civil 
and Family Court House to be located at 308 Guadalupe Street.  Their summary 
included an analysis of the financial feasibility of various delivery options for the Court 
House, an update on project costs, and a value-for-money analysis of a design-build 
(DB) and or a public-private-partnership (P3) delivery as compared to a traditional 
design-bid-build (DBB) process.  The E&Y analysis ultimately concluded that there is 
value-for-money in pursuing an alternative delivery method rather than the traditional 
DBB approach. 
 
Shortly after receiving the E&Y report, the Commissioners Court appointed a Court 
House Recommendation Committee to assist with the selection of a final delivery 
method for the project.  Each committee member represented a key stakeholder 
organization or provided expertise in an important subject matter area related to the 
project. The members of the Travis County Civil and Family Court House 
Recommendation Committee were appointed by the Commissioners Court in May 2012. 
The Committee was asked to return to the Commissioners Court with a 
recommendation in June, or as soon as the completion of their deliberations would 
allow. The Committee completed their work in July and presented their report for the 
Commissioner Courts consideration and deliberation on August 7, 2012. 
 
The Travis County Civil and Family Court House Recommendation Committee 
recommended the Commissioners Court pursue a P3 delivery approach for the project. 
The Committee’s report covered a host of other issues, including some refinements to 
the governance process that E&Y had briefly laid out in their report.  These 
recommendations suggested that the Commissioners Court would need to hire a 
transaction-oriented P3 advisory team before issuing a solicitation for the development 
of the project. During discussions regarding the Committee’s recommendations, the 
Commissioners Court informally directed staff to begin working on the necessary 
procurement documents to obtain a program management team, also referred to as an 
owner’s representative. Once selected, the owner’s representative would assist the 
Court with finalizing their choice of the appropriate delivery method for the development 
of the Civil and Family Court House. 
 
Document and affirm current and future need for additional space for Civil and Family 
Court proceedings 
The information developed related to the need and for and size of future Civil and 
Family Court House was developed by Broaddus & Associates during the Travis County 
Needs Assessment and Master Plan for the Central Campus.  The Broaddus team 



3 
 

included court planning experts from Ricci Greene Associates.  The team developed 
specific forecasts for growth in both the criminal and civil court systems for Travis 
County.  In addition, specific information was developed for the following areas: 
 

• forecasts for additional judges and support staff  
• space standards specific to the size and configuration of court suites or sets 
• an inventory of existing court sets and configurations 
•  forecasts for all court related offices and departments 
• adjacency requirements for the court related functions 
• site analysis and massing and stacking plans for all court related facilities  
• program for the Civil and Family Court House 
• site analysis of the block at 308 Guadalupe  
• massing scenarios and typical floor plates for a Civil and Family Court House at 

308 Guadalupe 
 

Excerpts from the various Phase One Needs Assessment and Phase Two Master Plan 
reports prepared by Broaddus and Associates are being compiled and will be provided 
to the Commissioners Court as soon as that work has been completed.  A placeholder 
for this information has been included as Attachment 2.         
 
The following section of this memo and the remaining supporting attachments describe 
the next steps to assist the Commissioners Court with the Civil and Family Court House 
project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
Procurement of Program Management Services (also known as the Owner’s 
Representative) 
Staff has been developing an umbrella solicitation that will allow the Commissioners 
Court to receive proposals from self-selected teams of firms and individuals with the 
requested qualifications to assist during the initiation and planning phases. Through the 
planned use of phasing in the contract, this solicitation can put the team in place that 
will carry the program management of the project through completion of construction.   
 
There is no doubt that the Civil and Family Court House project as currently envisioned 
is a significant project for the Travis County Commissioners Court. Although levels of 
responsibility and the scope of work may vary during the later phases of the project, the 
most desirable candidates for the initiation and planning phases should have 
experience in both Design Build and Public Private Partnership (P3) projects.  This 
allows the Commissioners Court to obtain additional outside expertise to assist with 
planning and final determination of the appropriate project delivery method. This same 
team can then move forward into subsequent phases of the project after authorization 
for funding of subsequent phases has been secured. It is not unusual for the 
development of a public information program about the project to be included as part of 
the scope of work for program management services, particularly when the project is a 
significant one like the Civil and Family Court House. 
 



4 
 

Attachment 3 to this memo is a draft scope of work for the umbrella solicitation for 
comment.   This Scope of Work will be incorporated into the formal procurement 
documents prepared by the Purchasing Office and will be presented February 12, 2013, 
with anticipated release of a Request for Services (RFS) for Program Management 
following approval by the Commissioners Court with the planned contract award to 
occur no later than the end of May.  This schedule allows the Commissioners Court to 
complete the initiation and planning phases of the project and establish funding in the 6 
to 9 months following contract award for Program Management. 
 
Based on discussions with E&Y and experts in the development community, it is 
essential to the success of a project that the governance model maintains control, 
transparency and effective risk management.  The one industry proven method to 
accomplish this is to use the Guide to the Project Management Body of Knowledge 
published by the Project Management Institute. Information related to this model is 
outlined in the Governance section of E&Y’s report. Project phasing includes initiation, 
planning, execution, measuring and monitoring, and closing. Travis County is currently 
in the initiation phase of the Civil and Family Court House Project.  
 
The initiation phase of the project is the development of the goals and vision for the 
project, as well as defining desired end results. The outputs of this phase are the 
preliminary project scope statement, which has been largely developed already through 
the work with Broaddus and Ricci Greene in the form of the approved Civil and Family 
Court House Program document.  Additional information needed to complete the project 
scope statement will include the delivery method and overall business goals and 
objectives for the project. The project charter will clearly define the project, outline the 
budget and the resources needed to execute each phase of the project. These 
documents will be developed as a part of the first phase of work by the firm selected to 
provide program management services. As mentioned previously, this firm is also 
commonly referred to as the owner’s representative. 
 
Recommended Staff Evaluation Team for Program Management Services 
The County’s Purchasing Agent, Cyd Grimes, will supervise the solicitation process for 
program management services.  A list of staff members to be on the evaluation 
committee, needed to evaluate responses to the RFS, is presented for Commissioners 
Court approval. These individuals bring various types of knowledge and experience that 
are relevant to this procurement. 
 
Justice planning and administration – Roger Jefferies 
Financial planning and project management – Leslie Browder 
Architectural, engineering and construction management – Roger El Khoury 
Strategic facilities planning and project management – Belinda Powell 
Civil courts administration and stakeholder representative – Peg Liedtke 
 
In addition to the individuals listed above, the County Attorney’s office will provide the 
expertise needed to select and assemble the necessary internal and external legal 
resources needed for the project on behalf of the Commissioners Court. 
 
 



5 
 

Appointment of Executive Sponsors 
In conjunction with finalizing the Scope of Work for the RFS and the Evaluation 
Committee, the Commissioners Court may wish to revisit or reaffirm internal leadership 
roles for the project. Leslie Browder, County Executive of Planning & Budget and Roger 
Jefferies, County Executive of Justice & Public Safety, have been serving as the 
executive sponsors for the project. The allocation of internal staff resources for the 
project, including an internal project manager and internal team of support staff, would 
be the responsibility of the executive sponsor(s).  Any internal staff assigned to the 
project will ultimately support the program manager hired as the owner’s representative 
for the project who will be responsible for the day-to-day execution of every aspect of 
the project. 
 
Governance Structure for Project and Recommended Follow-up Actions 
The Commissioners Court should continue the process of establishing the appropriate 
governance structure for the project as described on pages 217 – 235 in the E&Y 
report.  This can be accomplished prior to making the final decision on the specific 
delivery approach now that the options appear to be narrowed to a DB or P3 approach. 
 
As part of the process to establish a governance model for the project, the 
Commissioners Court should complete the appointments to the Advisory Committee for 
the project.  The Commissioners Court began this work by establishing a draft charge 
and suggested membership as an extension of the Recommendation Committee.  
Previous discussions by the Court indicated the intent to each appoint three 
representatives in addition to the membership of the Recommendation Committee. 
Attachment 6 is a list of Recommendation Committee members who are able to 
continue serving on the Advisory Committee, as well as identified vacancies. 
Attachment 5 is the draft charge for the Advisory Committee that was considered by the 
Commissioners Court in May 2012. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
N/A 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Timeline of work completed and Commissioners Court actions taken to date on  
proposed Civil and Family Courthouse project 

2. Statement of current and future need for a New Civil and Family Courthouse with 
New Civil and Family Court House Program developed by Broaddus & 
Associates with Ricci Greene 

3. Draft Scope of Work for Program Management Services with proposed 
Evaluation Committee Members 

4. Charge for Citizens Advisory Committee 
5. List of Advisory Committee Members confirmed to date 

 
 



6 
 

Copies to: 
The Honorable John Dietz, 250th District Court 
The Honorable Lora Livingston, 261st District Court 
The Honorable Eric Shepperd, County Court at Law #2 
The Honorable Rosemary Lehmberg, District Attorney 
The Honorable David Escamilla, County Attorney 
The Honorable Amalia Rodriguez-Mendoza, District Clerk 
The Honorable Dana DeBeauvoir, County Clerk 
Peg Liedtke, Civil Court Administrator 
Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent 
Nicki Riley, County Auditor 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director  
Roger El Khoury, Director Facilities Management 
James Collins, First Assistant County Attorney 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Tom Nuckols, Assistant County Attorney 
 



7 
 

Attachment 1 
Timeline of work completed and Commissioners Court actions taken to date on 

the Proposed Civil and Family Courthouse project 
 

(in progress, to be provided when complete) 
 



8 
 

Attachment 2 
 

Statement of current and future need for a New Civil and Family Courthouse with 
New Civil and Family Court House Program developed by Broaddus & Associates 
with Ricci Greene. 
 

(in progress, to be provided when complete) 
 



9 
 

Attachment 3 
 

Draft Scope of Work for Program Management Services  
 
Scope of Services 
 
Through this Request for Services, Travis County seeks a Consultant to assist and 
advise Travis County during Phase I through Phase IV of the Project. 
 
The Project is the construction of a civil and family courts building on the block owned 
by Travis County located at 308 Guadalupe Street in the central business district of 
Austin, Texas. 
 
The Project will begin with Phase I: 
 
Phase I – Review and analysis of the information prepared to date for the development 
of the Project; assistance with finalizing a financing strategy and the selection of a 
delivery approach to be used for the Project; development and execution of a public 
education initiative for the Project; and the tasks typically included in the Initiation and 
Planning Phases of a project as defined by the Project Management Institute (PMI). 
  
Phase II – Preparation of solicitation documents for the development approach selected 
in Phase I and oversight of the procurement. The phase will also begin the development 
of the processes and documentation needed for the Executing, Monitoring and Control 
and Closing general phases for the project as defined by PMI. 
 
Phase III – The selection of a development Partner and proposal for the Project and 
development of an operation and maintenance strategy that supports the long-term 
objectives of the Commissioners Court and compliments the delivery model; negotiation 
of the contracts with the Partner to execute the proposed development. 
 
Phase IV – Program management for the Project, including oversight of the contract(s) 
awarded for the design, construction, occupancy, operation, and maintenance of the 
Project through at least the warranty period of the construction project or as otherwise 
determined through the course of the project delivery method selection.  
 
Respondents to this Request for Services should divide their responses into the 
services they propose pursuant to general descriptions of Phase I through IV of the 
Project.  
 
The Consultant may be a single individual or any combination of individuals and legal 
entities proposed by the Consultant.  However, due to the breadth of expertise required 
by Travis County of the Consultant, Travis County expects respondents to this Request 
for Services to propose combinations of individuals and/or legal entities. 
 
Respondents to this Request for Services should state clearly the expertise they believe 
the Consultant should have in order to assist and advise Travis County during Phases I 
through IV of the Project, why they believe such expertise is needed by the Consultant, 



10 
 

and how they intend to provide such expertise if they are selected as the Consultant. At 
a minimum, Travis County expects the following types of expertise as it relates to the 
design and development of Court Houses using Design Build and Public Private 
Partnership alternative delivery concepts to be included in the Respondent’s proposal: 

 
• Program management and construction management expertise 
• Architectural/engineering and information technology expertise 
• Security and security systems expertise 
• Financial advisory and financial risk management 
• Real estate and development expertise 
• Public outreach and project information development, including Historically Under-

utilized Business (HUB) outreach for the Project 
• Knowledge of any applicable local or State laws or regulations regarding Design 

Build or Public Private Partnership development alternatives 
    

If a Respondent to this Request for Services is selected as the Consultant, Travis 
County may negotiate a contract for the services requested in this Request for Services 
which is based on, but differs from, the Respondent’s response to this Request for 
Services. 

 
Recommended Evaluation Committee 
 
A list of recommended individual evaluators is provided below for consideration by the 
Commissioners Court. These individuals bring various types of knowledge and 
experience that are relevant to this procurement. 
 
Justice planning and administration – Roger Jefferies 
Financial planning and project management – Leslie Browder 
Architectural, engineering and construction management – Roger El Khoury 
Strategic facilities planning and project management – Belinda Powell 
Civil courts administration and stakeholder representative – Peg Liedtke 
 



11 
 

  
Attachment 4 

Charge for Civil and Family Court House Community Advisory Committee 
DRAFT 

(This charge was last reviewed by the Commissioners Court on May 8, 2012) 
 
The Community Advisory Committee is an advisory panel of external individuals and 
firms needed to supplement the internal team and independently advise the Program 
Manager and the Commissioners Court. The Charge of the committee is as follows: 
 

1. The committee is to provide independent advice and recommendations to the 
Commissioners Court and the Program Manager for the duration of the 
procurement, design and construction of the Travis County Civil and Family 
Court House. The advice and recommendation may come in the form of a 
presentation to the Commissioners Court, a written report, or other appropriate 
means of communication. If appropriate due to the vote of the committee, 
majority and minority reports may be presented to the Commissioners Court.   

 
2. The advice and recommendations may be generated by inquiries on specific 

issues by the Commissioners Court and the Program Manager, and by 
observation of specific issues by the Committee. 
 

3. The work of the committee should be collaborative, objective, informative, and 
transparent and should instill confidence in the soundness of the advice for the 
Travis County Commissioners Court and the residents of Travis County. 
 

4. The committee should update the Commissioners Court on a quarterly basis 
regarding the status of their work and resulting recommendations, and receive 
further direction from the Commissioners Court as needed. 
 



12 
 

Attachment 5  
Civil and Family Court House Recommendation Committee Members and 

Advisory Committee Members 
 

Organization 
 

1. Downtown Austin Alliance – Charles Heimsath 
2. Original Austin Neighborhood – Not confirmed  
3. Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce – Shaun Cranston 
4. Greater Austin Hispanic Chamber of Commerce – Not confirmed 
5. City of Austin – Rodney Gonzales  
6. Capital City African American Chamber of Commerce – Not confirmed 
7. Austin Asian American Chamber of Commerce – Not confirmed 
8. Austin Bar Association – Martha Dickie  
9. Downtown Austin Neighborhood Association (DANA) – Not confirmed  
10. Real Estate expertise and tax – Art Cory 
11. Real Estate Council of Austin (RECA) – Rebecca Bray  
12. Financial Expert – Not confirmed 
13. Public Finance – Not confirmed 
14. Civil Judges – The Honorable John K. Dietz, The Honorable Lora Livingston, 

The Honorable Eric Shepperd   
 
Areas of Expertise Suggested for Advisory Committee Members  
 
Architectural 
Community Leadership  
Engineering 
Environmental  
Facilities Management 
Financial 
Information Technology 
Legal 
Security 

 
Appointments Made by Commissioner Davis 
Mr. Jeff Travillion Sr. 
Ms. Socar Chatmon-Thomas 
Ms. Carol Delgado 
  
Appointments Made By Commissioner Gomez 
Ms. Rosa Rios Valdez 
Mr. Frank Fuentes 
Mr. Frank Rodriguez 
 

 



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 18









salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 19





salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 20







salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 21













salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 22





salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 23

































{02231428.DOC / } 

     Agenda Item No. ________  
 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
AGENDA REQUEST 

 
 

Work Session    Voting Session   February 5, 2013     Executive Session           
  Date        Date            Date 
  

I. A. Request made by:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge   
                 Elected Official 

 
Requested Text: 1.  Public Hearing concerning the issuance of multifamily housing revenue 

bonds by Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 
for the Paddock at Norwood project. 

 
2. Approve issuance of multifamily housing revenue bonds by Strategic Housing Finance 

Corporation of Travis County Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds for the Paddock at Norwood project. 
 
 
Approved by:            

    Signature of Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
II. A. Any backup material to be presented to the court must be submitted with this Agenda 
  Request (Original and eight copies of agenda request and backup). 
 

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials' names and telephone numbers that might be 
affected by or involved with this request.  Send a copy of this Agenda Request and 
backup to them: 

  
III.   Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable. 
 
   Planning and Budget Office (473-9106) 
 ___  Additional funding for any department or for any purpose 
 ___ Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item  
 ___ Grant 
 
   Human Resources Department (473-9165) 
 ___ A change in your department's personnel (reclassifications, etc.) 
 
   Purchasing Office (473-9700) 
 ___ Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement 
 
 County Attorney's Office (473-9415) 
 ___ Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted to the County Judge's 
office in writing by 5:00 PM on Tuesdays for the next week's meeting.  Late or incomplete requests may be deferred to the 
next meeting. 

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
25



{02231443.DOC / } 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 MEMORANDUM 
 from 
 William C. Blount 
 (512) 807-2454 
 Fax (512) 474-1901 
 E-mail: blount@namanhowell.com 
 
TO:   Travis County Judge and County Commissioners 
 
DATE:  January 28, 2013 
 
RE:   Issuance of multifamily housing revenue bonds by Strategic Housing 

Finance Corporation of Travis County for The Paddock at Norwood Project 
 
Agenda Date:  February 5, 2013 
 
 
 The two items for this project are (1) to hold a public hearing for the above-referenced 
issuance of bonds by Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County and (2) for the 
County to approve the issuance of the bonds by Strategic. 
 
 Attached is the notice of hearing that was published in the Austin American-Statesman on 
January 21, 2013.  The project will be a 228-unit multifamily housing residential project to be 
located at Norwood Park Boulevard and Anderson Lane in Northeast Austin (just east of I-35).  I 
understand that Craig Alter has either met with, is scheduled to meet with or has requested to meet 
with each of you to provide information on the project and structure of the transaction.   
 
 As you know, for the bonds to be tax-exempt, the issuance must be approved by the 
“Highest Applicable Elected Representative” after a public hearing.  The Commissioner’s Court 
qualifies as the Highest Applicable Elected Representative for these purposes.  I have attached the 
published notice, proposed resolution, and the bond allocation documents from the Bond Review 
Board.  Additionally, the bond issuance must be approved by the Attorney General’s Office and 
Travis County will not have liability for the bonds. 
 
 Please give me a call if you have any questions or require any additional information 
regarding this matter before Tuesday. 
 
cc: Andrea Shields 
 Karen Thigpen 

 

 







{02231431.DOC / }  

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS APPROVING A TAX EXEMPT BOND FINANCING TO BE 
UNDERTAKEN BY STRATEGIC HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION OF 
TRAVIS COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County (the 

“Issuer”) is proposing to issue its multifamily housing revenue bonds in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $20,0000,000 to finance the acquisition, construction, 
development, financing and ownership of a 228-unit housing community known as The 
Paddock at Norwood Apartments located at Norwood Park Boulevard and Anderson 
Lane, Austin, Texas, 78752 (the “Property”) located within Travis County, Texas (the 
“County”) by LDG Norwood, LP; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986 (the “Code”), the issuance of the Bonds requires approval, following a public 
hearing, by the applicable elected representative of the governmental unit having 
jurisdiction over the area in which the Property is located; and 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2013, a notice of a public hearing with respect 
to the proposed issuance of the Bonds was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the County, in which the Property is located; and 

WHEREAS, this Commissioner’s Court conducted the public hearing, at 
which time an opportunity was provided to present arguments both for and against the 
issuance of the Bonds and the nature and location of the Property to be financed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Travis County now desires to 
approve the financing and the issuance of the Bonds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commissioners Court of 
Travis County, as follows: 

Section 1. The Commissioners Court of Travis County hereby 
approves the financing described above and the issuance of the Bonds in an amount not 
to exceed $20,000,000.  It is the purpose and intent of the Commissioners Court of Travis 
County that this resolution constitute approval of the financing and the issuance of the 
Bonds for the purposes of Section 147(f) of the Code by the applicable elected 
representative of the governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in which the 
Property is located, in accordance with said Section 147(f) of the Code. 

Section 2. The County Judge and the County Clerk and the County 
Commissioners are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to do any and 
all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they deem necessary or 
advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this 
resolution and the financing transaction approved hereby. 



{02231431.DOC / }  

Section 3. Nothing in this resolution shall be construed to create any 
obligation of the County with respect to the repayment of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall 
never constitute an indebtedness or pledge of the County within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory provision, and the owners of the Bonds shall never be paid in 
whole or in part out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or any other revenues 
of the County. 

Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on February 5, 2013. 

 
COMMISSIONERS COURT OF 
   TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 County Judge 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
 County Clerk 





AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: 2/5/2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tom Nuckols (4-9262) 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Receive Briefing and Take Appropriate Action 
Regarding Braker Lane Participation Agreement With Austin- 
Boise Joint Ventures, LP, Wild Horse Investments, Ltd., and J&T 
Development Group. (Executive Session under Gov’t. Code Ann. 
§551.071, Consultation with Attorney.) 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  February 5, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: 854-9555 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  COMMISSIONER ECKHARDT 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 

CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON APPOINTMENT OF 
JEANNETTE SCHALEBEN COOK TO THE TRAVIS COUNTY HISTORICAL 
COMMISSION, CORRECTING THE TERM OF HER APPOINTMENT TO BEGIN 
ON FEBRUARY 1, 2013 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2015.  

 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us
salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item C3



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Manager/854-
4743 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to: 
 

 A) Approve submission of a letter to Eagle’s Landing Apartments 
regarding the Corporation’s annual compliance audit; and  

B) Approve submission of an invoice totaling $500.00 to the property 
owner for staff’s time.   
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  See 
attached backup. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Manager/854-
4743; Leslie Browder, County Executive/854-9106 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

salazad
Typewritten Text
HFC Item 1



salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
HFC Item 2 & 3

salazad
Typewritten Text













AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

 
 
 
Meeting Date: February 5, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Manager/854-
4743 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
 

1.  Consider and take appropriate action to approve the Application 
for financing by the Travis County Health Facilities Development 
Corporation, Capital Industrial Development Corporation, Travis County 
Development Authority and the Travis County Cultural Education Facilities 
Finance Corporation. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
Historically, there have not been formal application materials for most of 
these corporations.  This single application applies to all of these 
Corporations with activity specific information requests.  Since the 
Applicant will be required to submit hard copy applications in binders, the 
application can by customized by Corporation/activity.  The draft application 
is attached for your review.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
  TRAVIS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 TRAVIS COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION 

 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Corporations Item 1

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Manager/854-
4743; Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
 


	Item 01
	HFC Affidavit of Publication (02226399)
	HFC TEFRA Hearing Agenda Request (02231428)
	HFC TEFRA Memo (02231443)


	HFC BRB Certificate of Reservation (02226003)
	HFC Travis County Resolution (02231431)

	Item 03
	Item 05
	JPS JMHCP Agenda Request
	JPS JMHCP Memo
	JPS JMHCP Overview (PPT)
	Travis County’s�Bureau of Justice Assistance �Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program Grant
	The Opportunity
	The Opportunity 
	The Opportunity 
	Getting Down to Business
	Getting Down to Business
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Our Sequential Intercept Model
	Our Sequential Intercept Model
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Target Population Data
	Target Population Data
	The Strategic Plan
	Next Steps

	JPS MH Collaboration

	Item 06
	Item 07
	7951 : Approve Ct. 44--1293 Spirit Reins Trauma
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Spirit Reins Transmittal Letter
	Spirit Reins Contract - vendor signed


	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10

	Item 12
	Item 13
	page 1
	Grants 02-05-13

	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Agenda Request_Legislative_020513
	83R TravCo IGR Legislative Stats_013113
	83R HJR 46 Packet _020513
	Agenda Item #14-B: HJR 46
	HJR 46 Memo
	HJR 46 Bill Draft
	HJR 46 Resolution


	New Courts VS Backup_020513
	Agenda Item 14-C
	New Criminal Courts - 14B - Backup_013013
	CLEAN District Court bill_013013
	CLEAN County Court bill_013013
	JudicialDistrictCourtBill_Lege Council_013013
	TravisCountyCourtBill_LegeCouncil_013013
	Local Bill notice_013113
	Appraisal Cap Summary_013113


	IGR Motion_020513

	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	OTH Brooke
	OTH Brooke 2

	Item 25
	HFC Affidavit of Publication (02226399)
	HFC BRB Certificate of Reservation (02226003)
	HFC TEFRA Hearing Agenda Request (02231428)
	HFC TEFRA Memo (02231443)
	HFC Travis County Resolution (02231431)

	Item 27
	Item C3
	HFC Item 01
	HFC Items 02 & 03
	CORP 01



